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Auditor of State
Betty Montgomery

County Commissioners

Lucas County

One Government Center, Suite 600
Toledo, Ohio 43604

We have reviewed the Independent Auditor's Report of Lucas County prepared by Ernst & Young,
for the audit period January 1, 2003 through December 31, 2003. Based upon this review, we
have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit required by Section 117.11, Revised Code. The
Auditor of State (AOS) did not audit the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, we
are unable to express, and do not express an opinion on them.

As part of the audit, the AOS also requested Ernst & Young, LLP to conduct additional testing of
expenditures in the Delinquent Tax and Assessment Collection Fund. Pursuant to Ohio Revised
Code Section 321.261, the fund “shall be used solely in connection with the collection of
delinquent real property, personal property, and manufactured mobile home taxes and
assessments.”

During calendar years 2002 and 2003, however, this fund was used to pay costs associated with
tuition, lodging, travel, and course study material for County Treasurer Ray Kest. Accordingly,
the following expenditures were deemed unallowable under Ohio Revised Code Section 321.261:

$9,620.00 — Tuition

3,183.03 — Hotel

1,515.80 — Books

2.567.88 — Mileage (estimated cost during 2003 only)
$16,886.71 - Total

These expenditures constitute a Finding for Recovery issued against County Treasurer Ray Kest
and the Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, jointly and severally, and is in the

amount of sixteen thousand eight hundred eighty six dollars and seventy one cents ($16,886.71)
and in favor of Lucas County fund # 358 — Delinquent Tax and Assessment Collection Fund.

88 E. Broad St. / P.O. Box 1140 / Columbus, OH 43216-1140
Telephone: (614) 466-4514 (800) 282-0370 Fax: (614) 466-4490
www.auditor.state.oh.us




County Commissioners
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One Government Center, Suite 600 Toledo, Ohio 43604
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Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by
the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor of
State, regulations and grant requirements. Lucas County is responsible for compliance with these
laws and regulations.
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BETTY MONTGOMERY
Auditor of State

October 15, 2004
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Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Lucas County, Ohio (the County) as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2003, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements
and have issued our report thereon dated May 7, 2004.We did not audit the financial statements
of the discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for the discretely presented component units, is based on the reports of the
other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are

free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and

material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an

opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However,

we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance, which we have reported to management

of the County in a separate letter dated May 7, 2004.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial
reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material
weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of
one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk
that misstatements caused by errors or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
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employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over
. financial reporting that we have reported to management of the County in a separate letter dated
May 7, 2004.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners,
management, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and

should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
é/wvt ¥ WLL?

May 7, 2004
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Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Compliance
and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Lucas County, Ohio (the County) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs
for the year ended December 31, 2003. We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely
presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included
for the discretely presented component units, is based on the reports of the other auditors. The
County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2003.

01030167270 A Member Practice of Ernst & Young Global
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a
major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the basic financial statements of Lucas County as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2003, and have issued our reports thereon dated May 7, 2004, which expressed
reliance on other auditors. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is
presented for the purpose of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. This schedule is the responsibility of the
management of Lucas County. Such information has been subjected to the procedures applied in
our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports
of other auditors, is fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners,

management, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

St + MLLP

May 7, 2004
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Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended December 31, 2003

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture—Food and Nutrition
Passed through Ohio Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:
Juvenile Court:
Food Distribution Program 10.550  IRN: 083097 3,841
National School Lunch Program 10.555  IRN: 083097 72,039
National School Breakfast Program 10.553  IRN: 083097 42,121
Board of County Commissioners:
Community Development Center:
Summer Food Service Program 10.559  IRN: 089243 170,537
Child Nutrition Cluster 288,538
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 288,538
Federal Highway Administration, Department of
Transportation
Passed through Ohio Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 (1) 3,194,168
Federal Emergency Management Agency
Passed through Ohio Emergency Management Agency:
Hazard Mitigation Program 83.548 ) 239,554
State Domestic Preparedness Program 16.007 1) 224,553
Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program 83.557 )) 20,813
Regional Urban Search and Rescue Program 97.025 €)) 124,103
2003 Power Outage 97.051 (1) 36,849
CERT Training 83.562 ) 73,989
Total Federal Emergency Management Agency 719,861

0404-0530190



Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Passed through Ohio Department of Development:
Board of County Commissioners:
Community Development Block Grant/States Program:

Formula Grant (1) 14.228 1) 221,993
Formula Grant (2) 14.239 ) 184,734
Community Development Block Grant/Small Cities
Program:
Revolving Loan Fund 14.219 (1) 77,096
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development 483,823

U.S. Department of Education
Passed through Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug:
Addiction Services:
Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services Board:

Drug Free Schools and Communities 84.186A 0] 323,731

Passed through Ohio Department of Health:
Individuals with Disabilities Educational Act 84.181 1) 494,207
Total U.S. Department of Education 817,938

U.S. Department of Justice
Passed through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Criminal Justice Coordinating Council:

Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention—Title V 16.548 ) 170,101
Juvenile Court:

Title V Reaching Out Project 16.579 (1) 66,046

: 236,147

Passed through Ohio Attorney General
Victim Witness Assistance Program:

Notification Advocate 16.579 1 1,634
Safe Kids/Safe Street 16.541 ) 598
SCS Information Project 16.575 ) 11,696
SCS VOCA 16.575 10 88,574

04040530190



Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
VOCA V/IW 16.575 ) 133,592
SVAA Hispanic V/W ' 16.575 ) 84,704
VOCA-X Felony Crises 16.575 ) 45,337
VAWA : 16.575 ) 90,324
456,459
Passed through Ohio Office of the Governor:
Criminal Justice Coordinating Council:
Juvenile Court:
Byme Grant C.I.T.E 16.548 ¢)) 73,447
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant (1) 16.523 1) 363,747
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant Title II 16.523 €)) 7,009
370,756
Passed through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Passed through Criminal Justice Coordinating Council:
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant 16.523 1) 504,210
Byrme Memorial Law Enforcement:
Narcotics Control Block » 16.579 0 ’ 38,793
Youth Treatment Center _ 16.540 ) 7,009
Economic Crimes Unit 16.579 )] 46,303
' 92,105
Violence Against Women:
VAWA Block 16.588 ) 15,612
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Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Directly received:
Sheriff
Violence Against Women . 16.588 1) 33,809
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 16.548 1) 346,760
396,181
Total U.S. Department of Justice 2,129,305
U.S. Department of Labor
Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Cluster:
Passed through Ohio Department of Job and Family
Services:
Workforce Investment Act—Adult 17.258 1) 2,572,577
Workforce Investment Act—Youth 17.259 ) 1,979,286
Workforce Investment Act—Dislocated Workers 17.260 (1) 1,680,386
Workforce Investment Act—Rapid Response 17.258 ¢)) 542,189
Workforce Investment Act—Administration 17.258 : ) 584,968
Total U.S. Department of Labor 7,359,406
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Ohio Office of the Governor:
Criminal Justice Coordinating Council:
Juvenile Court:
Family Treatment Drug Court: Expansion and
Enhancement 93.243 (1) 249,095
Passed through Ohio Department of Mental Retardation
and Development Disabilities:
Board of Mental Retardation and Developmental
Disabilities:
Social Services Block Grants (Title XX) 93.667 n 536,200
Passed through Ohio Department of Mental Health
Community Mental Health Services:
Social Services Block Grants (Title XX) 93.667 1) 519,775
Medicaid Title XIX 93.778 €)) 11,784,323
12,304,098

Community Mental Health Services Block

0404-0530190



Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through

Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Grants:
Child Adolescent/CORE 93.958 ) 95,577
Community Plan 93.958 1) 276,245
JIF 93.958 1) 52,123
508R HAP 93.958 ) 170,002
CSP Employ ' 93.958 1) 6,200
RPKECT 93.958 (1) 6,000
606,147
PATH Grant 2003 93.150 ¢)) 114,585
Passed through Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
~ Addiction Services:
Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services Board:
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of
Substance Abuse:
Alcohol and Drug Abuse and MH Services 93.959 ) 4,184,441
Medical Assistance Program - 93.778 (1) 1,255,514
Targeted Capacity Expansion Grant 93.230 1) 428,829
Passed through Ohio Department of Human Services:
Children Services Board:
Child Welfare Service Grant—Title IV-B 93.645 1) 240,035
ESAA Family Preservation 93.645 ) 185,607
Non-recurring Adoption Expenses 93.645 ) 77,593
PASSS 93.645 0)) 107,645
Chaffee Federal Allocation 98.674 1) 120,820
Child Abuse & Neglect 93.669 ) 2,000
733,700
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 20,412,609
Total Federal Awards ' $ 35,405,648

(1) No pass-through entity identifying number is available for this program.

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

0404-0530190



Lucas County, Ohio

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal grant activity of Lucas County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting, which is described in Note A to Lucas County, Ohio’s (the County) basic financial
statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with requirements of
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in the Schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or
used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

2. Subrecipients

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, the County provided federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Amount
CFDA Provided to
Program Title Number Subrecipient

Drug Free Schools and Communities 84.186 $ 323,731
Individuals with Disabilities Educational Act 84.181 466,574
Juvenile Justice Delinquency

Prevention - Title V Block Grant 16.548 170,101
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block

Grant ' 16.548 504,210
Narcotics Block Grant 16.579 38,793
Violence Against Women 16.588 15,612
Targeted Capacity Expansion Grant 93.230 406,211
Social Services Block Grants _ 93.667 519,775
Community Mental Health Services

Block Grants 93.958 606,147
Medicaid Title XIX 93.778 11,784,323
PATH Grant 93.150 114,585
Victim Witness Assistance Grant 16.575 454,227
Safe Kids/Safe Streets 16.541 598
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 1,255,514
Alcohol and Drug Abuse and MH Services 93.959 3,931,903

0404-0530190 10



Lucas County, Ohio

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

3. Loans Outstanding

The County had the following loan balances outstanding at December 31, 2003. These loan
balances outstanding are also included in the federal expenditures presented in the schedule.

CFDA Amount
Program Title Number Outstanding
Community Development Block Grant -

Revolving Loan Fund 14.219 $ 77,096

0404-0530190 ] ‘I



Lucas County, Ohio
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended December 31, 2003

Part I-Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statement Section

@)
(ii)

(iii)

Type of auditor’s report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Reportable condition(s) identified not considered to be
material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards Section

(viii)
(ix)
)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

CFDA Number(s)

Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs:
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Type of auditor’s report on compliance for major
programs?

Internal control over compliance:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Were reportable condition(s) identified not considered to

be material weakness(es)?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Circular A-133 (Section
.510(a))?

Identification of major programs:

Unqualified

yes

yes

yes

$1,062,169

reported

X

no

X _none

no

yes

Unqualified

no

Yes

Yes

Yes

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

reported

no

X __none

no

93.778 Medical Assistance Program

14.239
16.523
93.959
84.181

0404-0530190

Community Development Formula Grant
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant
Alcohol and Drug Abuse Services

Individuals with Disabilities Educational Act

12



None

None
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Lucas County, Ohio

- Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

Part II-Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

Part I1I-Schedule of Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

17






Lo

o

i

2
o

Lucas County, Ohio
Comprehensive

Annual Financial Report

for the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Larry A. Kaczala,
Lucas County Auditor

Prepared by the Lucas County Auditor’s Office

Thomas E. Nichter
Chief Deputy Auditor.

Scott S. Smith, C.P.A.
Chief Accountant

Gina-Marie Kaczala
Director of Internal Audits

David Polek Tammy Shelton
Accounting Assistant Reconcillliation Accountant




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
PAGE
TABLE OF CONTENTS . ..o 2
LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL ..o 5
ELECTED OFFICIALS . . .. 10
ORGANIZATION CHART . 11
CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT . . .. s, 12
FINANCIAL SECTION
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS .. ... 14
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS .. ... 16
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statementof Net Assets . . ... ... .. P 23
Statement of Activities . . ... ... 24
Balance Sheet-Governmental Funds . ........ ... . . . . 26
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund
Balances to Net Assets of Governmental Activities . ................ . ... . . . .. .. ... ... 28
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances-Governmental Funds .. ............. . ... . . 30

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental

Funds to the Statement of Activities .. ........ ... .. .. . .. . .. . 32
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances-Budget and Actual-(Non-

GAAP Budgetary Basis)-Individual Major Governmental Funds .. ............... ... ..., 33
Statement of Net Assets-Proprietary Funds . .. ... ... . 38
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes

in Fund Net Assets-Proprietary Funds .. ........ .. .. ... . . . . . 40
Statement of Cash Flows-Proprietary Funds . ............ . ... . . . . . . 42
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets-Fiduciary Fund .. ......... .. ... ... .. .. .. . . . . ... . . . . . . ... 46
Combining Statement of Net Assets-Discretely

Presented Component Units . ... ... ... . . . . . 47
Statement of Activities-Discretely Presented Component Units . ... ................. .. . ... . 48
Notes to the Financial Statements .. ... ... ... .. . . .. . . . . 50



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
TABLE OF CONTENTS

(continued)
COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES PAGE
General Fund
Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual-(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) ......... ... 80
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet- Nonmajor Governmental Funds .. ................o e 90
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-
Nonmajor Governmental Funds . ....... ... ... 92
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and Actual-(Non-GAAP
Budgetary Basis)-Individual Nonmajor Governmental Funds ........................... 94

Enterprise Funds
Schedules of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Budget and Actual-(Non-GAAP budgetary Basis)-Major Enterprise Funds ............... 136
Combining Statement of Assets Nonmajor Enterprise Funds . ...t 139
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets-

Nonmajor Enterprise FUNS . ... ... o 140
Combining Statement of Cash Flows-Nonmajor Enterprise Funds ........................0 141
Schedules of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets-Budget and

Actual-(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)-Nonmajor Enterprise Funds ..................... 143

internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Net Assets-Internal Service Funds . .............. ... 148
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets-Internal

SETVICE FUNAS .« . o oottt e e e 150
Combining Statement of Cash Flows-Internal Service Funds ... 152
Schedules of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets-Budget and

Actual-(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)-Individual Internal Service Funds ................. 156

Fiduciary Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities-All Agency Funds ................... 166



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

STATISTICAL SECTION

STATISTICAL TABLES AND SCHEDULES

TABLE PAGE

General Governmental Expenditures by Function-Last Ten Fiscal Years .......... 1 174
General Governmental Revenues by Source-Last Ten Fiscal Years . ............. 2 176
General Governmental Expenditures and Revenues Adjusted for Inflation . ... .. ... 3 178
Tax Revenues by Source-Last TenFiscal Years ... .......................... 4 179
Property Tax Levies and Collections-Real and Public Utility-Last

Ten Fiscal Years .. ... i e 5 180
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property-Last Ten

Fiscal Years . . ... e 6 182
Special Assessment Levies and Collections-Last Ten Fiscal Years .............. 7 184
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments-Last

Ten Fiscal Years . ... ... e e 8 186
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded

Debt Per Capita-Last Ten Fiscal Years . . ...................... ST 9 190
Ratio of Annual Debt Service for General Bonded Debt to Total General

Expenditures-Last Ten Fiscal Years . .......... ... ... ... ... ........ 10 190
Computation of Legal DebtMargin . . ....... ... .. ... . . i 11 192
Computation of Direct and OverlappingDebt ...... ... .. .. ... ... ........ 12 193
Property Values, Bank Deposits and Construction Activity-Last Ten

Fiscal Years . ...t e e e 13 194
Top Ten Private Sector Principal Taxpayers for Fiscal

Year Ended December 31,2002 .. ......... ... .. . . .. 14 196
Top Five Public Utility Taxpayers for

Fiscal Years December 31,2001 and December 31,2002 .............. 15 196
Demographic Statistics . .. ... . . 16 198
Miscellaneous Statistics . ....... ... ... . . . e 17 199
Map of Lucas County . .. ... e e e 202



One Government Center
Fax (419) 213-4399

Larry A. Kaczala

Lucas County Auditor

Suite 600 Toledo, Ohio 43604-2255

(419) 213-14340

May 7, 2004

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
and Citizens of Lucas County,

As Auditor of Lucas County, | am pleased to present
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003.

This report contains basic financial statements,
management’s discussion and analysis, supplemental
financial statements, and other financial and statistical
information which provide a complete and full disclosure
of all material financial aspects of Lucas County. This
CAFR conforms to generally accepted accounting princi-
ples (GAAP) as set forth by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data
presented and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, lies with the
management of the County, and in particular the office of
the Lucas County Auditor. In fulfilling this responsibility,
the Lucas County Auditor's Office has prepared the
accompanying financial statements, schedules and tables.
We believe this data fairly reflects the financial position of
the County and the results of its operations.

The CAFR is presented in three (3) sections: the
Introductory Section, the Financial Section and the
Statistical Section. The Introductory Section contains a
table of contents, this letter of transmittal, a list of elected
officials, an organization chart and a copy of the Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
awarded for the 2002 Lucas County CAFR. The Financial
Section contains our independent auditor's, Ernst &
Young LLP, report of independent auditors, Manage-
ment’s Discussion and Analysis, the basic financial
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statements, and relevant supplemental financial state-
ments and schedules for 2003. The Statistical Section
presents historical, financial, analytical, economic and
demographic information that may be useful for further
analysis and comparisons.

This transmittal letter should be read in conjunction
with the Management's Discussion and Analysis, which
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis
of the basic financial statements.

THE COUNTY

The County was formed by an Act of the Ohio General
Assembly on June 20, 1835, in honor of Robert Lucas,
then Governor of Ohio. The elected three-member Board
of County Commissioners function as both the legislative
and executive branch of the County. Each Commissioner
serves a term of four years. In addition to the County
Auditor, who serves as chief fiscal officer, there are seven
elected administrative officials, each of whom operate
independently as set forth by Ohio law. These officials
are: Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting
Attorney, Recorder, Sheriff, and Treasurer. All of these
officials serve four-year terms. The following judges are
elected on a county-wide basis to oversee the County’s
judicial system: Common Pleas Court Judges, Domestic
Relations Court Judges, Juvenile Court Judges, Probate
Court Judge, and Court of Appeals Judges. Judges are
elected to six-year terms.




REPORTING ENTITY AND SERVICES

In conformity with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 14, all governmental departments,
agencies, institutions, commissions, public authorities, and
other governmental organizations, for which the County
has significant financial accountability, are included in this
CAFR for financial reporting purposes. Financial account-
ability is determined by the County’s ability to appoint a
voting majority of the Board or financial interdependence.

The County provides general governmental services to
its citizens which include: public assistance, health assis-
tance, community related services, civil and criminal justice
systems, road and bridge maintenance, sewer and water-
line construction and maintenance and other general legis-
lative and administrative support services. The County
also operates and maintains the water supply and
wastewater treatment systems. A further discussion of the
reporting entity and its services may be found in Note A of
the Notes to the Financial Statements.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND
OUTLOOK

The County is in the center of a trade area comprised
of 14 counties in northwestern Ohio and southeastern
Michigan with a total population of approximately 1.25
million people. The County lies in the central portion of a
triangle formed by the cities of Chicago, Detroit and
Cleveland. The County is in the Toledo Metropolitan
Statistical Area (MSA) and approximately one-third of the
population of the United States resides within 500 miles of
the County.

The County’s economy, historically associated with the
glass and automotive industries, has become increasingly
diversified. While the County remains the home of four of
the nation’s largest glass companies, DaimlerChrysler AG,
General Motors Corporation and Dana Corporation also
continue to be major private employers in the County.
However, in recent years, private service industries and
governmental employers have provided more than three-
fourths of the total employment in the Toledo MSA and
approximately 70% of total payrolls in the County

The County’s unemployment rate for 2003 was 7.8%,
which is 1.7% higher than the statewide rate of 6.1%, and
1.8% higher than the national rate of 6.0%.

Three of the 2003 Fortune 500 corporations have their
headquarters in the County. These are Dana Corporation,

Owens-lllinois, Inc., and Owens-Corning. The County is
also one of the larger oil refining centers between Chicago
and the eastern seaboard with BP Qil Co. and Sun
Refining and Marketing Company, Inc.

DaimlerChrysler AG, the largest manufacturing
enployer in the County, completed a $1.2 billion invest-
ment to construct a 1.1 million square-foot Jeep assembly
plant in 2001. The project retained nearly 4,900 jobs,
and has prompted additional related economic
development activity in the County. Daimler Chrysler
AG has also constructed a $30 million combination
crossdock and parts sequencing facility in the County to
serve its plants in the Midwest.

MAJOR COUNTY INITIATIVES

Current Year Projects

Lucas County continues to promote economic devel-
opment throughout the area. Lucas County officials and
management continue to work closely with state and local
governments, corporations, companies, small businesses,
labor unions and charitable organizations to improve and
expand business opportunities and the standard of living.
The following are highlights of some of the activities Lucas
County is concerned with:

» The construction was completed on the new 38,000
square foot Sixth District Court of Appeals. This
project was a partnership between Lucas County and
the seven other counties that comprise the appellate
courts jurisdiction. Long-term bonds were issued this
year for $6.2 million. Lucas County is responsible for
50% of the debt while the seven other jurisdictions
debt is tied to the population in those counties based
on the 2000 Census.

« Implementation of the first phase of the County’s
integrated new Human Resources/Payroll Procure-
ment/Accounts Payable, and General Ledger Ac-
counting System was completed. The Human
Resources/Payroll system was placed into service in
April, 2003, and will be followed by General Led-
ger/Accounting system in 2005. The County has
initiated workflow studies to take advantage of the
automated features of the software.



« The County is constructing and equipping a business
continuation center (emergency backup computer
system). The cost is estimated to be approximately $1
million.

* Lucas County joined with the Toledo/Lucas County
Port Authority, the Regional Growth Partnership, the
City of Toledo and Manitowoc to construct a “High Bay
Facility” at the Toledo shipyard. This proposed ship
building facility would be used by Manitowoc to con-
struct ships for the US Coast Guard starting in 2004.

+ The County implemented the first phase of a multi-
departmental document-imaging project. Using digital
document imagining the county expects toimprove the
storage and retrieval of public records. The costs of
this system will be spread among various internal
operating funds.

Future Projects

The County will continue to provide a variety of ser-
vices required to meet the needs of its citizens and actively
support economic development in the area. We look
forward to the following significant activities made possible
by the citizens of Lucas County and its government:

« The State of Ohio designated Lucas County as a Local
Area for purposes of the Workforce Investment Act of
1998, which prompted the proposed establishment of
a One Stop location for the convenience of business
and the job seeker. The new One Stop location called
“The Source” will be dedicated in the Summer of 2004.
In this center, community partners will be located to
provide career services to assist employers in finding
qualified individuals for employment. The center will
also assist individuals in obtaining training to meet
demand occupation skills.

* The Board of Elections will be working closely with the
State of Ohio to implement the federal Help America
Vote Act. The new electronic election system will
replace and the current lever system. The new system
at estimated cost of $7 million is expected to be in
place for the 2004 Presidential Election with significant
portion of the cost to come from federal funds. The
County has set aside $1.5 million in the Capital Im-
provement fund for the County’s match.

« Lucas County has loaned $500 thousand to the Toledo
Lucas County Port Authority to assist in the develop-
ment of a coking and electric generation facility along

the east side of the Maumee River in Lucas County.
During Phase | of this project this facility will generate
120 to 150 high paying jobs in Lucas County. .

* The Board of County Commissioners has approved
$1.5 million in the Capital Improvement Plan to
renovate and reconstruct the secured underground
parking and tunnel between the Lucas County Correc-
tions Center and the Lucas County Courthouse. The
tunnel is used in the transportation of prisoners from
the Correction Center to trial in the Common Pleas
Court.

+ Expansion of the existing 15 million gallon per day
Maumee River Wastewater Treatment plantto a 22.5
million gallon a day facility. This expansion will
accommodate the existing demand and future growth
in Western Lucas County through 2025. The pro-
jected cost is $15.5 million.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

The County’s day-to-day accounting records are
maintained on a basis other than GAAP. For financial
reporting purposes, the accounting records for all Govern-
mental and Fiduciary Funds are converted to the modified
accrual basis, whereby revenues are recognized when
measurable and available within the business cycle (within
60 days after year end) and expenditures are recognized
when the related fund liability is incurred. The accounting
records for the Proprietary Funds are converted to the
accrual basis, whereby revenues are recognized when
measurable and earned, and expenses are recognized as
incurred.

A further discussion of the three methods of account-
ing (non-GAAP, modified accrual and accrual) and a
reconciliation of budget basis to GAAP basis of account-
ing may be found in Note B and Note L , respectively, of
the Notes to the Financial Statements.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

Under Ohio law, the Lucas County Board of Commis-
sioners must adopt an appropriations budget by January
1 of a given year, or adopt a temporary appropriation
measure with final passage of a permanent budget
by April 1st. No expenditure can be made from any



budgetary account without the Certificate of the County
Auditor certifying that funds are available or in the process
of collection. When a purchase order is issued or a
contract is entered into by any County department or
agency, the County Auditor encumbers the necessary
funds to pay for the expenditure. Contracts or purchase
orders are rejected and are invalid under Ohio law if
sufficient funds are not available to permit the County
Auditor to certify the transaction. A further discussion of
the budgetary accounting system and its controls may be
found in Note B of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The County Auditor issues a monthly budget report to
the Board of Commissioners and to all departments and
agencies showing the monthly and year-to-date expendi-
tures, encumbrances, and the cash balances, as well as
the unencumbered balance by fund and account. On a
quarterly basis, these reports are made public and are
available to the news media.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The management of the County is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal control designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the
assets of the County are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is
compiled to allow for the preparation of financial state-
ments in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. The design of the internal control also recog-
nizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs
and benefits requires estimates and judgments by man-
agement.

As arecipient of federal and state financial assistance,
the County is responsible for ensuring that adequate
internal control is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs.
This internal control is subject to periodic evaluation by
management.

CASH MANAGEMENT

- The County Treasurer utilizes cash management and
forecasting techniques and procedures to provide for
efficient and optimum use of the County’s cash resources
as permitted by applicable State of Ohio law.

Among the County’s many investments, the County
participates in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio
(STAR OHIO) Investment pool. The statewide investment
pool is administered by the Treasurer of the State of Ohio.

Certain deposits are collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust depart-
ment or agent but not in the County’s name. The pool-of
securities so pledged must have a current market value at
least equal to 105% of all public monies on deposit with
the depository including the amount covered by federal
insurance.

Cash resources of all funds with the exception of
Water, Sewer, and certain Fiduciary Funds are pooled for
investment purposes. Currently, interest income derived
from these pooled resources is credited to the County’s
General Fund with the exception of the equitable share
distributed to the Self-Funded Health Insurance fund and
the Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax fund.

INVESTMENT HIGHLIGHTS
(Amounts in 000's)

Investments and Earnings 003 2002
Total investments and

Deposits at year-end $ 258,386 $ 268,165
Interest revenue 4,124 9,339
RISK MANAGEMENT

The County Risk Manager monitors and directs the
entire insurance program of Lucas County. The County
is self-insured for a portion of its general business insur-
ance and insurance coverage after $500 thousand per
occurrence.

The County participates in the State of Ohio Retro-
spective Rated Workers’ Compensation program with a
maximum liability of $300 thousand per accident.

Both programs, along with the self-funded health
program for dental benefits, provide savings with proper
risk management and loss control.



INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Included in this report on pages 14 and 15 is an
unqualified report of independent auditors rendered by
Ernst & Young LLP with respect to the basic financial
statements of the County as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2003. As part of the annual preparation of
a CAFR, the County subjects all the financial statements to
an annual independent audit. This annual audit arrange-
ment serves to strengthen the County’s accounting,
budgetary and internal control of financial and operational
systems.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR
EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The County prepared its first CAFR in 1984 in accor-
dance with the program guidelines for the Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
(Certificate) awarded by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA).
Each annual report must also satisfy generally accepted
accounting principles and disclose applicable legal compli-
ance requirements. The County was awarded the Certifi-
cate for the fiscal years ended December 31, 1984 - 2002.

The Certificate is valid for a period of one year. We
believe that our current report continues to conform to the
guidelines and requirements of the program and will be
submitted to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another Certificate.
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Lucas County,
Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2002

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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Financial Section

On May 1, 2004, The Toledo Zoo had its grand
opening of the “AFRICA”. The 12 acre site con-
tains three distinct and authentically constructed
areas; a town, village, and the bush.

The free roaming 5 acre animal exhibit is home to the
Masai giraffe, Grant's zebra, East African crowned
cranes, Impala, Greater kudu, Abyssinian blue-winged
geese, and several other species.

— 13 —

Visitors may enjoy the new Safari railway which offers
majestic views as it encircles the animal exhibits, or the
scenic overlook of the grasslands from the Karamu dining
area.

The Toledo Zoo is supported by 2 county-wide property
tax levies.
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Report of Independent Auditors

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lucas County, Ohio as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2003, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component units.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented
component units, is based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the discretely presented
component units were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lucas
County, Ohio, as of December 31, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position and the
cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General,
Job and Family Services, Board of Mental Retardation, and Children Services Board Funds for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.

A Member Practice of Ernst & Young Global

0405-0541485 — 14 -
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Page 2

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 16 through 22 is not a required part of the
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries to management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 7,
2004 on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests
of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical
tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial

statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.
St + MLLP

May 7, 2004
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

The discussion and analysis of Lucas County’s financial
performance provides an overall review of the County’s
financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2003.
The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the
County’s financial performance as a whole. Readers
should also review the transmittal letter, and the basic
financial statements to enhance their understanding of the
County’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2003 are as follows:

J The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the
close of the year ended December 31, 2003, by
$572,902 (net assets). Of this amount, $313,530
may be used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations
to citizens and creditors.

. The County’s total net assets increased by $13,487,
which is 2.5% of the net assets at the beginning of the
year 2003.

. At the end of the current fiscal year, the County’'s
governmental funds reported a combined ending fund
balance of $161,165, an increase of $5.2 million from
the prior year. Of this amount, $117,485 is available
for spending (unreserved fund balance) on behalf of its
citizens.

. At the end of the current year, unreserved fund
balance for the general fund was $35,678, which
represents a decrease of less than 1% from the prior
year, and represents 34% of total general fund
expenditures.

. Lucas County’s total debt decreased by $5,636 during
the current year. The key factor for this decrease was
a net reduction of $5.3 million in the retirement and
issuance of various purpose improvement notes.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial
statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand
Lucas County as a financial whole or as an entire
operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide
an increasingly detailed look at specific financial
conditions.

— 16 —

The County’s basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) County-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

County - Wide Financial Statements

The County-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

The statement of net assets presents information on all
of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. The statement
of activities presents information showing how the
County’s net assets changed during the current year.
These statements include all assets and liabilities using
the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting
used by the privdte sector companies. This basis of
accounting takes into account all of the current year’s
revenues and expenses regardless of when the cash is
received or paid.

These two statements report the County’s net assets
and the change in those assets. This change in net
assets is important because it tells the reader whether, for
the County as a whole, the financial position of the County
has improved or diminished. However, in evaluating the
overall position of the County, nonfinancial information
such as changes in the County’s tax base and the
condition of County capital assets will also need to be
evaluated.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities, the County is divided into three kinds of
activities:

¢ Governmental Activities-Most of the County’s services
are reported here including public safety, social
services programs, administration, and all
departments with the exception of our Water and
Sewer funds and Wastewater Treatment.



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

L4 Business-Type Activities- These services have a
charge based upon the amount of usage. The County
charges fees to recoup the cost of the entire operation
of our Water and Sewer and Wastewater Treatment
Plants as well as all capital expenses associated with
these facilities.

¢ Component Units- The County includes financial data
of the Toledo MudHens Baseball Club, Inc., Lott
industries, Inc., and Preferred Properties, Inc., These
component units are described in Note A of the Notes
to the Financial Statements. The component units are
separate and may buy, sell lease and mortgage
property in their own name and can sue or be sued in
their own name.

The County-wide Financial Statements can be found on
pages 23 - 25 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objects. The County,
like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the
County can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. Fund
financial reports provide detailed information about the
County’s major funds. Based on restriction on the use of
monies, the County has established many funds which
account for the multitude of services provided to our
residents. However, these fund financial statements focus
on the County’s most significant funds. In the case of
Lucas County, our major funds are the General, Children
Services Board, Board of Mental Retardation, Job and
Family Services, Capital Improvements, Debt Service,
Water Supply System, Sewer System, and Wastewater
Treatment.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to
account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. However, unlike the Government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on current sources and uses of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available atthe end of the fiscal year. Such
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information may be useful in evaluating government’s
near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower
than the government-wide financial statements, it is useful
to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the County’s near-term financial decisions. Both
the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmentat activities.

The County maintains several individual governmental
funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheetand in the governmental
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the major funds, which were identified earlier.
Data from the other governmental funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund
data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere
in this report. The governmental fund financial statements
can be found on pages 26 - 36 of this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its
general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided for the general fund to demonstrate
compliance with this budget.

Proprietary Funds: The County maintains two different
types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements.
The County uses enterprise funds to account for its Water
and Sewer and Wastewater Treatment operations.
Internal Service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
County’s various functions. The County uses internal
service funds to account for its self-insurance programs,
vehicle maintenance, telephone system, central supplies,
and worker’'s compensation programs. Because these
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included with
governmental activities in the County-wide financial
statements. The proprietary fund financial statements can
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be found on pages 38 - 45 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds: Are used to account for resources held
for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements because the resources of those funds
are not available to support the County’s own programs.
The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that
of the proprietary funds. The fiduciary fund financial
statement can be found on page 46 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements: The notes provide
additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the County-wide and
fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 50 - 77 of this report.

Other Information: In addition to the basic financial
statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents combining and individual fund statements and
schedules which can be found on pages 80 - 173 of this
report.

County-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a
useful indicator of a County’s financial position. In the
case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by
$572,902 ($483,036 in governmental activities and
$89,866 in business type activities) as of December 31,
2003. This is an increase of $10,803 (2.3%) for
governmental activities, and $2,584 (3.0%) for business
type activities. By far, the largest portion of the County’s
net assets (64%) reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment,
infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

~Table 1
Net Assets
Governmental Business-
Activities Type Activities Total
Assets 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Currentandotherassets. . . ............ ... $369,845 $375,062 $17,585 $17,095 $387,430 $392,1577
Capital assets,net....................... 274,242 278,844 91,858 91,095 366,100 369,939
TotalAssets ..............coviiinnt. 644,087 653,906 109,443 108,190 753,530 762,096

Liabilities
Current and other liabilities . .. ............. (54,463) (70,410) (838) (1,308) (55,301) (71,718)
Long-term liabilities due within one year. ... .. (11,814) (12,870) (703) (646) (12,517) (13,516)
Long-term liabilities due in more than one year . (94,774) (98,493) (18.036) (18,954) (112,810) (117,447)

Total liabilities . . ........... .. ... oo (161,051) (181,773) {19.577) (20,908) (180,628) {202.681)
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, netofdebt ..... .. 167,654 160,498 73,119 71,495 240,773 231,993
Restricted: _

Capitalprojects . .. ...........covvin... 2,057 554 - - 2,057 554

Debtservice .......................... 16,542 12,907 - - 16,542 12,907
Unrestricted . . .............. .. ...t 296,783 298,174 16,747 15,787 313,530 313,961

Total NetAssets. ...................... $483,036 $472 133 $89,866 $87,282 $572.902 $559,415
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An additional portion of the County’s net assets (3.2%)
represents resources that are subject to restrictions on
how they can be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted assets ($313,530) may be used to meet the
County’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

As of December 31, 2003, the County is able to report
positive balances in both the governmental and business -
type activities of $483,036 and $89,866 respectively. Table
2 (on following page) provides a summary of the changes
in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Governmental Activities

Human Services accounts for $119,365 of the $433,820
total expenses for governmental activities, or 27% of total
expenses. This is an increase of 7.2% over last year.
The next largest program is Health, accounting for
$89,542 which represents 21% of total governmental
expenses. This is a decrease of 3% from last year.

Tax revenue accounts for $180,161 of the $433,589
total revenue for governmental activity, or 42% of total
revenue. Operating grants was the largest program
revenue accounting for $175,913, or 41% of total
governmental revenue. These are decreases of 4.6% and
6.0% respectively. The major recipients of
intergovernmental revenue were Job and Family Services,
receiving $65,010, and Children Services Board, receiving
$18,787.

The County’s direct charges to users of governmental
services made up $26,507 or 6.0% of total governmental
revenue. These charges are for fees for real estate
transfers, fees associated with the collection of property
taxes, fines and forfeitures related to judicial activity, and
licences and permits associated with building inspectors.
The revenue for these charges increased by 5.5% over
last year.

— 19 —

Business- type Activities

The net assets for the business - type activities for the
County increased by $2,584 during the year 2003. Major
revenue sources were charges for service of $12,646 and
capital contributions of $4,318 that resulted from
assessment on construction projects. Charges for
services increased by 0.9%, and capital contributions
decrease by 8.7%.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental funds: The focus of the County’s
governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing the County’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of the County’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal years. :

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the
County. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved
fund balance of the general fund was $35,678, while total
fund balance reached $36,370. This is a decrease of
0.9% and 3.2%, respectively. As a measure of the
general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total
fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents
33.6 percent to total general fund expenditures, while total
fund balance represents 34.2 percent of that same
amount.
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Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges forservices . . .............
Operating grants and contributions . . . .
Capital grants and contributions . . . ...
General Revenues:

Investmentincome. ............. ...

Grants, contributions,and charges
not restricted to specific programs. . . ..

Program Expenses
General Government:
Legislative and executive . ..........
Judicalsystem .. .,...............
Publicsafety. . ....................
Publicworks ......... ... ... ...,

Humanservices .. .................
Conservation and recreation . . ........
Miscellaneous . . ...................
Interest and fiscal charges . . .. . .. o
Sanitaryengineer. . ................
Water supply system . .. ............
Wastewater treatment . .. ...........
Sewersystem.....................
Solidwaste .. ......................
Parking facilites .. . ................
Total Expenses .. ................
Increase in Net Assets before Transfers .
Transfers .. ...,
IncreaseinNetAssets . .............
Net Assets-beginning .. .............
Net Assets-ending . ................

DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-
Activities Type Activities Total

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
$ 26,507 $25,137 $ 12,646 $12,534 $39,153 $37,671
175,913 187,212 1,575 1,785 177,488 188,997
1,839 734 - - 1,839 734
180,161 188,833 - - 180,161 188,833
4,124 8,468 - - 4,124 8,468
7,541 1,482 4,318 4,728 11,859 6,210
47,504 38,580 - - 47 504 38,580
443,589 450,446 18,539 19,047 462,128 469,493
41,924 40,040 - - 41,924 40,040
54,861 54,451 - - 54,861 54,451
59,439 57,112 - - 59,439 57,112
35,167 27,746 - - 35,167 27,746
89,542 92,265 - - 89,542 92,265
119,365 111,321 - - 119,365 111,321
8,950 6,052 - - 8,950 6,052
18,732 15,831 - - 18,732 15,831
5,840 6,810 - - 5,840 6,810
- - 4,005 3,751 4,005 3,751
- - 2,511 2,369 2,511 2,369
- - 4,339 3,869 4,339 3,869
- - 2,126 2,182 2,126 2,182
- - 1,730 1,754 1,730 1,754
- - 110 100 110 100
433,820 411,628 14,821 14,025 448,641 425,653
9,769 38,818 3,718 5,022 13,487 43,840
1,134 95 {1,134) (95) - -
10,903 38,913 2,584 4,927 13,487 43,840
472,133 433,220 87,282 82,355 559,415 515,575
$483,036 $472,133 $89,866 $87,282 $572,902 $559,415
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The fund balance of the County’s general fund
decreased by $1,194 during the current fiscal year. Key
factors in this reduction are as follows:

J Total revenues decreased by $4.5 million. A
decrease in investment income of $4.3 million, and
intergovernmental revenue of $1.6 million was offset
by anincrease in miscellaneous income of $1.2 miliion

. Adecrease of $3.5 miilion in transfers from the general
fund to other funds compensated for an increase in
total expenditures of $1.7 million.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $16.5
million, all of which is reserved for the payment of debt
service. The net increase in fund balance during the
current year in the debt service fund was $3.6 million.
This is primarily due to additional transfers from the
general fund.

The other major governmental funds of the County are
Children Services Board, Board of Mental Retardation and
Developmental Disabilities, and Job and Family Services.

The fund balance of the Children Services Board
increased $1.9 million to $34.5 million. The increase is
due to an increase in intergovernmental revenue of $3.2
million primarily from the State of Ohio.

The fund balance of the Board of Mental Retardation
increased $4.3 million to 12 million. The increase is due
to a new tax levy that was collected beginning in 2003.

The fund balance of Job and Family Services decreased
by $6.8 million to $2.4 million. The decrease is due to
expenditures increasing more than state revenue due to
the timing of the grantor agency whose fiscal year does
not coincide with the County’s calendar year.

Enterprise funds. The County’s enterprise funds
provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water Supply System at
the end of the year amounted to $2.8 million, those for the
Wastewater Treatment Plant amounted to $4.5 million,
and for the Sewer System was $3.3 million. The total
growth in net assets for these were $0.2 million, $0.4
million and a decrease $.1 million respectively. Other
factors concerning the finances of these two funds have
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already been addressed in the discussion of the County’s
business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights.

Differences between the original budget and the final
amended budget was $4 million. This was due to
decrease in sales tax and investment income due to a
sluggish economy. Current appropriations were
decreased accordingly.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The County’s capital assets for its
governmental and business type activities as of
December 31, 2003, amounts to $366.1 million (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
asset includes tland, buildings structures and
improvements, furniture, fixtures equipment, and
infrastructure. The total decrease in the County’s capital
assets for the current fiscal year was 1.0 percent (a 1.7
percent decrease for governmental activities and a 0.8
percent increase for business-type activities.)

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year
included the following:

. Completed construction of a $6 million Court of
Appeals building.

. Completed a $1.1 million imaging project for the
County Recorders’s Office.

. Completed $2.6 million in infrastructure projects, with
$10.9 million remaining in construction in progress

. Invested an additional $2.1 million in a new
Payroll/Human resource system, totaling $6.8 million

Additional information on the County's capital assets can
be found in Note F.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the County had total bonded debt outstanding of $82.9
million. Of this amount, $50.5 million comprises debt
backed by the full faith and credit of the government and
$13.4 million is special assessment debt for which the
government is liable in the event of default by the property
owners subject to the assessment. The remaining $19
million is non-tax revenue bonds. The County also had
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outstanding $20.6 million of Ohio Water Development

Authority (OWDA) loans and $3.0 million Ohio Public

Works Commission (OPWC) loans.

The County’s total bonded debt decreased by $2.7
million during the current fiscal year. This was due to
required debt service payments offset by a bond issue of
$1 million for special assessments, and $6.2 million for the
Court of Appeals Building.

The County maintains an “A+” rating from Standard &
Poor's and Fitch and an “A1" rating from Moody’s for
general obligation debt. The bonds for the baseball
stadium have been rated “A2" by Moody's, “A” by
Standard and Poor’s, and “A+” by Fitch.

State statutes limit the amount of unvoted general
obligation debt the County may issue to one percent of its
total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for
Lucas County is $51.2, which is significantly in excess of
the County’s outstanding unvoted general obligation debt.

Additional information on the County’s long-term debt
can be found in Note H.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

. The unemployment rate for the County is
currently 7.8 percent, which is a increase from the
rate of 6.9 percent a year ago. The state average
unemployment rate was 6.1, and the national
average was 6.0.

. Inflationary trends in the region compare
favorably to national indices.

These factors were considered in preparing the County’s
budget for the 2004 fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund
balance in the general fund was $35,678. The County
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has prepared a budget for 2004 appropriating only $3.3
million of the unreserved balance. The County prepared
a balanced budget for 2004, by reducing appropriations,
without an increase in taxes or an increase in rates in the
enterprise funds.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general
overview of Lucas County's finances for all those with an
interest in the governments’ finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report,
or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to:

Larry A. Kaczala, Lucas County Auditor
One Government Center

Suite 600

Toledo, OH 434604-2255
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Primary Government

Governmental  Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents ...................... $ 19,339 § 1,291 $ 20,630 $ 2,871
Pooled investments ... 183,897 11,833 195,730 6,265
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) . ... 141,361 4,439 145,800 1,444
Due fromotherfunds ...........coviiiii 2 ) - -
Due from othergovernments ........................ 24,472 - 24,472 -
Prepaid eXpenses .............cooiiiniii - - - 196
Inventory of materials and supplies ...................... 774 24 798 430
Capital assets not being depreciated ....................... 28,365 402 28,767 1,296
Capital assets being depreciated (net) ...................... 245,877 91,456 337,333 14,370
Total assets .....coovvveoriiiiiiiiiie 644,087 109,443 753,530 26,872
Liabilities:
Accounts payable ... 14,0869 340 14,409 2,284
Accrued wages and benefits ... 19,950 498 20,448 458
Due to other govermments .................. 1,847 - 1,847 -
Matured bonds payable .................. 16 - 16 -
Matured interest payable ....................... 18 - 18 -
Deferred revenue .............ccocoiiiiii, - - - 516
Claims payable ...............ccccoi i 8,148 - 8,148 -
Notes payable ..., 10,415 - 10,415 27
Long-term liabilities
Due withinoneyear ............c.......ocinn 11,814 703 12,517 160
Dueinmorethanoneyear ............................ 94,774 18,036 112,810 6,893
Total liabilities ........ccocooiiiii 161,051 19,577 180,628 10,338
Net assets:
invested in capital assets, net of
related debt ... 167,654 73,119 240,773 -
Restricted for:
Capital projects ............coovceeiiii 2,057 - 2,057 -
Debtservice ..........coovvviiiii 16,542 - 16,542 -
Unrestricted ........ooooviiviiiiii e 296,783 16,747 313,530 16,534
Total net assets ........cooveviiiviiiiiiiiieiie 483,086 $ 89,866 $ 572,902 § 16,534

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General government -
Legislative and executive.................... $ 41,924 § 19,770  § 4,35  $ -
Judicial...........oco 54,861 3,894 15,314 889
Publicsafety...................o 59,439 853 10,448
Publicworks................co. 35,167 191 15,242 700
Health.................oi 89,542 1,491 48,183
Humanservices.....................cieiinn. 119,365 82,254
Conservation and recreation................... 8,950 308 116 250
Miscellaneous.............................L 18,732
Interest and fiscal charges..................... 5,840
Total governmental activities................ 433,820 26,507 175,913 1,839
Business-type activities:
Sanitary engineer. ..................c.c 4,005 3,951 146
Water supply ..o 2,511 840 225
Wastewater treatment.......................... 4,339 5,025 -
SEWEI. ... i 2,126 625 1,204
Solidwaste................co 1,730 1,908 . -
Parking facilities.......................o 110 297 -

Total business-type activities............... 14,821 12,646 1,575 -
Total primary government............................ $ 448 641 $ 39,153 $ 177,488 § 1,839
Component Units:

Lott Industries..............coco $ 12,490 $ 5803 §$ 7,005 § -
Preferred Properties.....................oo 982 432 1774
ToledoMudHens........................... 8,328 3,771
Total component units....................o.coeiin $ 21,800 $ 10,006 7779 $ -
General Revenues:
Property TaX. .. ..o
SalES TaX. .. i
O R TaX. i
Charges for services not restricted to specific programs...............
Intergovernmental revenue not restricted to specific programs.......
Investment Income............... TR
MISCEllaNEOUS. ... ...
Capital contributions not restricted to specific programs..................
TraNS OIS,
Total general revenues and transfers.....................cc
Changesinnetassets............ccc.co i,
Net assets - beginning. ..o
Netassets-ending..........oooiii i

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ (17,798) $ - $ (17,798) $ -
(34,764) (34,764)
(48,138) (48,138)
(19,034) (19,034)
(39,868) (39,868)
(37,111) (37,111)
(8,276) (8,278)
(18,732) (18,732)
(5,840) (5,840)
(229,561) - (229,561) -
92 92
(1,446) (1,446)
686 686
(297) (297)
178 178
187 187
- (600) (600) -
(229,561) (600) (230,161) -
318
224
(4,557)
- - - (4,015)
106,578 106,578
.... 67,087 67,087
..... 8,496 6,496
- 33 33
..... 7,508 7,508
..... 4,124 4,124
47,504 47,504 5,103
- 4,318 4,318
1,134 (1,134) -
240,464 3,184 243,648 5,103
10,903 2,584 13,487 1,088
.... 472,133 87,282 559,415 15,446

..... $ 483,036 $ 89,866 § 572,902 §$ 16,5634

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Children Board of Job and
Services Mental Family
General Board Retardation Services
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents .............cc...coecvienne, $ 2502 $ 3240 $ 1,153 § 735
Pooled investments ..........ccoiviiiviiiiiic 23,315 29,721 10,576 6,740
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectibles)
TAXES . veeiinien i e 35,800 19,321 33,776 -
ACCOUNES L.eviviiiie i e e e aanas 373 26 - -
Special assessments ...........oiviiiiiniin i 2 - - -
Accrued interest .......cocooiiiiiiiinii s 732 - - -
LOANS it - - - -
Due from other governments ..............cococvviviiiiinnnnns 6,395 4,437 3,298 12
Inventory: materials and supplies ........cc.coovvviiiinnnn. . - - - -
TOtal @SSOLS .vvveiriieieii e 3 69,119 $ 56,745 $ 48,803 $ 7,487
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable ...........ccovviiiiinc $ 1,565 $ 1,414  § 453 § 4,656
Accrued wages and benefits ... 1,392 379 582 414
Due to other funds ...........c.ccoviiiviiiiiiiiiieeen, 50 3’ - -
Due to other governments ...........cocovvviivinecniinnnnnns 1,847 - - -
Deferred revenue .........c.ccovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiee 27,895 20,420 35,804 -
Matured bonds payable ...............cocceiiiiiiininnnnnn. - - - -
Matured interest payable ..............ccovviiiiiiiinn, - - - -
Notes payable ......oovvvviiiiiiiiii e - - - -
Total Habilities ...ovvvervirri e, 32,749 22,216 36,839 5,070
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances ........ccoovvviiiiiiii 692 1,069 1,802 2,630
INVENIOTY .ot - - - -
Loans receivable .........ccovviiiiniirii i - - - -
Debt service .....c.coviiiiiiiii e - - - -
Unreserved (deficit), reported in:
General fund .........ocoiiiiiiii 35,678 - - -
Special revenue funds ...........cccovviniinnnci - 33,460 10,162 (213)
Capital projects funds .........cccoovviiiinniciiniin, - - - -
Total fund balances ........ccovviviiiiiiiiiiiins 36,370 34,529 11,964 2,417
Total liabilities and fund balances .................co..ovee. $ 69,119 § 56,745 § 48,803 § 7,487

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Nonmajor Total
Capital Debt Governmental Governmental
Improvements Service Funds Funds
$ 1,927  $ 1,448  § 4596 § 15,601
17,679 13,283 48,289 149,603
- - 29,787 118,684
- - 255 654
- 21,200 - 21,202
- - - 732
- - 77 77
49 1,739 8,542 24,472
- - 466 466
$ 19,655 § 37670 % 92,012 $ 331491
$ 811  § - 8 4,762 $ 13,661
- - 597 3,364
- - 15 68
- - - 1,847
- 21,094 35,724 140,937
- 16 - 16
- 18 - 18
10,415 - - 10,415
11,226 21,128 41,098 170,326
6,557 - 13,845 26,595
- - 466 466
- - 77 77
- 16,542 - 16,542
- - - 35,678
- - 36,341 79,750
1,872 - 185 2,057
8,429 16,542 50,914 161,165
$ 19,655 § 37670 % 92,012 $ 331,491

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES
TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Total governmental fund balances $ 161,165

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 274,241

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost
of insurance and other services to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets. (less 168 net capital assets
included above as capital assets used in governmental activities.) 29,604

Long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and therefore deferred in the funds. 140,937

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, OWDA loans,

OPWC loans, capital leases, compensated absences, and landfill obligation
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are

not reported in the funds. (122,911)

Net assets of governmental activities $ 483,036

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Children Board of
Services Mental
General Board Retardation
Revenues:
TAXES ..o $ 86,932 §$ 19235 $ 32,439
Charges for services .......................... 13,178 - -
Licenses and permits ......................... 54 - -
Finesand forfeits ............................... 518 - -
Special assessments ... 25 - -
Intergovernmental revenue .................... 19,398 18,787 3,490
Investment income .................. 4,016 - -
Miscellaneous revenue ........................ 4247 3,939 8,865
Totalrevenues ............................... 128,368 41,961 44794
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive ................ 25,153 - -
dudicial.......... 40,079 - -
Publicsafety....................o 36,374 - -
Publicworks............ococeei 245 - -
Health. ... .. ... ... 867 - 40,459
Humanservices................................. 1,578 40,070 -
Conservation and recreation.................... 1,470 - -
Miscellaneous......................ooos 471 -
Capitaloutlay.....................cc - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirement............................... - - -
Interest and fiscal charges....................... - - -
Total expenditures............................... 106,237 40,070 40,459
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures.................... 22,131 1,891 4,335
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
OPWCloans..............cocoii - - -
Bondsissued.................... - - -
Capitalleases...................cocooc, 52 - -
Transfersin.....................c. - -
Transfersout...............coocoiiii i, (23,377) - -
Total other financing sources (uses). ... (23,325) - -
Net change in fund balances.................. (1,194) 1,891 4,335
Fund balance at beginning of year............. 37,564 32,638 7,629
Fund balance atend of year.................... $ 36,370 $ 34,529 $ 11,964

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Job and Nonmajor Total
Family Capital Debt Governmental Governmental
Services Improvements Service Funds Funds

- % - 8 5303 % 32521 $ 176,430

- - - 12,631 25,809

- - - - 54

- - - 159 677

- 302 1,436 - 1,763
65,010 902 - 77,014 184,601
- - - - 4,016

3 8,720 5,695 16,035 47,504
65,013 9,924 12,434 138,360 440,854
- - - 10,865 36,018

- - - 14,603 54,682

- - - 20,663 57,037

- - - 16,583 16,828

- - - 47,623 88,949
74,947 - - 3,707 120,302
- - - 7,406 8,876

- - 1 18,332 18,804

- 18,878 - 5,900 24,778

- - 12,319 - 12,319

- 237 5,602 - 5,839
74,947 19,115 17,922 145,682 444,432
(9,934) (9,191) (5,488) (7,322) (3,578)
- - - 441 441

- 7,250 - - 7,250

- - - 8 60
3,060 2,084 9,123 10,841 25,108
(5) - - (742) (24,124)
3,055 9,334 9,123 10,548 8,735
(6,879) 143 3,635 3,226 5,157
9,296 8,286 12,907 47,688 156,008
2,417  § 8429 § 16,542  § 50,914 § 161,165

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which depreciation exceeds capital outlay
in the current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. This
amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported
with governmental activities.

5,157

(4,572)

2,626

4,568

1,332

1,792

Change in net assets of governmental activities $

10,903

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Budgeted Amount
Variance
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES.ccveeveeeresereinrereee e eeeresreneneeerer e sar s $ 88,104 $ 86,904 $ 86,575 $ (329)
Charges for services..........cccoevrenneiccnnnens 12,248 12,247 13,314 1,067
Licenses and permits..........ccccoovvvieriennnen. 53 53 48 5)
Fines and forfeits...........ccoccevercrmeenniennnnn, 559 559 519 (40)
Special assessments.........cccovevvevnnnininens 13 13 24 11
Intergovernmental revenue............c.co..e.... 18,199 18,199 18,479 280
Investment iINCOME........cccceriiierciiniinriieeeans 9,895 7,095 6,390 (705)
Miscellaneous revenue........cccecevicrernieiceieens 2,677 2,678 4,271 1,593
Total revenues..........cervevervrevrvermrererennenes 131,748 127,748 129,620 1,872
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive..................... 30,032 28,086 27,294 792
JUICIAL....veeeeieeeee e 41,267 40,778 40,452 326
Public safety........ccveernernemncenincrnnnicnns 38,892 37,552 37,131 421
Public WOrks......cocecvceeriiinrinnnininienn, 323 313 259 54
Health.......ooooviiiii e 1,186 987 847 140
HUMAN SEerviCes....covvvirinierieieiiiriiiieieneenes 1,563 1,636 1,568 68
Conservation and recreation.................. 1,482 1,573 1,470 103
Miscellaneous...........ccceeervveernrernecrmvcniennn 2,909 3,185 2,120 1,065
Total expenditures.........cccovviivvinnniieiinnn 117,654 114,110 111,141 2,969
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 14,094 13,638 18,479 4,841
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in........c..cccvcevvininne 2,000 2,000 - {(2,000)
Operating transfers (out).........c.ovevvneniinnn. (21,948) (28,153) (22,062) 6,091
Total other financing sources (uses)........ (19,948) (26,153) (22,062) 4,091
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses .... (5,854) (12,515) (3,583) 8,932
Fund balance at beginning of year................ 25,040 25,040 25,040 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......... 2,336 2,336 2,336 -
Fund balance at end of year.........ccccocceernnnene $ 21,5622 $ 14,861 $ 23,793 $ 8,932

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
— 33 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CHILDREN SERVICES BOARD - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
L b TP $ 19,426 $ 19,427 $ 19,263 $ (164)
Intergovernmental revenue...........ccooevevvieiiiienennnn. 15,492 15,492 15,690 198
Miscellaneous revenue...........o.oveeeeiiiveninnensrnnnnn. 3,335 3,335 3,976 641
Total revenue...............cccueveeeieiiniiiiiiinieiinnne. 38,253 38,254 38,929 675
Expenditures:
Current:
Human services
Personal Services .....cocvvuvuviiiniiiiiieeeiaiaeanans 21,771 21,804 21,279 525
Materials and supplies ..........ccoovevvivineirinneninnnn, 1,105 1,105 982 123
Charges and Services ...........covcvvevvivniencrnnnennns 19,150 19,116 18,355 761
Capital outlay and equipment ..................oue.eeee. 891 891 548 343
Total expenditures................ococcoviiiiiiivenineann., 42,917 42,916 . 41,164 1,752
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (4,664) (4,662) (2,235) 2,427
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 32,211 32,211 32,211 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 1,214 1,214 1,214 -
Fund balance atend of year..............ccccevenvennen. $ 28,761 $ 28,763 $ 31,190 $ 2,427

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
BOARD OF MENTAL RETARDATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES . eenvreeineveerieeeeenerre ettt r s aaaanes $ 32,486 $ 32,486 $ 32,468 $ (18)
Charges for ServiCes.........vvviiiireeeiieiiiiniinee 65 65 - (65)
Intergovernmental revenue...........cccoooeviiniiiiiiennn 4,016 4,016 4,185 169
Miscellaneous reVENUE. .......c.vvvvveeeeeenenrrnreinenes 6,188 6,188 7,452 1,264
TOtal FeVENUE. ..o 42,755 42,755 44,105 1,350
Expenditures:
Current:
Health ‘ .
Personal SEIVICES ....vvvveiiiiiiiiiiieeieiiiiiaaeanas 35,926 35,926 34,669 1,257
Materials and supplies .........cocovieiiiieen. 1,527 1,527 1,051 476
Charges and ServiCes ..........coeeiirriineiinecnnnnnn. 10,422 10,422 7,848 2,574
Capital outlay and equipment .............coovvevinnene 1,013 1,013 665 348
Total expenditures.............ooveveiiiiiininiineennnens 48,888 48,888 44,233 4,655
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (6,133) (6,133) (128) 6,005
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 5727 5,727 5,727 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 3,024 3,024 3,024 -
Fund balance at end of year............c..oovveiiiinnnnn, $ 2,618 $ 2,618 $ 8,623 $ 6,005

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
JOB AND FAMILY SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance witt

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget:
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts _(Negative)
Revenues:

Miscellaneous revenue...............ccceeevvveeveennnn... $ - $ - $ 3 $ 3

Intergovernmental revenue................ccoeeeeuneeran... 71,540 71,540 66,194 (5,346)
Total revenue..............cccc..cooiuueeiviiiiiiaisinnniann, 71,540 71,540 66,197 (5,343)

Expenditures:
Current:
Human services
Personal Services. ....... co..vveeiieeieeeiesiensnivnnnn, 24,839 30,928 30,450 478
Materials and supplies..............ccoeeivvivnnreeennnn.., 560 529 480 49
Charges and Services. ..........cevveveveveeeeinnennnnn, 49,678 50,392 48,393 1,999
Capital outlay and equipment................c..uvee..... 199 428 421 7
Total expenditures...............c...ccoeeeviiieiiinnnnn... 75,276 82,277 79,744 2,533
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (3,736) (10,737) (13,547) (2,810)
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in............ccooooovviiieee e, 3,210 3,210 3,061 (149)
Total other financing sources........................... 3,210 3,210 3,061 (149)
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures................................ (526) (7,527) (10,486) (2,959)

Fund balance at beginning of year........................ 13,391 13,391 13,391 -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................. 761 761 761 -

Fund balance at end of year................cceuveeenenn., $ 13,626 $ 6,625 $ 3,666 $  (2,959)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise

Water
Supply Wastewater Sewer
System Treatment System
Assets:
Current assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents................... $ 235 $ 308 $ 268
Pooled investments...................cco 2,150 2,826 2,462
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectables) 504 1,688 562
Due from other funds....................c - - -
Inventory: materials and supplies................... - 24 -
Total current assets...........c.cooeveviniiiiinens 2,889 4,846 3,292
Noncurrent assets - capital assets:
Land......cooii e 200 39 10
Land improvements..............c.cooco, 58,047 - 61,113
Buildings, structures, and improvements......... 2,839 17,442 -
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment................. 1,641 9,285 -
lLess accumulated depreciation..................... (23,971) (13,410) (24,128)
Total noncurrent assets......................... 38,756 13,356 36,995
Total @assets......ooovvviiiiii $ 41,645 § 18,202 § 40,287
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable...............c.co $ 29 $ 207 $ 11
Accrued wages and benefits........................ - 132 -
Duetootherfunds..........c....coiiii - - -
Claims payable - current..................c..l - - -
Current portion of long-term debt.................... 148 409 114
Total current liabilities...................c.cels 177 748 125
Noncurrent liabilities:
Obligations under capital leases....................... - - -
OWDA loans payable................c.coooviiininnns 4,907 9,269 2,413
Claims payable - noncurrent.......................... - - -
OPWC loans payable....................oooiiins - 178 -
Total noncurrent liabilities........................... 4,907 9,447 2,413
Total liabilities.............cccooviiiiii e, 5,084 10,195 2,538
‘Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt....... 33,701 3,500 34,468
Unrestricted. ... e, 2,860 4,507 3,281
Total netassets............ooooviin 36,561 8,007 37,749
Total liabilities and net assets........................ $ 41645 §$ 18,202 $ 40,287

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Funds Governmental
Nonmajor Activities -
Enterprise Internal Service

Funds Total Funds

$ 480 $ 1,291 § 3,738
4,395 11,833 34,294

1,685 4,439 13

- - 71

- 24 308

6,560 17,587 38,424

153 402 83

- 119,160 -

3,006 23,287 30

2,319 13,245 1,206
(2,727) (64,236) (1,151)

2,751 91,858 168

$ 9311 § 109,445 § 38,692
$ 93 $ 340 $ 570
366 498 96

2 2 1

- - 4,244

32 703 -

493 1,543 4,911

- - 5

1,269 17,858 -

- - 3,904

- 178 -

1,269 18,036 3,909

1,762 19,579 8,820

1,450 73,119 162

6,099 16,747 29,610

7,549 89,866 29,772

$ 9311 § 109445 $ 38,592

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise

Water
Supply Wastewater Sewer
System Treatment System
Operating revenues:
Charges for Services.......c.cuvevnnnnininininann, $ 840 § 5025 $ 625
MiISCEIIANEOUS.......c.coiiiveieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseaerererereeeeees 225 - 1,204
Total operating revenues................... 1,065 5,025 1,829
Operating expenses:
Personal services.........ccocvvniviieinnnnen, - 1,166 -
Contract Services.........coccvveeieeririninnnn, 317 1,331 343
Materials and supplies..........ccccerernnnn 18 325 -
Heat, light and power..........cocoveviiennnnan 363 447 103
Depreciation............ccocvcemriercninnienseninins 1,507 457 1,506
Miscellaneous..........ccocomiiniineiiniiinin e, - - 1
Employee medical benefit.................cooiinn, - .- -
Total operating expenses.................... 2,205 3,726 1,953
Operating income (10SS).......ccceeercnenne. (1,140) 1,299 (124)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest iNCOME....c.cooviniiiiii s - - -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets............c..cceunue - - -
Interest and fiscal charges.............cocveuen. (306) (613) (173)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)......... (306) (613) (173)
Income (loss) before contributions and
operating transfers...........cccoeviiiniiinin (1,446) 686 (297)
Capital contributions..............cooniiininenninn 2,291 - 2,027
TranNSTEr iMoo - - -
Transfer OUL.......occc i e - - (1,134)
Change in net assets........cccovevvveeincenennn, 845 686 596
Net assets at beginning of year........c.....cocvvvnen. 35,716 7,321 37,153
Net assets atend of year..........coccevvveveciiiiniannnn $ 36,561 § 8,007 $ 37,749

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
— 40 —



Funds Governmental
Nonmajor Activities -
Enterprise Internal Service

Funds Total Funds
$ 6,156 $ 12646 $ 35,421
146 1,575 202
6,302 14,221 35,623
3,549 4,715 1,290
1,534 3,525 3,187
298 641 934
40 953 -
290 3,760 57
49 50 47
- - 28,573
5,760 13,644 34,088
542 577 1,535
- - 108
5) (5) -
(80) (1,172) (1)
(85) (1,177) 107
457 (600) 1,642
- 4,318 -
- - 150
- (1,134) -
457 2,584 1,792
7,092 87,282 27,980
$ 7549 § 89,866 $ 29,772

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Waste-
Supply Water Sewer
System Treatment System
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers...........ceovvvevivvnnnen $ 1,106 $ 4,724 $ 1,761
Cash paid to suppliers........c..ccovvvvvvvcirivinvinenenn (732) (2,184) (598)
Cash paid to employees.........c.cccvvvrvvnnvecrreennn - (1,218) -
Net cash provided by
operating activities...........ccocvverrieenncniicineeie s 374 1,322 1,163
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers Out.........ccooviviiiiin e - - (1,134)
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
financing activities.........c.cccvevvvneenenienrieceeas - - (1,134)
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Proceeds of loan... 478 - -
Principal payments OWDA Ioans (264) (776) (191)
Principal payments - OPWC loans.........c.ccceevnen.. - (14) (32)
Purchase of capital assets.........ccccceeeevvivevnnnnnnn.. - - -
Interest Paid.........ccerrvrrrrieiniese e (306) (613) (173)
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities...........ccoccevcvnveee e (92) (1,403) (396)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of investments........cc........... 1,781 3,183 3,328
Payments for investments..........cccccccovvmniinvrinnennns (1,996) (3,051) (2,940)
Interest received... - - -
Net cash provided by (used |n) mvestlng actlvmes (215) 132 388
Net increase in cash... 67 51 21
Cash and cash equwalents January 1 168 257 247
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 ............. $ 235 $ 308 $ 268

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental

Nonmajor Activities
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Total Funds
$ 6,325 $ 13916 $ 35,740
(1,960) (5,474) (31,887)
(3,677) (4,895) (1,374)
688 3,547 2,479
- (1,134) 150
- (1,134) 150
(64) (1,295) -
- (46) -
(208) (208) (34)
(80) (1,172) 1)
(352) (2,721) (35)
4,090 12,382 34,799
(4,308) (12,295) (36,583)
- - 108
(218) 87 (1,676)
118 257 918
362 1,034 2,820
$ 480 $ 1,291 $ 3,738

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

— 43 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided

by Operating Activities

Business-Type Activities

Water Waste-
Supply Water
System Treatment
Operating iNCOmMe (I08S)....c.cceeevervrireerercevenin e e, $ (1,140) $ 1,299
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation expense.........ccccccvvivvimnvencceisinesevensn 1,507 457
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable.........ccccccevvieniecvninineee e, 41 (301)
Due from other funds .........cceccoevvinivcncciviiiiee - -
INVENTOTY .t - 7)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable ..........ccccevrieniinnicniiee e, (34) (74)
Accrued wages and benefits..........ccccovceveeennnnn - (52)
Due to other funds...........cecoveiiiviviiinsiniiee e - -
Total adjustments...........cccvvivineiinie e 1,514 23
Net cash provided by
operating activities............ccecveecininrninieniee s v, 3 374 $ 1,322

Noncash capital and related
financing activities:

Enterprise funds received approximately $4.3 million of contributed fixed assets, approximately $2.3

million to the Water Supply System, and $2.0 million to the Sewer System.

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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- Enterprise Funds

Sewer

System
$ (124)

1,506

(68)

(151)

1,287

$ 1,163

Governmental

Nonmajor Activities -
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Total Funds
$ 542 577 $ 1,535
290 3,760 57
23 (305) 1)
- - 118
- (7) (191)
(31) (290) 1045
(128) (180) (1)
(8) 8) (83)
146 2,970 944
$ 688 3,547 $ 2,479

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND
DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Agency
Funds
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents................ $ 26,373
Segregated cash accounts.........c.ccoeveeiernenan 8,815
Due from other governments.................... 14,734
Total assets.......ccvvveererririiesececen $ 49,922
Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies........ccccvverveininnineene $ 24,518
Deposits held due to others.........c.cccoeivenenne 11,564
Payroll withholdings............cccooviininicniiiniinns 3,061
Accounts payable.............c..o.coi 436
Accured wages & benefits.................o...ee. 7
Due to other governments...............c..o.... 10,336
Total liabilities........ccccceeevceeeeccieeeenee. $ 49,922

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Toledo
Mud Hens Lott Preferred
Baseball Industries Properties
Club, Inc. Inc. Inc. Total
Assets:
Current assets-
Pooled cash and cash equivalents............c...ccoeeennen. $ 2,193 $ 462 $ 216 $ 2,871
Pooled investments..........ccovvinnnninnnonnnin, 195 6,070 - 6,265
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectables) accounts..........cccvviiiercniennennen. 238 1,127 79 1,444
Prepaid expenses..........cooeeee. 107 35 54 196
Inventory: materials and supplies...........cooverencnicenne. 251 179 - 430
Total current assets.......ccoevvveviieiiriinenienneonnne. 2,984 7,873 349 11,206
Noncurrent assets-
Property, plant and equipment-
LANG. ..o - 188 944 1,132
Buildings, structures and
improvements......... J OO U RTORTORP PPN - 8,643 5,891 14,534
Furniture, fixtures and equipment.........c.cocccevvevcrcinnes 2,017 4,101 148 6,266
Construction in progress.............. R . - 164 164
Less: accumulated depreciation..............ococnrererirenean. (484) (4,661) (1,285} (6,430)
Total noncurrent assets...........ccovvvvevrveiiriiniiniennn 1,533 8,271 5,862 15,666
Total @SSEIS....c.ccvivirereirirerrere v ee v $ 4,517 $ 16,144 $ 6,211 $ 26,872
Liabilities:
Current liabilities-
Accounts Payable..........c.ccviirieincninnennceeecenen $ 2,069 $ 112 $ 103 $ 2,284
Accrued wages and benefits.........c.oeeeicnninnininnne 187 271 - 458
Deferred revenue................c.... 516 - 516
Current portion of long-term debt................c.cevevinnnn. - 140 20 160
Total current liabilities..........cc.cceveeccervarennene 2,772 523 123 3,418
Noncurrent liabilities-
Notes Payable........ccovvvirierecinicincnoninneven e - - 27 27
Bonds Payable - 3,910 - 3,910
Other long term obligations...........ccccceenenneciaenn, - 20 2,963 2,983
Total noncurrent liabilities-...........c.ccccceecevnee e - 3,930 2,990 6,920
Total liabilities. ......ccerrererreeienrenirrerenessrierennnens 2,772 4,453 3,113 10,338
Net Assets:
Unrestricted.......c.coccoceiviecrerennncnennen. 1,745 11,691 3,098 16,534
Total net assets........covvvevvrecenrevienenns $ 1,745 $ 11,691 $ 3,098 $ 16,534

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Program Revenues

Toledo Mud Hens

Charges for Grants and Baseball
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Club inc.
Toledo Mud Hens Baseball Club
Recreation $ 8,328 $ 3,771 § - 8 (4,557)
Lott Industries
Health 12,490 5,803 7,005 -
Preferred Properties Inc.
Health 982 432 774 -
Total component units................. $ 21,800 $ 10,006 $ 7,779 $ (4,557)
General Revenues:
Miscellaneous ......oovvrveirievevnirereiicieninane 4,857
Total general revenues ................ccoeeeni 4,857
Changes innetassets .............cccc..ouve 300
Net assets - beginning ..............cc.nes, rreeres 1,445
Netassets-ending .........cccoeeviviiiiiiinnnnnnen. $ 1,745

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Lott Preferred
Industries Properties
Inc. Inc. Total
$ - 8 - $ (4,557)
318 - 318
- 224 224
$ 318 $ 224 3 (4,015)
241 5 5,103
241 5 5,103
559 229 1,088
11,132 2,869 15,446
$ 11,691 $ 3,098 16,534

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
— 49 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Note A - Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation

The County: Lucas County is a political subdivision of the
State of Ohio. The County was formed by an act of the
Ohio General Assembly in 1835. The three member
Board of County Commissioners is the legislative
and executive body of the County. The County Auditor
is the chief fiscal officer. In addition, there are seven other
elected- administrative officials, each of whom are
independent as set forth by Ohio law. These officials are:
Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecutor,
Recorder, Sheriff, and Treasurer. There are also ten
Common Pleas Court Judges, two Domestic Relations
CourtJudges, two Juvenile Court Judges, one Probate
Court Judge and five Court of Appeals Judges elected
on a County-wide basis to oversee the County’s judicial
system.

The accompanying financial statements present the
County (Primary Government) and its component units,
which are legally separate organizations which the elected
officials of the primary government are financially
accountable. The financial data of the component
units are included in the County’s reporting entity because
of the significance of their operational or financial
relationships with the County. Blended component units,
although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part
of the government operations.

A discretely presented component unit is an entity
that is legally separate from the County but for which the
County is financially accountable, or its relationship with
the County is such that exclusion would cause the
County’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete.

The discretely presented component unit column in the
combined financial statements include the County's
component units. They are reported in a separate column
to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
county. A brief description of each component unit, and
its relationships to the County follows:

Toledo Mud Hens Baseball Club, Inc. is organized to
own, manage, and operate a professional baseball club.
Upon dissolution, any remaining net assets become
property of the Board of County Commissioners, and new

appointments to the board of directors requires
concurrence of the Commissioners. The county receives
rent from the Med Hens to retire non-tax revenue bonds
issued to finance the construction of the baseball stadium.
The Mud Hens are reported on a fiscal year ending
October 31. Complete financial statements of the
component unit can be obtained from its administrative
office at Fifth Third Field, 406 Washington St., Toledo, OH
43604,

Lott Industries, Inc., is a nonprofit organization affiliated
with the Lucas County Board of Mental Retardation and
Developmental Disabilities (LCBMR/DD), a special
revenue fund of the County. It provides employment for
individuals with mental retardation and developmental
disabilities by obtaining work competitively from the private
and public sectors. A majority of the board of the
component unit is appointed by the LCBMR/DD. The
LCBMR/DD pays the salaries of the administrative staff,
which is a financial obligation of the County, and the
component unit exists solely to provide service to the
LCBMR/DD. Complete financial statements of the
component unit can be obtained from its administrative
office at 2001 Collingwood, Toledo, Ohio 43620.

Preferred Properties, Inc. and Affiliates is a not-for-profit
corporation organized to provide affordable and
accessible housing to persons with disabilities. One third
of the board of the component unit is appointed by the
LCBMR/DD. Funds for the purchase of housing are
received from the LCBMR/DD which come from board
funds and pass through of funds from Community
Assistance Projects administered by the Ohio Department
of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities.
This imposes a financial obligation on the County, and the
component unit is fiscally dependent on the primary
government. Preferred Properties, Inc. is reported on a
fiscal year ending June 30. Complete financial statements
of the component unit can be obtained from its
administrative office at 2001 Collingwood, Toledo, Ohio
43620.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2003 '

Note A - Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation (continued)

Community Living Options, Inc. was a non-profit
corporation that provides residential assistance and
support services to individuals with mental retardation and
developmental disabilities. In the prior year, Community
Living Options, Inc. was a discretely presented
component unit of the County, however  they dis-
continued operations during fiscal year 2003. Services
provided by Community Living Options, Inc. in the past
have been absorbed by the Lucas County Board of Mental
Retardation and Developmental Disabilities. See Note Q,
Change in Reporting entity.

In determining its reporting entity and component units,
the County considered all potential component units,
including the Lucas County Board of Heaith, Metropolitan
Park District, Lucas County Soil and Water Conservation
District, Lucas County Port Authority, Lucas County
Improvement Corporation, Toledo Zoological Society,
Toledo Area Sanitary District, Toledo Lucas County Public
Library, Lucas County Board of Education and Toledo-
Lucas County Convention and Visitors Bureau and
concluded that such were neither component units nor
related organizations of the County and that it would not
be misleading to exclude their activities from the County’s
reporting entity.

Basis of Presentation: The County’s basic financial
statements consist of government-wide statements,
including a statement of net assets and a statement of
activities, and fund financial statements which provide a
more detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements: The state-
ment of net assets and the statement of activities
display information about the County as a whole. These
statements include the financial activities of the primary
government, except for fiduciary funds. The activity of the
internal service funds is eliminated to avoid “doubling up”
revenues and expenses. The statements distinguish
between those activities of the County that are
governmental and those that are considered business-
type activities.

The statement of net assets presents the financial
condition of the governmental and business-type activities
for the County at year-end. The statement of activities
presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each program or function of the
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County’s governmental activities and for the business-type
activities of the County. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a service, program or
departmentand therefore clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenues include charges paid by the
recipient for the goods or services offered by the program,
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program
and interest earned on grants that is required to be used
to support a particular program. Revenues which are not
classified as program revenues are presented as general
revenues of the County, with certain limited exceptions.
The comparison of direct expenses with program
revenues identifies the extent to which each business
segment or governmental function is self-financing or
draws from the general revenues of the County.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of
taxes and other charges between the County’s water and
sewer functian and various other functions of the County.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs
and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

Fund Financial Statements: During the year, the
County segregates transactions related to certain County
functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid
financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to
present financial information of the County at this more
detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise
fund financial statements is on major funds. Each major
fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds
are aggregated and presented in a single column. Internal
service funds are combined and the totals are presented
in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund
statements. Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

Fund Accounting: The County uses funds to maintain
its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as
a fiscal and accounting entity with a self balancing set of



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Note A - Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation (continued)

accounts. There are three categories of funds:
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are those
through which most governmental functions of the County
are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on
the sources, use and balances of current financial
resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the
various governmental funds according to the purposes for
which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are
assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The
difference between governmental funds assets and
liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are
the County’s major governmental funds.

+ General Fund: This fund accounts for the general operating
revenues and expenditures of the County not recorded
elsewhere. The primary revenue sources are sales and use
taxes, property taxes, state and local government fund
receipts, investment earnings and charges for services.

« Children Services Board Sbecial Revenue Fund: This fund
accounts for County-wide property tax levy, state grants and
reimbursements used for County child care programs.

» Board of Mental Retardation Special Revenue Fund: This
fund accounts for a County-wide property tax levy, state
grants and reimbursements used for care and services forthe
mentally handicapped and retarded.

» Job and Family Services Special Revenue Fund: This fund
accounts for various federal and state grants and
reimbursements as well as transfers from the General Fund
used for human service programs.

» Capital Improvements Capital Projects Fund: This fund
accounts for renovation and construction of County owned
buildings and facilities, and construction of special
assessment projects.

« Debt Service Fund: This fund accounts for revenues received
and used to pay principal and interest on debt.

Proprietary Funds

* Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of
operating income, changes in net assets, financial position

and cash flows. These funds are used to account for operations
that provide services which are financed primarily by user
charges, or activities where periodic measurement of income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control or other purposes. The County reports the following
major proprietary funds.

Water Supply System Enterprise Fund: This fund accounts for
the distribution of treated water to individuals and commercial
users of Lucas County.

Sewer System Enterprise Fund: This fund accounts for
sanitary sewer services provided to individuals and
commercial users in Lucas County and portions of Wood
County.

Wastewater Treatment Enterprise Fund: This fund accounts
for wastewater treatment services provided to the Sanitary
Engineer, cities of Maumee and Sylvania, Village of
Waterville, Sylvania Township and other portions of Lucas
County and portions of Wood County.

Additionally the County reports which Internal Service

Funds account for the goods or services provided by
certain County departments to other County funds,
departments and other governmental units, on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and

expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a

proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.

The

principal operating revenues of the Water Supply System,
Wastewater Treatment Plant, and Sewer System, and of
the County's internal service funds are charges to

customers for sales and services.

The County also

recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees
intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers
to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
and internal service funds include the cost of sales. and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non operating revenues and
expenses.

— 52 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Note A - Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation (continued)

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and
changes in net assets. The fiduciary fund category is split
into four classifications: pension trust funds, investment
trust funds, private-purpose trust funds and agency funds.
The County only maintains agency funds. Agency funds
are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. The
County’'s agency funds are primarily established to
account for the collection of various taxes, as well as
other intergovernmental resources that will be distributed
to other taxing districts located within Lucas County.

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the County
are prepared in conformity with GAAP for local
government units as prescribed in statements and
interpretations issued by the GASB and other recognized
authoritative sources. The County has elected not to
apply FASB Statements and interpretations issued after
November 30, 1989, to its enterprise fund activities.

Government-wide Financial Statements: The
government-wide financial statements are prepared using
the economic resources measurements focus. All assets
and liabilities associated with the operation of the County
are included on the Statement of Net Assets.

Fund Financial Statements: All governmental funds are
accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurements focus, only
currentassets and current liabilities generally are included
on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the
sources (i.e.,revenues and other financing sources) and
uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of
current financial resources. This approach differs from
the manner in which the governmental activities of the
government-wide financial statements are prepared.
Governmental fund financial statements therefore include
areconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the
relationship between the government-wide statements
and the statements for governmental funds.
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Like the governmental-wide statements, all proprietary
fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are
included on the statement of net assets. The
statement of changes in fund net assets presents
increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e.,
expenses) in net total assets. The statement
of cash flows provides information about how the County
finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary
activities.

Basis of Accounting: Basis of accounting determines
when transactions are recorded in the financial records
and reported on the financial statements. Government-
wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting. Governmental Funds use the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary and
fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting.
Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis
of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the
recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of
expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Tran-
sactions: Revenue resulting from exchange transactions,
in which each party gives and receives essentially equal
value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange
takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is
recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are
measurable and become available. Available means that
the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year
or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to
be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the
County, available means expected to be received within
thirty days of fiscal year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the County
receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include property taxes, grants, entitiement and donations.
On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
(See Note K). Revenue from grants, entitliement and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify
the year when the resources are required to be used or



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

the year when use is first permitted, matching
requirements, in which the County must provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose, and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are
provided to the County on a reimbursement basis. On the
modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions must also be available before it can be
recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue
sources are considered to be both measurable and
available at year-end: delinquent taxes, sales tax, grants,
interest, fees and charges for services.

Deferred Revenue: Deferred revenue arises when
assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria
have been satisfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal
claim as of December 31, 2003 but which were levied to
finance fiscal year 2004 operations, have been recorded
as deferred revenue. Grants and entitlements received
before the eligibility requirements are met are also
recorded as deferred revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables
that will not be collected within the available period have
also been reported as deferred revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures: On the accrual basis of
accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are
incurred.The measurement focus of governmental fund
accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are
generally recognized in the accounting period in which the
related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations
of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not
recognized in the governmental funds.

Budgetary Information: Under Ohio law, the Board of
County Commissioners must adopt an appropriations
budget by January 1st of a given year, or adopt a
temporary appropriation measure with final passage of a
permanent budget by April 1st, for all funds except
Agency Funds. Budgets are legally required for each
organizational unit by object (personal services, materials

and supplies, charges for services, and capital outlays and
equipment).

Each County department prepares a budget that is
approved by the Board of County Commissioners.
Modifications to the original budget within expenditure
objects can be made by the budget manager in the
Auditor’s Office. The County maintains budgetary control
within an organizational unit and fund by not permitting
expenditures and encumbrances to exceed appropriations
at the object level (the legal level of control).
Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at
year-end. Encumbered and unpaid appropriations
(reserved for encumbrances) are carried forward to the
next year as authority for expenditures.

The County’s budgetary process accounts for certain
transactions on a basis other than GAAP. The major
difference between the budget basis and the GAAP basis
are:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as
opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

(2) Expenditures are recorded when encumbered, or paid in
cash (budget), as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

The actual results of operations, compared to the final
appropriation, which include amendments to the original
appropriation, for each fund type by expenditure function
and revenue source are presented in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual (non-GAAP Budgetary
Basis)- All Governmental Fund Types. The difference
between the accrual and cash basis statements was not
significant. The reserve for encumbrances is carried
forward as part of the budgetary authority for the next year
and is included in the revised budget amounts shown in
the budget to actual comparisons.

Cash Equivalents: Investments of the cash
management pool, and investments with original
maturities of three months or less at the time they are
purchased by the County are considered to be cash
equivalents. Investments with an initial maturity of more
than three months are considered to be investments.
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Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Inventory of Materials and Supplies: Inventory is
valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method.
Inventory is recorded as an expenditure/expense when
consumed.

Capital Assets: Capital assets, which include property,
plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets
with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount
not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two
years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.

Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital
assets and improvements are capitalized, as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction
phase of proprietary capital assets is included as part of
the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

All reported capital assets are depreciated using the
straight line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

» Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 - 20 years

+ Buildings, structures, improvements 20 - 40 years

» Land improvements (water and sewer lines) 40 years
+ Infrastructure 20 - 40 years

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the basic financial
statements in conformity with GAAP requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues:
Local Government fund revenues are recorded as
receivables and revenues when measurable and available.
Assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement are
recorded as intergovernmental receivables and revenues
when entitlement occurs. Federal and State
reimbursement type grants for the acquisition or
construction of capital assets are recorded as receivables
and contributed capital when the related expenses are
incurred. All other Federal and State reimbursement type
grants are recorded as receivables and revenues when
the related expenditures/expenses are incurred.

Interfund Transactions: During the normal course of
operations, the County has numerous transactions
between funds. These transactions include charges for
services provided by an Internal Service fund to other
funds and operating transfers. Transfers represent
transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to
a fund through which those resources will be expended
and are recorded as other financing sources (uses) in
Governmental Fund Types and as transfers in Proprietary
Funds.

The Internal Service funds record charges for services
to all County funds, departments and other governmental
units as operating revenue. Both Governmental and
Proprietary funds record these payments to the Internal
Service funds as operating expenditures/expenses.

Compensated Absences: The County records
accumulated unpaid vacation, overtime pay, and vested
sick time benefits as accrued wages and benefits payable
when earned by employees. The entire compensated
absences liability is reported on the governmental-wide
financial statements.

For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid
compensated absences is the amount expected to be paid
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Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

using expendable available resources. These amounts
are recorded in the account “compensated absences
payable” in the fund from which the employees who have
accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The non-current
portion of the liability is not reported.

Ohio law requires that vacation time not be accumulated
for more than three years. Normally, all vacation time is
to be taken in the year available uniess administrative
written approval for carryover is obtained. Unused
vacation is payable upon termination of employment.
Unused sick time may be accumulated until retirement.
Employees with a minimum of ten years of service are
paid one third of accumulated sick time upon retirement
with a maximum of 40 days. In general, employees are
eligible to be paid for unused compensatory time upon
termination of employment. All sick, vacation and
compensatory payments are made at employees’ current
wage rates, and paid from the fund where the time was
accumulated.

Self-Funded Insurance: The County is self-funded for
dental and health benefits. The dental program is
administered by Health Care Payer’s Coalition, which
provides claims review and processing services. Each
County fund is charged for its proportionate share of the
cost for covered employees. Payment of these benefits
is accounted for in an internal service fund. The County
records a liability for incurred but unreported claims at
year end based upon an actuarial estimate provided by
Benefits Comprehensive, Inc. The County also maintains
a Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund and a Risk
Retention fund to manage liability insurance County-wide.
There have been no significant reductions in coverage
from the prior year and settled claims have not exceeded
commercial coverage in any of the last three years.

The County’s Self-funded Workers’ Compensation fund
(an internal service fund) accounts for and finances its
uninsured risks of loss for workers’ compensation claims.
Under this program, the Self-funded Workers’
Compensation fund provides coverage for up to a
maximum of $300 thousand for each workers’
compensation claim. The County will pay premiums to the
State of Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation for
claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund. In
addition, the fund will pay assessments to the Bureau of

Workers’ Compensation for administration and payment
of claims.

All funds of the County participate in the program and
make payments to the Self-funded Workers’
Compensation Fund based on their usage of the program
to cover actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay
current-year claims. The claims liability of $8.1 million
reported in the fund at December 31, 2003 is based on
the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standard
Board Statement 10, which requires that a liability for
claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of
the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. This liability includes an amount for claims that
have been incurred but not reported. Because actual
claims liabilities depend on such complex factors as
inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards,
the process used in computing claims liability does not
necessarily resultin an exact amount. Liabilities for losses
to be settled by fixed or reasonably determineable
payments over a long period of time are reported at their
present value using an expected future investment yield
assumption of 5.5%.

Fund Balance Reservations and Designations: The
County reserves portions of fund balances that are legally
segregated for specific future uses or that do not represent
available, spendable resources and, therefore, are not
appropriable for expenditures. Designations of fund
balances are amounts that have been designated by
management for a specific future use, which are not
legally segregated. Undesignated fund balances are not
reserved nor designated and are appropriable in future
periods.

Prepaid Items: Payments made to vendors for services
that benefit future periods are recorded as prepaid items
in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
A current asset for the prepaid amount is recorded at the
time of purchase, and the expenditure is reported in the
year in which services are consumed.

— 56 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Note C - Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund
financial Statements

l. Explanation of certain differences between the
governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide
statement of net assets.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a
reconcilement between fund balance - total governmental
funds, and net assets - governmental activities as reported
in the government-wide statement of net assets. One
element of that reconcilement explains that “long-term
liabilities are not due and payabile in the current period and
therefore not reported in the funds.” Details of this
difference are as follows: (Amounts in 000's)

Bondspayable ................. $ 82,945
OWDA loans payable .. .......... 2,069
OPWCloanspayable .. .......... 2,805
Capital leases payable . .......... 6,347
Landfill liability payable . .......... 12,255
Compensated absences .......... 16,490

Net adjustment to reduce

fund balance - total govern-

mental funds to arrive at net

assets - governmental funds. .. .........

$122 911

Il. Explanation of certain differences between the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances and the government-wide
statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a
reconcilement between net changes in fund balances -
total governmental funds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities. One element of that
reconcilement explains that “Governmental funds re-
port capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of these assetsis
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
deprecation expenses.” The details of the difference are
as follows: (Amounts in 000's)

Capitaloutlay ........... $24,778
Capital outlay in excess
of fixed asset additions. . . . (6,586)
Depreciation expense .. .... (22,764)
Net adjustment . ..... .... 4,572

Another element of that reconcilement states that “The
issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.” The
details of this difference are as follows: (Amounts in 000's)

Proceeds of capital

lease transaction. . .......... $ 60
Proceeds ofloans .......... . 441
Proceedsofbonds ........... 7,250
Principal retirement .......... {(12,319)

Net adjustment ............ ($4.568)

Note D - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents, Segregated
Cash, Investments and Deposits

To improve cash management, cash received by the
County is pooled in a central bank account which is
managed by the County Treasurer. Amounts for all funds
including proprietary funds, are maintained in this account
or are temporarily used to purchase short term
investments.  Individual fund integrity is maintained
through the County’s records. Each fund’s interestin the
pooled bank accounts is presented as cash and cash
equivalents, and investments on the balance sheet.
Investments are limited to STAR Ohio, certificates of
deposit, U.S. Treasury Obligations and Mortgage-backed
Securities, and a revenue Bond anticipation note. These
investments are stated at fair value. Money market
investments that mature within one year of acquisition and
participating interest-earning investment contracts that
mature within one year of acquisition are reported at
amortized cost. The County’s investments are covered by
Custodian Safekeeping Agreements with all securities
dealers of County owned purchased securities, whereby
such securities are held for the County by a third party
custodian. '
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Note D - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Segregated Cash, Investments and Deposits
(continued)

Investmentincome is recorded in the General and Self-
funded Health funds. Investment income in the General
fund includes earnings on all pooled investments.
Investment income earned during 2003 totaled approxi-
mately $4.1 million.

The County uses separate bank accounts for resources
not deposited with the County Treasurer. These interest
bearing depository accounts are presented in the
Combined Balance Sheet as “Segregated Cash
Accounts.”

Legal Provisions: The County Treasurer is permitted
by Ohio law to deposit or invest County funds provided
that they mature or are redeemable within two years from
date of purchase. The Treasurer is permitted to invest or
deposit in the following classification of obligations:

1} Obligations of, or backed by the faith of, the United
States Government.

2) Obligations issued by any Federal agency.

3) Deposits in institutions eligible under Ohio law. All
deposits are collateralized with eligible securities, as
described by state statutes, which are pledged to a collateral
pool for each individual financial institution, in amounts equal
to at least 105% of the carrying value of all public deposits
held by each institution.

4) Obligations of the State.

5) Repurchase agreements with institutions eligible under
Ohio law not to exceed 30 days, where the institution agrees
unconditionally to repurchase any of the securities listed in
(1) or (2).

6) Commercial paper issued by any corporation
incorporated under the laws of the United States or a state
if both of the following conditions apply. Two nationally
recognized rating agencies rank the commercial paper in
either of their two highest categories; the total amount

invested in commercial paper at any time does not exceed
five per cent of the county’s total average portfolio, as
determined and calculated by the investing authority.

7) Bankers acceptances, if the following conditions are
met: The acceptances mature in two hundred seventy days
or fewer from the date of settlement; the acceptances are
eligible for purchase by the federal reserve system; the total
amount invested in bankers acceptances at any time does
not exceed ten per cent of the county’s total average
portfolio, as determined and calculated by the investing
authority.

8) The State Treasurer's Investment pool (STAROChIo).
Investment authority for the State Treasurer's Investment
pool is established by the State Legislature and reflected in
the Ohio Revised Code.

9) No-load money market mutual funds consisting
exclusively of obligations described in division (1) or (2) of
this section and repurchase agreements secured by such
obligations, provided thatinvestments in securities described
in this division are made only through eligible institutions.

The Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB
Statement 3) has established credit risk categories for
deposits and investments.

« Category 1 - Investments that are insured or registered, or
securities held by the County or its agent in the County’s name.

Deposits that are insured or collateralized with securities held by
the County or its agent in the County’s name.

+ Category 2 - Investments that are uninsured and unregistered,
with securities held by the counterparts’s trust department or
agent in the County’s name.



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Note D - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Segregated Cash, Investments and Deposits
(continued)

Deposits that are uncollateralized or collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust department
or agent but not in the County’s name.

Deposits that are collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the
County’s name.

« Category 3 - Investments that are uninsured or unregistered, Based on the above criteria, the County’s deposits and

with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust  jnyestments at December 31, 2003 are classified as follows:
department or agent but not in the County’s name.

—

Amount Available for
Deposit or Investment (Amounts in 000's)

Carrying amounts per
combined balance sheet:

Pooled.........c.covvvnnnnn. $ 242,733
Segregated .................. 8,815
Qutstanding Checks ........... 6,413
Other reconciling items (net) .. ... 425

Amount available for deposit
and investment (Bank balances

of deposits/fair value

ofinvestments) .. ............ $ 258,386
Deposits: At year-end the County Risk Category Bank Fair
had the following deposits 1 2 3 Balance Value

eligible under Ohio law:

(Amounts in 000's)

FDIC insured deposits . .. ....... $ 1,629 $ - $ - $ 1,629
Insured by the financial

institutions coliateral pool ... ... - - 27,599 27,599
Money Market Account ......... - 15,000 15,000
Certificates of deposit .......... 19,087 - 19,087

Total deposits . .............. 1,629 $19,087  $42599 $ 63,315
Investments: At year-end

the County had the following
investments:

1

1

<«
v

L]
t

$ 857
169,999

U.S. TreasuryBills ............ $ 857
United States Agency Securities . . 169,999
Investment in the state treasurer’s

Investment pool (1) . .......... - - - 24,215

Total investments ............ $170.856 $ - $ - $195,071

™ The County's investment in the State Treasurer’s investment program is not categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in
physical or book entry form. The fair value of the position in the investment pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.
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Note D - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Segregated Cash, Investments and Deposits
(continued)

Based on the above criteria, the Discretely Presented
Component Units of the County have deposits and
investments classified as follows:

e~ EEEEEE——

Amount Available for
Deposit or Investment {Amounts in 000's)

Carrying amounts per
combined balance sheet:

Pooled...................... $9,136

Amount available for deposit
and investment (Bank balances
of deposits/fair value

ofinvestments) . ............. 9,136
Deposits and investments: At year- Risk Category Bank Fair
end the discretely presented 1 2 3 Balance, Value

component units had the following
deposits eligible under Ohio law:

(Amounts in 000's)

FDIC insured deposits . .......... $300 $ - $ - $ 300
Insured by the financial
Institutions collateral pool . ... ... - - 2,571 2,571
Certificates of deposit ........... _ - 680 - 680
Total deposits . ............... 300 $ 680 2,571 3,551

Investments: at year-end the
discretely presented component
units had the following

investments:

US Treasury Notes ............. $1,732 $ - $ - $1,732

United States Agency Securities . .". 2,314 - - 2,314

MoneyMarket ................. 578 - - 578

CorporateBonds ............... 923 - - 923

Mortgage Backed Securities . . . ... 38 - - 38
Totalinvestments . ............ $5,585 $ - $ - $5,585



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Note E - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and
Transfers

Due to / Due from other funds balances as of Decem-
ber 31, 2003 follow:

Payable Fund Receivable Fund Amounts in (000's)
General Central Supplies $7
Children Services Board Central Supplies 1
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Central Supplies 4
General Vehicle Maintenance 20
Internal Service Funds Vehicle Maintenance 1
Nonmajor Enterprise Fund Vehicle Maintenance 2
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Vehicle Maintenance 9
General County Telephone 4
Children Services Board County Telephone 2
Nonmajor Governmental Funds County Telephone 2
General Centralized Drug Testing _19

$71

Due to / due from balances resulted from the routine lag are recorded in accounting system, and payments
between the dates interfund goods and services are between funds are made.

provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions

Transfer To

From Revenue  Service __ Projects Maintenance  Total

General ................... $13,901 $7,247 $2,079 $150 $23,377

Sewer System.............. - 1,134 - - 1,134

Job and Family Services. . ..... - - 5 - 5

Nonmajor governmental. . . . . .. - 742 - - 742

Total ................... $13,901 9,123 2,084 150  $25,258

Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service
required by statute or budget to collect them to the fund payments become due, and 3) use unrestricted revenues
required by statute or budget to expend them 2) move collected in the general fund to finance various programs
receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting accounted for in other funds.

— 61 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
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DECEMBER 31, 2003
Note F - Capital Assets
Construction-in-progress: The County has active Capital asset activity for the County for the year ended
construction projects as of December 31, 2003 of $4,629 December 31, 2003, appears on following page:
thousand for a payroll / HR system, $1,143 thousand for o
a business continuance center, and $1,292 thousand in Depreciation expense was charged to functions and
other miscellaneous projects. The estimated cost to programs of the County as follows: (Amounts in 000's)
complete these projects is $9.9 million.
Governmental activities:
General government $ 5,254
Public Safety 2,233
Public Works 14,296
Health 590
Human Services 305
Recreation 86
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $22,764
Business-type activities:
Water $ 1,507
Wastewater Treatment 457
Sewer 1,506
Other 290
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $3,760

Activity for the discretely presented component units for
the year ended December 31, 2003 as follows:

Beginning Changes Ending
Balance in Assets Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated: (Amounts in 000’s)
Land $ 938 $ 194 $1,132
Construction in progress 203 (39) 164
Total capital assets, not being deprecieated 1,141 155 1,296
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings, structures and improvements 14,329 205 14,534
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5,433 833 6,266
Total, capital assets being depreciated 19,762 1,038 20,800
Total accumulated depreciation (5,379) (1,051) _(6,430)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 14,383 (13) _14,370
Component units capital assets, net $15,524 $ 142 $15,666
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DECEMBER 31, 2003
Note F - Capital Assets (continued) Beginning Ending
Balance Increase Decrease Balance
Governmental activities: (Amounts in 000's)
Capital assets not being depreciated.
Land . ...ttt e $ 21,301 $ - $ - $21,301
Construction in progress . ..., 11,629 8,81 13,375 7,064
Total capital assets, not being depreciated . .. ....... ... 32,930 8.810 13,375 28,365
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings, structures, and improvements ............. . 196,675 11,237 2,145 205,767
Furniture, fixtures and equipment. .................... 36,685 5,354 1,361 40,678
Infrastructure ... 285,754 8,345 - 294,099
Total capital assets being depreciated . . . ............ 519,114 24,936 3,506 540,544.
Less accumulated depreciation for.
Buildings, structures and improvements ............. 62,333 4,608 1,180 65,761
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . .................. 24,427 4,362 174 28,615
Infrastructure . .........ccoii i 186,440 13,851 - 200,291
Total accumulated depreciation . . ................... 273,200 22,821 1,354 294,667
Total capital assets being depreciated, net..... ....... 245914 2,115 2,152 245,877
Governmental activities capital assets, net . .......... 278,844 10,925 15,527 274,242
Business-type ativities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land . ... e 402 - - 402
Constructioninprogress ...................ovu.. - - - -
Total capital assets, not being depreciated ............ 402 - - 402
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings, structures and improvements . .......... ... 23,287 - - 23,287
Land improvements .......... ... ... il 114,841 4,319 - 119,160
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ................... 13,122 207 84 13,245
Total capital assets being depreciated ................ 151,250 4,526 84 155,692
Less accumulated depreciated for:
Buildings, structures and improvements ... ........... 5,646 584 - 6,230
Landimprovements .......... ... ... ... ..., 42,323 2,942 - 45,265
Furniture, fixtures and equipment .......... ......... 12,588 234 79 12,743
Total accumulated depreciation ..................... 60,557 3,760 79 64,238
Total capital assets being depreciated,net ............ 90,693 766 5 91,454
Business-type activities capital assets, net ........... 91,095 766 $ 5 91,856
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Note G - Notes Payable

All notes are backed by the full faith and credit of the
County and mature within one year. The notes are issued
in anticipation of long-term bonded financing, and the

County intends to refinance the notes until such bonds are
issued. All notes are in the capital projects fund. Notes
outstanding at December 31, 2003 follow: (Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending

Note Issue Rate Balance Issued Redeemed Balance
Various purpose improvements. . . 1.9% $15,700 $ - $15,700 $ -
Various purpose improvements. . . 1.5% - 10,415 - 10415
Total capital projectnotes . . . . .. $15,700 $10415 $15,700 10,415

Toledo Mud Hens Baseball Club, Inc. has available a
$500,000 line of credit with an interest rate at ¥2% less
then the prime rate, which expires in January 2004. There
was no outstanding debt at December 31, 2003. Preferred
Properties, Inc. and Affiliates have a note payable of $8
thousand with an interest rate of 8.58% due in July 2005,
and a note payable of $18 thousand with an interest rate
of 7.5% due in June 2006. They also have various
mortgages payable totaling $2,956 thousand secured by
real estate with interest rates varying from 0% to 9.00%.
Preferred Properties, Inc. has available a $250 thousand
line of credit with an interest rate at 1.0% over prime
(5.00% at June 30, 2003). There were no borrowings at
June 30.

Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and
proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts,
as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
méthod. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are

reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term
of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund
types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Long-term Bonds: All long-term debt issued for
governmental purposes of the County and special
assessmentbonds are retired from the Debt Service Fund.
General Obligation bonds are secured by the County’s
ability to levy a voted or unvoted property tax within
limitations of Ohio Law.

The County issues general obligation bonds to provide
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for
governmental-type activities. The original amount of
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DECEMBER 31, 2003

Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations
(continued)

general obligation bonds issued in prior years was $135
million. During the year, general obligation bonds totaling
$6.26 million were issued to fund the construction of a
Court of Appeals building.

Self-supporting bonds are secured by an unvoted property
tax levy (special assessments); however, each appropriate
bond indenture provides for principal and interest to be
paid from user charges.

The County issued $990 thousand of special
assessment bonds in 2003 to provide funds for the
construction of various sewers and water lines. These
bonds will be repaid from amounts levied against the
property owners benefited by this construction. In the
event property owners default on their special assessment
obligations, the County is obligated to meet the debt
service requirements from County funds. At December
31, 2003, the County had $313 thousand set aside for the
retirement of this debt. These funds are included in
pooled cash and investments.

Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code,
and not taking into account the equity in the debt service
fund, the County has the capacity to issue approximately
$51.2 million of additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Lott Industries, Inc., a discretely presented component
unit of the County has bonds payable of $4.1 million that
mature on August 1,2021, with a variable interest rate that
was 1.35% at December 31, 2003.

Nontax Revenue Bonds: in 2001, the County issued
$20 million of Nontax Revenue Bonds for a new baseball
stadium which the County owns and leases to the Toledo
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Mud Hens Baseball Club, Inc. In 2001, the County also
issued $6 million of Nontax Revenue Notes for that project
which were prepaid and retired in April, 2002. The Nontax
Revenue Bonds do not represent or constitute a general
obligation debt or pledge of the faith or credit or taxing
power of the County. The Nontax Revenue Bonds are
special obligations of the County payable solely from the
Nontax Revenues. The County has covenanted fo
appropriate in its annual appropriation measure for each
year, and to pay to the Trustee for the Nontax Revenue
Bonds by January 15, of such year, Nontax Revenues in
an amount sufficient to pay all bond service charges due
and payable on the Nontax Revenue Bonds during the
then current year.

Capital Lease Obligations: The County has a lease
agreement for a portion of the Government Center. The
lease is classified as a capital lease. The portion of the
Government Center leased by the County has been
recorded as land and building for $16.9 million.

The County has entered into certain other agreements to
lease equipment and other assets. Such agreements are,
in substance, lease purchases (capital leases) and are
classified as capital lease obligations in the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued)
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Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations (continued)

Long-term Debt: Long-term debt and other obligations of the County were as follows: (Amounts in 000's)
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Maturity Balance Balance Amounts
Years Interest Date January 1, December 31, Due In
Issued Rate through 2003 Additions Deductions 2003 One Year
Bonds
General Obligation Bonds-
Unvoted
1986 County public
assistance building.................... 8.000% 12/01/11 $ 1,980 - $ 220 $ 1,760 $ 220
1986 Convention center
1aNd.....coierine e 6.500% 12/01/12 3,375 - 335 3,040 335
1988 Family Court Center
construction & Courthouse
renovation..........c.covevveereeearnnnas 7.375% 08/01/07 4,375 - 875 3,500 875
1994 County building.................. 4.000%
5.700% 12/01/04 2,950 - 1,435 1,515 1,515
1995 Correctional facilities......... 4.300%
6.800% 12/01/15 1,855 - 100 1,755 105
1995 Court services building....... 4.300%
6.800% 12/01/15 1,670 - 90 1,580 95
1996 Refunding.........ccocevvuenene. 4.250%
5.375% 12/01/11 7,390 - 665 6,725 695
2001 Juvenile Justice Center....... 4.375%
5.000% 12/01/21 16,435 - 585 15,850 605
2002 Regional jail refunding........ 2.500%
2.750% 12/01/07 1,790 - 345 1,445 355
2003 Court of Appeals................. 2.250%
5.000% 12/01/23 - 6,260 - 6,260 185
General Obligation Bonds-
voted
1996 Library improvement........... 4.300%
6.000% 12/01/05 5,180 - 2,310 2,870 1,355
1997 Library improvement........... 3.800%
5.300% 12/01/05 6,200 - 2,000 4,200 2,100
Total general obligation
bonds voted and unvoted....... 53,200 6,260 8,960 50,500 8,440
Special Assessment-
Govemmental Commitment
(Self-Supporting)
1964 Sanitary sewer.................. 3.500% 12/01/04 $ 2 - $ 1 $ 1 $ 1
1974- 5.125%
1977 Sanitary sewer................ 7.625% 11/01/14 172 - 13 159 13
1981- 9.625%
1984 Sanitary sewer.............. 12.000% 12/01/04 65 - 30 35 35
1987 Sanitary sewer.................. 7.500% 12/01/07 75 - 15 60 15
1988 Sanitary sewer.................. 7.500% 12/01/08 180 - 30 150 30
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued)
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Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations (continued)

Maturity Balance Balance Amounts
Years Interest Date January 1, December 31, Due In
Issued Rate through 2003 Additions Deductions 2003 One Year
Bonds
Special Assessment-
Govemmental Commitment
(Self-Supporting) (continued)
1989 Sanitary sewer................... 6.750%
7.000% 12/01/09 610 - 70 540 75
1990 Waterline.......c..ccccovveenenn. 6.800%
6.850% 12/01/10 225 - 20 205 25
1992 Sewers & waterlines........... 3.400%
6.650% 12/01/11 295 - 25 270 25
1992 Sewers & waterlines........... 3.400%
6.650% 12/01/12 620 - 45 575 50
1994 McCord
Road improvements................... 4.000%
5.700% 12/01/03 15 - 15 - -
1994 Sewer & waterlines............. 4.000%
6.050% 12/01/13 640 - 40 600 45
1995 Sewers & waterlines........... 4.300%
6.800% 12/01/14 495 - 30 465 30
1996 Sewers & waterlines.......... 4.250%
6.500% 12/01/16 2,065 - 70 1,995 70
1997 Sewers & waterlines.......... 4.900%
5.450% 12/01/17 1,015 - 50 965 50
1998 Sewers & waterlines.......... 4.250%
5.000% 12/01/18 2,130 - 95 2,035 100
1999 Sewers & waterlines...... 4.000%
6.000% 12/01/19 490 - 20 470 20
2000 Sewers & waterlines.......... 5.200%
5.600% 12/01/20 1,475 B 55 1,420 55
2001 Sewers & waterlines.......... 4.100%
5.100% 12/01/21 1,540 - 55 1,485 60
2002 Sewers & waterlines.......... 2.500%
4.600% 12/01/22 1,050 - 30 1,020 40
2003 Sewers & waterlines.......... 2.250%
5.000% 12/01/23 - 990 - 990 30
Total special assessment
bonds- governmental com-
mitment-(self-supporting)............ 13,159 990 709 13,440 769
Non-Tax Revenue Bonds
2001 Baseball Stadium............. 6.375%
6.625% 12/01/21 19,520 - 515 19,005 550
Total bonds........c.coeesinvinnee $85,879 $7,250 $10,184 $82,945 $9,759
Ohio Water Development
Authority (OWDA) Loans
Special Assessment-
Govemmental Commitment
1983- 7.380%
1984 Sewers..........cccoceeveevenne 7.670% 01/01/07 $ 1,019 $ - $ 227 $ 792 122
1991 SeWers.......ocoeveveciceennenne 6.160%
7.450% 07/01/11 1,050 - 93 957 48
1994 water......coovveecnenrveinenenes 6.720% 07/01/19 332 - 12 320 6
Enterprise Funds
1984 Sewer system................... 6.240% 01/01/07 2,013 - 148 1,865 77
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Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations (continued)

Years
Issued

Enterprise Funds (continued)
1980-
1984 Wastewater treatment.......
1990 Water supply system.........
1991 Water supply system.........

1993 Water supply system.........
1994 Sewer system........

1994 Wastewater........................

1995 Water supply system........
1997 Water supply system
1997 Sanitary Engineer.....
2001 Water supply system .
2003 Water supply system........
2003 Water supply system........

Total OWDA foans.........c......

Ohio Public Works
Commission Loans
Govemnmental Commitment
1993 Road improvements..........
1994 Road improvements.. .
1985 Road improvements..........
1997 Road improvements..........
1999 Road improvements.. .
2000 Road improvements..........
2001 Road improvements..........
2002 Road improvements..........
2003 Road improvements..........
Enterprise Funds..............
1994 Wastewater.
1994 Sewer system
Total OPWC loans.

Other Obligations
Capital lease Obligations

Governmental.............ccoevenne.

Internal Service

Accrued wages and benefits-
governmental............cceeeeenene.

Landfill obligation................c........

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued)

Maturity Balance Balance Amounts
Interest Date January 1, December 31, Due In
Rate through 2003 Additions Deductions 2003 One Year
6.250%

11.190% 07/01/13 1,827 - 286 1,541 151
7.760% 01/01/10 311 - 35 276 19
7.450%

7.500% 07/01/11 556 - 52 504 27
6.160% 07/01/18 878 - 35 843 18
6.720% 07/01/14 689 - 42 647 21
5.770% 07/01/15 8,621 - 490 8,131 252
6.350% 01/01/21 428 - 14 414 7
5.860% 07/01/17 1,474 - 67 1,407 35
5.860% 07/01/17 1,364 - 63 1,301 32
5.390% 01/01/21 1,193 - 41 1,152 21
4.400% 01/01/13 - 278 12 266 8
3.850% 07/01/13 - 200 8 192 12
$ 21,755 $ 478 $1,625 $20,608 $856

0.000% 07/01/04 $ 41 - $ 28 $ 13 $ 14
0.000% 07/01/05 230 - 69 161 35
0.000% 07/01/06 133 - 38 95 19
0.000% 07/01/07 99 - 22 77 10
0.000% 07/01/10 316 - 44 272 22
0.000% 07/01/11 758 - 96 662 48
0.000% 01/01/11 352 - 42 310 24
0.000% 01/01/12 864 22 90 796 43
0.000% 01/01/13 - 419 419 ‘41
0.000% 01/01/16 199 - 14 185 7
0.000% 07/01/04 47 - 31 16 16
$ 3,039 $ a4 $ 474 $ 3,006 $ 279

$ 7,661 $ 61 $ 1,375 $ 86347 $ 1,456

12 - 7 5 5

$ 7,673 $ 61 $ 1,382 $ 6,352 $ 1,461

$ 17,821 $ 1,418 $ 2,744 $ 16,490 $ 3,000

$ 12,617 $ - 3 200 $ 12,417 $ 162
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Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations (continued)

A summary of the County's future long-term debt funding requirements
as of December 31, 2003 follows: (Amounts in 000's)

Bonds
Special Assessment-
General Obligation Government Commitment Non-Tax Revenue
Year of Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
Eunding
2004......oiiiean. $ 8,440 $ 2673 $ 769 $ 722 $ 550 $ 1,258
2005.. 7,205 2,184 743 671 590 1,223
2006.. 3,670 1,791 868 632 635 1,186
2007.. . 3,755 1,593 885 586 680 1,145
2008........ocrirrrerre e 2,615 1,386 920 538 725 1,102
2009-2013....cccvvrrirneeeinn. 11,715 4,813 4,430 1,962 4,495 4,745
2014-2018.. . 7,380 2,427 3,610 827 6,340 3,043
2019-2023.........ccocveveieernnen. 5,720 671 1,215 137 4,990 694
Total...ccooiviivieeiieieeeier s $ 50,500 $ 17,538 $ 13,440 $ 6,075 $ 19,005 $ 14,396
Loans
OWDA OPWC
Year of Principal Interest Principal Interest
Funding
$ 856 # $ 638 $ 279 $ -
1,701 1,188 457 -
1,704 1,082 445 -
1,652 976 350 -
. 1,596 875 328 -
2009-2013....cooiiriirrrrereiennns 8,760 2,827 1,092 -
2014-2018....cccovrreieeereernn, 3,975 613 55 -
2019-2023... . 364 32 - -
Total...ccoovereieierererieree, $ 20,608 ~$ 8,231 $ 3,006 $ -
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Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations
(continued)

Operating Leases: At December 31, 2003, the County
had 8 operating leases for automobiles and equipment.
Operating lease payments are recorded as expen-
ditures/expenses for the current period.

Government
activities
Year Capital Leases

2004 ... $ 1,929
2005 ... . 1,929
2006 ....... e 1,929
2007 ... 1,899
2008 ... 1,061
Total minimum

lease payments ........ 8,747
Less: amount representing

interest ............... _ 2,400
Present value of future

minimum lease
payments .............. 6,347

Accrued Wages and Benefits: Unpaid vested hours at
December 31, 2003 representing this liability for all
governmental funds are as follows (Amounts in 000's):

Hours
Vacation ........ 432
Sick ........... 293
Compensation . .. 33
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The County’s future minimum lease payments un-
der lease obligations which have been capitalized
and operating leases as of December 31, 2003 are
as follows (Amounts in 000's):

Business type

activities Operating
Capital Leases Leases
$ 6 $ 41
- 29
- 8
$6 $ 78
1
$ 5

Deferred Compensation: County employees have the
option of participating in three state-wide deferred
compensation plans, created in accordance with the
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Under these plans,
employees electto have a portion of their pay deferred
until a future time. According to these plans, the
deferred compensation is not available to employees
until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
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Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations
(continued)

emergency. The deferred pay and any income earned
thereon is not subject to income tax until actually
received by the employee.

All amounts of compensation deferred under these
plans, all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts,
property, or rights are to be held in trust for the exclusive
benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries.

Conduit Debt Obligations: From time to time, the
County has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds, Hospital
Facilities Bonds and Commercial Housing Revenue
Bonds to provide financial assistance to private, profit
and non-profit sector entities for the acquisition and
construction of industrial, hospital and commercial
facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds
are secured by the property financed and are payable
solely from payments received on the underlying
mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds,
ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the
private-sector entity served by the bond issuance.
Neither the County, the State nor any political subdivision
thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the
bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

As of December 31, 2003 there were 160 series of
Industrial, Hospital and Commercial Housing Revenue
Bonds outstanding. The aggregate principal amount
payable for the 18 series issued after January 1, 1995
was $303,276,397. The aggregate principal amount
payable for the 141 series issued and with bonds
outstanding issued prior to January 1, 1995, could not be
determined; however, their original issue amounts total
$1,350,587,000.

Note | - Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plan

All eligible employees of the County, participate in the
Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS).
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS)
administers three separate pension plans. 1)The
Traditional Pension Plan (TP) - a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan. 2) The Member-
Directed Plan (MD) - a defined contribution plan in which the
member invests both member and employer contributions
(employer contributions vest over five years at 20% per
year). Under the Member-Directed Plan members
accumulate retirement assets equal to the value of member
and (vested) employer contributions plus any investment
earnings thereon. 3) The Combined Plan (CO) - a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.
Under the Combined Plan employer contributions are
invested by the retirement system to provide a formula
retirement benefit similar in nature to the Traditional Plan
benefit. Member contributions, the investment of which is
self-directed by the members, accumulate retirement assets
in a manner similar to the Member-Directed Plan. OPERS
provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits
and annual cost of living adjustments to members of the
Traditional Plan and Combined Plans. Members of the
Member-Directed Plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits.
Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by
State statute under Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Law enforcement officers in the County Sheriff's depart-
ment contribute 10.1% of their annual compensation and the
County contributes 16.7% of the same base. The County is
required to contribute 22.05% of annual compensation for
employees of the County engineer based upon a contract
with their respective union. All other eligible County
employees contribute 8.5% of their annual compensation
with the County contributing 13.55% of the same amount.
The County’s contribution to PERS for the years ending
December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, were $22.5 million,
$19.8 million, and $19.2 million respectively, equal to the
requested contribution for each year. All contributions to
PERS were made within the required due dates. The Ohio
Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee
and employer contributions.
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Note J - Other Post-Retirement Obligations

In addition to pension benefits, OPERS provides
retirement, disability, survivor and post-retirement health
care benefits to qualifying members of both the Traditional
and the Combined Plans; however, health care benefits
are not statutorily guaranteed. Members of the Member-
Directed Plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits, including
post-employment health care coverage.

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority
requiring public employees to fund post-retirement health
care through their contributions to OPERS. OPERS
provides post-retirement health coverage to age and
service retirants with ten (10) or more years qualifying
Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability
recipients and to primary survivor recipients of such
retirants is available. The health care coverage
provided by the retirement system is considered an
Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) as described in
GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each employer’s
contribution to OPERS is set aside for the funding of
post retirement health care. The Ohio Revised Code
provides statutory authority for employer contributions.
For local government employers, the rate was 13.55% of
covered payroll and 16.70% for law enforcement
employers, with 5.0% used to fund healthcare for regular
employees and law enforcement employees.

The following assumptions and calculations were based
on PER'S latest actuarial review performed as of
December 31, 2002.

An entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation
is used in determining the present value of OPEB. The
differences between assumed and actual experience
(actuarial gains and losses) becomes part of the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

Al investments are carried at market value. For
actuarial valuation purposes, a smoothed market
approach is used. Under this approach, assets are
adjusted annually to reflect 25% of unrealized market
appreciation or depreciation on investment assets. The
investment assumption rate for 2002 was 8.0%.
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An annual increase of 4.0% compounded annually, is
the base portion of the individual pay increase
assumption. This assumes no change in the number of
active employees. Additionally, annual pay increases,
over and above the 4.0% base increase, were assumed to
range from .50% to 6.3%. Health care costs were
assumed to increase 4.0% annually.

OPEBs are advance-funded on an actuarially
determined basis. At December 31, 2003, the number
of active contributing participants in the Traditional and
Combined Plans totaled 364,881. The rates stated above
are the actuarially determined contribution requirements
for OPERS. The employer contributions to fund post-
employment benefits in 2003 was $7.9 million. The
portion of employer contributions used to fund post-
employments benefits can be determined by multiplying
actual employer contributions times .3690 for local
government employers and .2994 for law enforcement
employers.

The actuarial value of the Retirement System’s net
assets available for OPEB was $10.0 billion at December
31, 2002 (the latest information available). The actuarially
accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability, based on the actuarial cost method used, were
$18.7 billion and $8.7 billion, respectively,

In December 2001, the Board of OPERS adopted the
Health Care “Choices” Plan in its continuing effort to
respond to the rise in the cost of health care. The Choices
Plan will be offered to all persons newly hired under
OPERS after January 1, 2003, with no prior service credit
accumulated toward health care coverage. Choices, as
the name suggests, will incorporate a cafeteria approach,
offering a more broad range of health care options. The
Plan uses a graded scale from ten to thirty years to
calculate a monthly health care benefit. This is in contrast
to the ten- year “cliff’ eligibility standard for the present
Plan.



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Note J - Other Post-Retirement Obligations
(continued)

The benefit recipient will be free to select the option that
best meets their needs. Recipients will fund health care
costs in excess of their monthly health care benefit. The
Plan will also offer a spending account feature, enabling
the benefit recipient to apply their allowance toward
specific medical expenses, much like a Medical Spending
Account.

The PERS issues a stand-alone financial report.
Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written
request to:

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
277 EAST TOWN STREET

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215-4642

PHONE: (614) 222-6705

Note K - Property Taxes, Sales Taxes, and Deferred
Revenues

Property taxes include amounts levied against real,
public utility and tangible personal (business) property.
The assessed value by property classification, upon which
taxes collected in 2003 were based is as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Realproperty .. ................ $6,581,213
Pubilic utility and tangible
personal property . ............. 1,163,273
Total assessed property value . . . $7,744,486

In 2003, real property taxes were levied on January 2,
2003, on the assessed values as of January 1, 2002, the
lien date. Assessed values are established by the County
Auditor at 35% of appraised market value. A revaluation
of real property is required to be completed no less than
every six years, with a statistical update every third year.
The most recent revaluation was completed in 2001.
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Tangible personal property tax is assessed on
equipment and inventory held by businesses. Tangible
property is assessed at 25% of true value (as defined). In
2003, each business was eligible to receive a $10
thousand exemption in assessed value which was
reimbursed by the State.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-
annually. In 2003, if paid annually, payment was due by
January 31st. If paid semi-annually, the first payment (at
least ¥z of amount billed) was due January 31st, with the
remainder due July 31st.

By July 2003, the final collection date, 95.3% of the total
current and delinquent property taxes billed in 2003 were
collected.

The County Auditor remits portions of the taxes collected
to all taxing districts when completing periodic settlements
of Real and Public Utility property taxes in February and
August and Tangible Personal Property taxes in June and
October for the first and second halves of the year,
respectively. The County accrues billed but uncollected
property taxes as receivables at their estimated net
realizable value.

The delinquent real property taxes outstanding and
available to the County within the first 60 days of 2004
were recorded as 2003 revenue, the remaining taxes
receivable are offset by a credit to deferred revenue.
Although total property taxes levied for the next fiscal year
are measurable, amounts to be received during the
available period are not subject to reasonable es-
timation at December 31, 2003, and are not available
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Note K - Property Taxes, Sales Taxes, and Deferred
Revenue (continued)

for appropriation and use until 2004. The deferred
revenues are offset by these property tax receivables and
special assessment receivables related to future capital
service projects.

In 1970, the County Commissioners, by resolution,
imposed a .5% tax on all retail sales, including motor
vehicles, made in the County. In 1982, the County
commissioners increased the sales tax by .5% to 1%. In
November, 1993, Lucas County voters approved a
permanent increase of .25% to 1.25% in the sales tax.
Vendor collections of th e tax are paid to the State

Treasurer by the twenty-third day of the month following
collection. The State Tax Commissioner certifies to the
State Auditor the amount of the tax to be returned to the
County. The Tax Commissioner’s certification must be
made within forty-five (45) days after the end of each
month. The State Auditor then has five (5) days in which
to draw the warrant payable to the County.

Proceeds of the tax are credited entirely to the General
Fund. Amounts that have been collected by the State and
are to be received within 60 days of year end are accrued
as revenue, as measurable and available. Sales tax
revenue for 2003 amounted to $67.0 million.

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all mill limit for the General Fund. An additional 15.75
taxing authorities in excess of 10.00 mills of mills have been levied for voted millage. A
assessed value without a vote of the people. summary of voted millage follows:

Presently, the County levies 2.00 mills of the 10.00
Rate
Levied for
Voter cng:;t:f:r Final
Purpose Ault?hc:rlzed Agricultural/ Commercial/ Couectlon

Rate(a) Residential/(b) Industrial Year
Senior services . ........ 45 .361461 409791 2004
Metroparks ............ 1.70 1.421969 1.574906 2008/2012
Community mental health . 1.50 1.077515 1.270505 2005/2009
Board of mental
retardation ............ 5.00 3.930647 4.366668 continuous
Children services ....... 2.65 2.400324 2.538309 2003/2006
Port authority .......... 40 0.272955 .358188 2004
Library . ........ ... ... 1.70 1.417984 1.610647 2005/2007
Zoo improvements ...... .95 .681684 865115 2005
Zoo operating .......... .70 .699113 .700000 2007
911 Telephone system . . .70 .699113 .700000 2006
Total ................. 15.75 12.962765 14.394129
(a) Dollars per $1,000 of assessed valuation.
(b) Ohio law provides for a reduction of certain voted levies to offset inflation in the value of real property. The voted levies
are subject to change.
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Note L - Reconciliation of Budget Basis to GAAP Basis

A reconciliation for the major governmental funds at
December 31, 2003 from the budget basis to a GAAP
basis for excess of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other uses follows:
(Amounts in 000's).

Children Board of Job and
General Services Mental Family
Fund Board Retardation Services
BudgetBasis...................... ($3,583) (%$2,235) ($128) ($10,486)
Net adjustments for
revenueaccruals ................. (1,252) 3,032 689 (1,184)
Net adjustments for
expenditure accruals .. ............ 4,212 25 1,972 2,167
Net adjustment for
encumbrances .. .............o... 692 1,069 1,802 2,630
Net adjustments for other
financing sources (uses) accruals . . . (1,.263) - - (6)
GAAPBasis............covvvinenn 1,194 1,891 4,335 ($6.879)

Note M - Amendments to Original Appropriations
Budget

Amendments beyond the object level must be approved
by the Board of County Commissioners. In 2003, the
original appropriation measure was increased (decreased)
for the major funds by the Commissioners approximately
as follows: General Fund, ($4) million, and Capital
Projects, $10 million.
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Note N - Contingencies

The County owns and operated a landfill site located in
the western portion of the county. The site accepted solid
waste from a number of private and industrial waste
haulers from 1954 to its closure in 1976. A solid waste
transfer station was operated from May, 1980 through
July, 1991. This site is now closed and the County no
longer operates a landfill. State and federal laws require
the County to cleanup, monitor and maintain the site.
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Note N - Contingencies (continued)

The County engaged a consultant to complete a study
regarding the cleanup, monitoring and maintenance of the
site. This study will be subject to review by the Ohio
Environmental Protection Agency. The study estimates
approximately $12.3 million will be needed to enact the plan,
of which approximately $162 thousand of the costs are to be
incurred in the next year. The current liability of $162
thousand is included in accounts payable in the Capital
Projects Fund with the remaining $12.3 million recorded as
a long-term liability due in more than one year. Actual cost
may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations. Funding is expected to be obtained
from the issuance of General Obligation notes or bonds,
and from the State Infrastructure Bond Fund. Other
potential sources of revenue include indemnification by
generators for response costs incurred.

The County is a defendant in a number of other claims and

lawsuits which may be classified as routine litigation. In
addition, the County is a defendant in numerous other
claims and lawsuits ranging from tort liability to civil rights
litigation. Management believes that any settlement related
to these claims and lawsuits will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of the County.

The County participates in a number of Federal and State
assisted grant programs. The major programs are through:
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction; Community
Development Block Grant; Ohio Department of Human
Services; and Ohio Department of Mental Health. These
programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by
grantors or their representatives. Audits of certain
programs have been completed under guidance of OMB
Circular A-133 and are included in a separately issued
report. There were no material instances of noncompliance
or findings noted within these reports.

Note O - Joint Venture

Lucas County has entered into a contractual agreement
with the City of Toledo, Defiance County, Fulton County,

Henry County, and Williams County to form the Corrections
Commission of Northwest Ohio to operate a regional jail in
northwestern Ohio. Each entity is responsible for a portion
of the capital and operating budget as follows:

Cityof Toledo .......... 35.65%
Lucas County .......... 31.84%
Defiance County ........ 9.35%
Fulton County .......... 8.65%
Williams County ........ 8.65%
HenryCounty ......... . 5.86%

100.00%

The Corrections Commission of Northwest Ohio is an 18
member board made up of the president of the Board of
County Commissioners, Sheriff, presiding judge of the Court
of Common Pleas for each County, the Mayor, Chief of
Police, and presiding Municipal Court Judge for The City of
Toledo. Each participating entity has an equal degree of
control over budgeting and financing.

All debt for the construction of the jail was incurred by the
participating governmental agencies, and are not liabilities
of the Corrections Commission of Northwest Ohio. Lucas
County has approximately $1.4 million of bonds outstanding
at year end for construction of the regional jail.

Complete financial statements of the Corrections
Commission of Northwest Ohio can be obtained from its
administrative office as follows:

CORRECTIONS COMMISSION OF NORTHWEST OHIO
03151 ROAD 24.25 RT. 1, BOX 100-A
STRYKER, OHIO 43557
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Note P - Risk Management

Self-Funded Insurance: The County is self-funded for
dental, prescription drug, and health benefits. The
programs are administered by a third party, which
provides claims review and processing services. Each
County fund is charged for its proportionate share of the
cost for covered employees. Payment of these benefits is
accounted for in internal service funds. The County
records a liability for incurred but unreported claims at year
end based upon an actuarial estimate provided by
Benefits Comprehensive, Inc. The County also maintains
a Self- Funded Workers’ Compensation fund and a Risk
Retention fund to manage liability insurance County-wide.
Settled claims have not materially exceeded coverage in
any of the last three years and there was no significant
reduction in coverage from the prior year.

The claims liability of $8.1 million reported in the
internal service funds at December 31, 2003, is based on
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10 which
requires that a liability for unpaid claims costs, including
estimates of costs relating to incurred but not reported
claims, be reported (see table below). Changes in the
funds’ claims liability amounts for 2002 and 2003 were:

2002..

2003..

Change in
Provision
Balance at Current for Workers Balance
Beginning years Compensation Claim at End
of Year Claims Claims Payments  of Year
$6,841 $23,303 $691 $23,813 $7,022
$7,022 $29,058 $641 $28,573 $8,148
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Note Q -Change in Reporting Entity

Community Living Options, Inc., a discretely presented
component unit, discontinued operations retroactive to
December 31, 2002. This resulted in a change in the
beginning net assets for the discretely presented
component units of $2,376 thousand.

Net Assets, Discretely Presented
Component Units previously reported at

December 31,2002 ................ $17,822
Discontinuation of Community Living
Options, Inc. ....................... (2,376)

Net Assets, Discretely Presented
Component Units at December 31,
2002 asrestated .. ................




Combining Financial
Statements and Schedules

Construction was completed on a new building to
house the 6™ district Court of Appeals in 2003 at a cost of
approximately $7 million dollars. The structure located at
the northwest corner of the Civic Center Mall in Toledo,
isa partnership between Lucas County and 7 regional

counties that lie within the jurisdiction of the 6™ District
Court of Appeals. Lucas County is responsible for 50% of
the project cost. The County issued bonds to cover
construction costs in the fall of 2003.

78 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND
December 31, 2003

Expenditures - Budget and Actual
General Fund

suol|lIiN




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures: ‘
General Government-
Legislative and executive
Training & Development
Personal SerViCes.......cccvcrvvnreverreriniereecn s $ 128 $ 100 $ 100 $ -
Materials and supplies......c.ccoceevvenriiveeneenn. 20 20 18 2
Charges and services..........c.occevveeieiinnnnn. 6 6 2 4
Capital outlay and equipment................... 2 2 - 2
Department of Personnel-
Personal ServiCes.......ccoveenverirerciereninnes 746 566 565 1
Materials and supplies.........ccccevveiinennene 7 7 7 -
Charges and services..........ccooeviivininnnen 130 129 118 11
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 11 6 5 1
Commissioners-
Personal Services.....c.cccveveeveveercrcnenneninns 492 463 446 17
Materials and supplies........ccccevevvvieeennenenn. 12 12 11 1
Charges and Services...........cccoecernveccenn. 59 59 33 26
Capital outlay and equipment................... 4 4 1 3
Management and Budget-
Personal services...........cccveeeereeeicenccnnneen 457 430 421 9
Materials and supplies.........ccccovvveeiiienncnane 9 9 7 2
Charges and services...........cccovviviiinnnne 95 76 59 17
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 8 6 4 2
Auditor-
Personal services.........cccccccveereeeieiiciennnnns 1,479 1,480 1,470 10
Materials and supplies.........cccovereivinnnnen 100 88 81 7
Charges and services...........cccoovvciinnnnns 280 238 230 8
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 21 9 9 -
Auditor Personal Property-
Personal Services...........ooccoveviniinrcnennennnne 450 445 444 1
Materials and supplies...........c.cccoevceerniennne 9 10 9 1
Charges and services........cc...ceceeerennen. 15 16 15 1
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 3 1 - 1
Auditor Real Property Evaluation-
Personal Services......c...ccccvvreeercrivnarsnnnes 822 802 801 1
Materials and supplies.........c.cccocoveeerrnnnnen. 11 9 7 2
Charges and services........cc.cccovcvvrcreennnnn 15 13 11 2
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 5 - - -
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GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual " (Negative)
General Government - continued
Legislative and executive - continued
Treasurer-
Personal Services........cceevevvieiveveirieennnnesn, 1,067 1,030 1,027 3
Materials and supplies.......cccceccceveriinennnns 20 19 18 1
Charges and services...........ccocveveinvinncen, 191 172 169 3
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 6 4 4 -
Treasurer Personal Property-
Personal ServiCes......c..cvuiiviiiniiinneennnns 215 213 212 1
Materials and supplies.......cc.cccovveerivncennes 10 9 6 3
Charges and services...........ccooeeniniuinnen. 13 12 8 4
Budget Commission-
Personal Services..........coveriireeieeiniennnnn, 9N 92 92 -
Materials and supplies..........cccccevevceennne. - - - -
Charges and services...........ccoecvevevicnennn. 2 - - -
Board of Revision-
Personal ServiCes......c.cccceveviveeevirinancnnans 168 168 167 1
Materials and supplies........c.ccocvvrcverenaenn. 8 8 6 2
Charges and services.........ccevvnininninnen. 2 - - -
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 4 3 3 -
Audit-
Charges and Services.........cccooeevrevrveneenes, 181 181 148 33
Planning Commission-
Charges and services.........cccoevevrvvvennnen, 370 370 370 -
Data Processing-
Personal Services........cc.ocveeereeinereennnn, 1,903 1,921 1,915 6
Materials and supplies.......c.cocevviriiiiiinnn, 31 31 20 11
Charges and services.........ccccccveveinnienen 714 803 779 24
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 279 167 147 20
Collect CT Costs-
Personal ServiCes........ccvvevmrevivrecereneeneens 22 6 - 6
Materials and supplies........cccccccerivnrrenenen. 7 7 1 6
Charges and Services.........cccooveviveriiniannnn 12 12 7 5

Capital outlay and equipment.................... -



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Hotel Motel Administration-
Personal services........ccooveevvevenvcnennnn.. 55 54 54 -
Materials and supplies.........cccceeerrennn.. 2 2 1 1
Charges and services.........cccccovrvereennan... 8 8 5 3
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 5 5 5
County Administrator-
Personal services...........cccevveevvcrevnrenne. 600 654 648 6
Materials and supplies............c.ccocrven... 8 8 7 1
Charges and services..........coccceveueeane... 54 39 17 22
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 5 7 6 1
Support Services-
Personal Services.....c.cccevvvveecrveceennienns 390 390 389 1
Materials and supplies.........ccceeervereennn.. 6 6 6 -
Charges and services..........ccccoccvimrureininn. 12 11 8 3
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 2 2 2 -
Board of Elections-
Personal Services.......occvevvceveevinsecnenennn 1,456 1,326 1,267 59
Materials and supplies...........cccvevererennen. 256 278 268 10
Charges and services............ccceeevereenennn... 927 783 715 68
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 13 79 72 7
Capital Improvements-
Charges and services..........ccocveevevernnn... 6,933 6,369 6,362 7
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 156 188 180 8
Facilities-
Personal Services..........cooocevevevnenevenneaenn, 3,989 3,405 3,395 10
Materials and supplies..........cccccevunne...... 285 360 295 65
Charges and services............ccoveeerirennn... 1,441 1,305 1,151 154
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 67 37 22 15
Recorder-
Personal services...........cccoovnievervennne..n. 762 731 725 6
Materials and supplies........cccoevmeeenennnn. 38 40 37 3
Charges and services..........c.ccoueuenneene... 50 43 37 6
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 4 1 - 1



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
General Government - continued
Legislative-and executive - continued
Dept. of Public Service-
Personal ServiCes.........ccocevicvvnveeiininennen. 53 17 16 1
Materials and supplies............ccocveverennnnns 3 3 - 3
Charges and services..........cocveeiivinnes 46 9 3 6
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 3 -
Centralized Records Center-
Personal services........c.c.ocovververcrcrennnnn e 57 58 57 1
Materials and supplies...........cccceveveieenes - - - -
Charges and services...........oceveeniiiinnns 2 2 1 1
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 4 4 3 1
Taxes-
Charges and Services.........ccccceeeveiininnaen 230 181 181 -
Insurance-
Personal services.......c.c.ccveereveeceniererenenne 75 75 52 23
Charges and services..........ccccvuveanneiniannn 1,151 1,215 1,196 19
Other-
Charges and services...........cccoevvviinnnnns 172 157 143 14
Total legislative and executive................ 30,032 28,086 27,294 792
Judicial
Prosecutor-
Personal services.......ccuvvvvurvieieviiienreinne 5,182 5,053 5,040 13
Materials and supplies.......cccccceovcveennnnn. 55 61 56 5
Charges and Services...........cccceveverecenennen 132 140 129 11
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 10 5 4 1
Court Rehabilitation & Correction-
Personal services...........cocevevvviininniinienins 468 428 427 1
Materials and supplies.........cccooevveevernnenns 13 19 16 3
Charges and services............ccoeviiiininnns 45 37 35 2
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 10 4 4 -
Court of Appeals-
Materials and supplies...........ccceovveiicnnnns 67 47 40 7
Charges and serviCes........ccccorvveevrieennnnns 172 261 235 26
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 83 96 93 3
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General Government - continued

Judicial - continued
Common Pleas Court-
Personal services..................

Materials and supplies..........cc.ccooevrnnnen...
Charges and services........c..cccoeevvervnnne..
Capital outlay and equipment....................

Work Release-
Personal services..................

Materials and supplies...........cccc.cooveeee...
Charges and services...........ccoveuevuvennne...
Capital outlay and equipment....................

Jury Commission-
Personal services..................

Materials and supplies......auuccrvevvirnenneen.
Charges and services.............cc.cceeeenn.n...
Capital outlay and equipment....................

Aduit Probation-
Personal services..................

Materials and supplies..........ccccoeeernenn...

Charges and services............

Capital outlay and equipment....................

Pretrial Presentence Division-
Personal services..................
Materials and supplies...........
Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment

Domestic Relations Court-
Personal services..................
Materials and supplies...........
Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment

Juvenile Court-

Personal services........ccccoeeveeeeccvvvevnnennn.n,

Materials and supplies...........
Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
2,937 2,955 2,947 8
104 78 75 3
377 234 228 6
48 31 30 1
1,880 1,828 1,824 4
84 88 83 5
304 234 219 15
42 24 22 2
84 83 82 1
22 19 18 1
245 194 188 6
2 8 7 1
1,452 1,437 1,433 4
110 100 86 14
35 28 24 4
2 - - .
1,781 1,811 1,810 1
103 105 97 8
46 33 31 2
16 9 9 -
2,503 2,508 2,507 1
17 14 14 .
164 165 161 4
5 4 3 1
7,260 7,283 7,281 2
258 221 220 1
449 386 376 10
37 39 39 -
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
General Government - continued
Judicial - continued
Common Pleas Security-
Personal services..........ooccveeivciveeencnennnn. 1,034 1,107 1,105 2
Materials and supplies.......cccccoeevevnneeen.n. 3 3 2 1
Charges and services.......c...cccocvvvvvrenenn. 20 22 12 10
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 5 4 3 1
Detention Home-
Personal ServiCes.........coovvvveveviiiinenenninnn, 2,839 2,884 2,884 -
Materials and supplies..........ccccccovvvrnenne. 245 217 216 1
Charges and Services..........ccocvevcveenennnne 369 361 360 1
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 12 7 7 -
Probate Court-
Personal services...........cocccovvveiieerinnannn. 1,937 1,942 1,941 1
Materials and supplies..........cccoceveeeenne.. 32 32 31 1
Charges and services...........cccocvvrvecvnnen. 81 55 49 6
Capital outlay and equipment................... - - - -
Integrated Justice System-
Personal services.........cccoccvvvvverierirnennnne 135 125 124 1
Materials and supplies..............ccceevvene.. 2 2 1 1
Charges and services............ccecevervveecnensn. 270 274 226 48
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 53 36 33 3
Clerk of Courts-
Personal services.......cccccvvveevccciniennnnnn. 1,869 1,841 1,840 1
Materials and supplies..........c.ccccocvveeneen... 315 291 291 -
Charges and services..........ccccocvvvreenennn. 74 83 76 7
Capital outlay and equipment................... 24 20 18 2
Community Supervision-
Personal services.......c..ccococvvvivicriancnnnnn 501 493 493 .
Materials and supplies.........c.cccccvvvevnee.. 2 2 2 -
Charges and Services............c.ccevvevurnen... 102 112 103 9
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 2 1 1 -
Public Defenders
Charges and services.........ccccoevvevrvvvenenns. 3,563 3,760 3,738 22
Municipal Courts-
Personal Services.........ccccoevevvemrvencreennnnenn 657 662 643 19
Charges and services...........cceceeerrernnnnen. 104 101 88 13



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

General Government - continued

Judicial - continued
Law Library-
Personal services..........c.......

Other-

Charges and Services...........cccocveveiacenne.

Total judicial............cccoeo..n.

Public safety
Medical Corrections-
Personal services........oceuuue..

Materials and supplies.........coevcvvininnn
Charges and Services...........cccovviviincnnne
Capital outlay and equipment...................

Coroner-
Personal services...........c......

Materials and supplies.......cccccccovveereininns
Charges and services.........ccccveveeinienennnn.
Capital outlay and equipment....................

Sheriff - New Class-

Charges and ServiCes.........cooeveeeiniinns,

Sheriff - Corrections center-
Personal services..................

Materials and supplies.......cccooecreiiniinnnnn.
Charges and Services........ccovververeeirenanen

Capital outlay and equipment

Sheriff - Law Enforcement-
Personal services..................
Materials and supplies...........
Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment

Sheriff - Administration

Personal Services.........oovvvvveevevviieneeenennnns

Materials and supplies...........
Charges and services............
Capital outlay and equipment

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

140 142 142 -
273 129 130 (1)
41,267 40,778 40,452 326
988 822 821 1

62 44 36 8
466 671 563 108

12 12 10 2
1,177 1,041 1,017 24
6 8 8 -

157 133 104 29

1 1 1 -

100 7 7 -
16,5623 16,308 16,300 8
213 231 230 1
1,442 1,367 1,237 130
55 53 30 23
5,779 5,411 5,408 3
146 157 157 -
508 457 428 29

8 15 15 -
1,964 1,961 1,959 2
43 44 41 3
399 288 264 24

9 9 9 -
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Public safety - continued
Sheriff - 911 Call Takers-
Personal Services........ccccccvveriiiinnnencn. - - - -
Materials and supplies...........cccecvvnevernnenn. - - - -
Charges and services...........ccccoceeiciiinnss 1 1 - 1
Public Safety Contracts-
Personal ServiCes........o.ccevveiiiiiniiinnnn, 537 265 246 19
Charges and services............... e 10 12 11 1
Public Safety Court Security-
Personal services.........ccccciiniiniinnnnn, 3,860 3,927 3,924 3
Charges and services...........ccccoeeveeennnn 64 63 61 2
Incarceration Facility-
Charges and Services.........ccoeevvvnvvneennnnn 3,763 3,645 3,645 -
Other-
Charges and Services..........ccccenrienneennnen 599 599 599 -
Total public safety...........cccccevvenviviennnn.. 38,892 37,652 37,131 421
Public works
Engineer-
Personal services........cccccovvveiciciinicennnn 161 168 168 -
Materials and supplies..........cccccceveeereens. 14 16 16 -
Charges and services.........c.cccceeivveeennnen 78 63 60 3
Capital outlay and equipment................... 5 1 1 -
Ditch Maintenance-
Personal services........ccovceveeieneienniennen.. 6 6 - 6
Charges and services...........occceevvenenn. 59 59 14 45
Total public WOrkS..........cccocevevcvvnccnnni.. 323 313 259 54
Health
Health Services-
Charges and services.......c...ccocceeerennernennen 1,177 978 847 131
Registration of Vital Statistics-
Charges and services...........ccovvevieiinnn 9 9 - 9
Total health...........cocovevvecvivieireincean 1,186 987 847 140
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Human services
Veterans Service Commission- :
Personal Services........cocceveeiviieinieieininnnens 384 382 379 3
Materials and supplies......c...cccccccveniiinin 8 12 12 -
Charges and services............cocvvvevenennnnss 1,131 1,130 1,073 57
Capital outlay and equipment.................... 15 15 8 7
Veterans Service-
Charges and services..........ccccoveevieinnns 25 22 22 -
Other-
Charges and services.........cccoceveiininenns - 75 74 1
Total human services.............ccccueveenenn. 1,563 1,636 1,568 68
Conservation and recreation
Recreation-
Personal services........coovveviviiiiiieniiinienenns 670 628 571 57
Materials and supplies..........c.cccoeveeennnen 67 67 65 2
Charges and services..........ccccovvniiininnss 332 433 396 37
Capital outlay and equipment................... 21 8 4 4
Agriculture-
Charges and Services..........c.ccvvnvrcvennn. 331 376 373 3
Other-
Charges and Services...........ccovivvnininss 61 61 61 -
Total conservation and recreation........... 1,482 1,573 1,470 103
Miscellaneous
Contingencies-
Charges and services............ccceccevenuneeen.. 1,779 2,522 1,490 1,032
Other-
Charges and services...........c.oceeecvevnneennn. 1,130 663 630 33
Total miscellaneous....................cceeu.... 2,909 3,185 2,120 1,065
Total expenditures.............cccveevervunenan., $ 117,654 $ 114,110 $ 111,141 $ 2,969
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL
December 31, 2003

Special Revenue Funds- The Special Revenue funds
account for all specific financial resources (other than
expendable trusts, or major capital projects) that are legally
restricted for specified expenditure purposes. The following
are the Special Revenue funds which Lucas County
operates:

Community Mental Health- To account for revenues
received from a county-wide property tax levy, federal and
state grants, and reimbursements used for various county
mental health programs.

Real Estate Assessment- To account for state mandated
county-wide real estate reappraisals.

Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax- To account for monies
received by the County for State gasoline tax and vehicle
registration fees used for county road and bridge improve-
ments programs.

Emergency Medical Services- To account for
emergency medical care financed by a county-wide sales
tax.

Emergency Telephone System- To account for a
county-wide property tax levy used for emergency telephone
assistance

Zoo Operating- To account for a county-wide property
tax levy. Monies are distributed directly to the Toledo
Zoological Society.

Child Support Enforcement Agency- To account for
revenues from: fees, fines, federal and state grants and
other similar revenue sources, and to account for legally
restricted expenditures used for the collection and protec-
tion of support payments made and owed to parents and
children.

Capital Projects Funds- Capital Projects funds account
for financial resources to be used for the construction of
acquisition of major capital facilities (other than those
finances by proprietary funds and trust funds). The
following are the Capital funds which Lucas County
operates:

Other Special Revenue Funds- To account forrevenues
from: fees, taxes, fines, federal and state grants, licenses
and other similar revenue sources, and to account for
legally restricted expenditures for specified purposes.
Summarized information on the financial activity and
balances of the following Special Revenue funds include:

Dog and Kennel

Hote! Lodging Tax

Community Development Grant
Emergency Management Agency
Marriage License

Coroner’s Lab Fund

Law Enforcement Drug Fund
Delinquent Real Estate Tax and Assessment Collection Fund
Tax Instaliment Payment Plan
Emergency Planning Fund
Indigent Guardianship

Drug & Alcohol Services Board
Community MR/RES Services
Senior Services

Economic Development

Indigent Drivers

Probation Service

Motor Venhicle Enforcement and Education
Building Regulations

Certificate of Title Administration
Recorder Equipment

Juvenile Treatment Center
Juvenile Felony Care

Adult Probation Grant
Correctional Treatment Facility
Common Pleas Civil Mediation
Sheriff's Policing

Workforce Development
Administration of Justice

Local Development

When compared to combined Special Revenue fund
totals, other special revenue funds comprise less than 10%
in each of the following categories: assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenditures.

Permanent Zoo Improvements- To account for a
County-wide property tax levy used for renovation and
construction of buildings, facilities and infrastructure for the
Toledo Zoo.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Community Real Motor Emergency Emergency
Mental Estate Vehicle and Medical Telephone
Health Assessment Gas Tax Services System
ASSETS
Pooled cash and cash equivalents ......................... $ 918 § 255  § 39 $ 212§ 745
Pooled investments ..................cc.ooo 8,419 2,343 3,628 1,948 6,839
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectables)
Taxes 9,410 - - - 5,602
Accounts ... - - 4 - -
Loans - - - - -
Due from other governments 450 - 5,597 - 283
Inventory: materials and supplies - - 466 - -
Totalassets ........c.cooeeiiiiniiiiiii $ 19197 § 2598 $ 10,091 § 2,160 $ 13,469
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable ..................c $ 885 $ 7 8 436 $ 1,038 § 59
Accrued wages and benefits 21 46 113 24 10
Due tootherfunds ...................... - - - 6 -
Deferred revenue ...................oovvveeiiiecviiiiinen. 9,925 - 4,199 - 5,924
Total liabilities .............cccooooiiiiin 10,501 123 4,748 1,068 5,993
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances ................c... 4,414 66 1,044 30 1,183
Inventory ............... - - 466 - -
Loans receivable - - - - -
Unreserved undesignated 4,282 2,409 3,833 791 6,283
Total fund balances ...................... 8,696 2,475 5,343 1,092 7,476
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 19,197  § 2598 § 10,091 $ 2,160 § 13,469
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Capital Project

Other Total
Child Support Special Permanent Nonmajor
Zoo Enforcement Revenue Zoo Governmental
Operating Agency Funds Total Improvements Funds
$ 20 3 258 % 1,770 $ 4574 § 2 3 4,596
186 2,367 22,358 48,088 201 48,289
5,627 - 3,048 23,687 6,100 29,787
- - 251 255 - 255
- - 77 77 - 77
315 - 1,589 8,244 298 8,542
- - - 466 - 466
$ 6,148 § 2625 § 29,103 $ 85391 $ 6621 § 92,012
$ -3 129 § 2,468 $ 4762 $ - % 4,762
- 153 230 597 - 597
- 2 7 15 - 15
5,981 - 3,259 29,288 6,436 35,724
5,981 284 5,964 34,662 6,436 41,098
- 291 6,536 13,845 - 13,845
- - - 466 - 466
- - 77 77 - 77
167 2,050 16,526 36,341 185 36,526
167 2,341 23,139 50,729 185 50,914
$ 6,148 § 2625 § 29,103 $ 85391 § 6,621 $ 92,012
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Community Real Motor Emergency Emergency
Mental Estate Vehicle and Medical Telephone
Health Assessment Gas Tax Services System
REVENUES
TAXES..uveiiiiieiiii e, $ 9208 § - 8 - $ - 8 5,408
Charges for services.......................... - 3,731 141 - -
Fines and forfeits...............c.......c....... - - 50 - -
Inergovemmental revenue ..................... 27,458 - 15,561 - -
Miscellaneous revenue.......................... 412 35 123 57 2
Total revenues.................coooooiiinnn... 37,073 3,766 15,865 57 5,410
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive................... - 3,629 - - -
Judicial............. - - - - -
Publicsafety..................c..o.c - - - 8,791 3,143
Publicworks..................coooviiinin. - - 16,583 - -
Health............... 35,401 - - - -
Human services.................c...ccooe. - - - - -
Conservation and recreation. ................ - - - - -
Miscellaneous..............ccccoeeeinnnni . - - - - -
Capital outlay................o.oovviniinnnn, - - - - -
Total expenditures........................... 35,401 3,529 16,583 8,791 3,143
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures................... 1,672 237 (718) (8,734) 2,267
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
OPWC loan proceeds..........c.............. - - 441 - -
Proceeds of cap.lease trans................. - - - - -
Operating transfersin........................... - - - 8,958 -
Operating transfersout......................... - - (384) - -
Total other financing sources (uses). ... - - 57 8,958 -
Net change in fund balances............... 1,672 237 (661) 224 2,267
Fund balance at beginning of year............ 7,024 2,238 6,004 868 5,209
Fund balance atend of year.................... $ 8696 $ 2475 $ 5343 § 1,092 $ 7,476
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Capital Projects

Other Total
Child Support Special Permanent Nonmajor
Zoo Enforcement Revenue Zoo Governmental
Operating Agency Funds Total Improvements Funds

$ 5446 § - $ 6,579 $ 26636 §$ 588 3 32,521
- 1,224 7,535 12,631 - 12,631

- - 108 159 - 189

- 10,128 23,877 77,014 - 77,014

1 55 15,349 16,034 1 16,035

5,447 11,407 53,449 132,474 5,886 138,360

- - 7,336 10,865 - 10,865

- 11,432 3,171 14,603 - 14,603

- - 8,729 20,663 - 20,663

- - - 16,583 - 16,583

- - 12,222 47,623 - 47,623

- - 3,707 3,707 - 3,707

5,465 - 1,941 7,406 - 7,406

- - 18,332 18,332 - 18,332

- - - - 5,900 5,900

5,465 11,432 56,438 139,782 5,900 145,682
_{18) (25) (1,989) (7,308) (14) (7,322)

- - - 441 - 441

- - 8 8 - 8

- - 1,883 10,841 - 10,841
- - (358) (742) - (742)

- - 1,533 10,548 - 10,548

(18) (25) (456) 3,240 (14) 3,226

185 2,366 23,595 47,489 199 47,688

$ 167 § 2341  § 23,139 $ 50,729 § 185  § 50,914
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
LI DG TP $ 9,120 $ 9,211 $ 91
Intergovernmental revenue.................ocoeeiieen 26,979 27,688 709
Miscellaneous revenue...........occoceeiiiiiniiiiinennn 155 412 257
TOtal reVeNUE. ........vecveveeiniiiaiaaieisieieiiraenen 36,254 37,311 1,057
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal ServiCes.......cccvvmeviiiininnii i, 1,183 1,125 58
Materials and supplieS......cccoocveiiiniiiicniiinnnnnes 29 25 4
Charges and ServiCes...........ccccovvvviiiiireneniiennn 41,883 41,398 485
Capital outlay and equipment............cccoeevennnn 23 4 19
Total expenditures...............cccoiveriiviiiiiiienniannn. 43,118 42,552 566
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (6,864) (5,241) 1,623
Fund balance at beginning of year........................ 5132 5,132
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................. 3,380 3,380 -
Fund balance atend of year..........c.ccoovevviviiinninn $ 1,648 $ 3,271 $ 1,623




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
REAL ESTATE ASSESSMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services...........ccooovviiiiiiiinncinein $ 3,675 $ 3,734 $ 59
Miscellaneous revenue................cooevvevienienne., 35 35 -
Total revenue...........c.c..cooeeviiiiisiiaiiiseinn, 3,710 3,769 59
Expenditures:
Current;
Legislative and executive
Personal Services...........ovvvivviiiiiiniiiiiieeeen, 2,812 2,743 69
Materials and supplies.............cooeviiiiiniinnn, 205 28 177
Charges and Services..............ccovvvievviiniiinnnnnnn, 1,416 687 729
Capital outlay and equipment............................ 457 309 148
Total expendituresS..............cccouvveeveeiiieeiininnnn.n. 4,890 3,767 1,123
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures......... (1,180) 2 1,182
Fund balance at beginning of year.......................... 2,210 2,210
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................... 245 245 -
Fund balance atend of year.........................oeene, $ 1,275 $ 2,457 $ 1,182




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MOTOR VEHICLE & GAS TAX - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for ServiCes........co.cvviiviriiineiieeiiinn $ 75 $ 141 $ 66
Fines and forfeits..........ccooovviiiiiiiiiic 55 50 (5)
Intergovernmental revenue...............cocecevnnnn, 15,486 15,942 456
Miscellaneous revenue...........co.veviveieninniienenennan. 215 202 (13)
TOtAl FOVENUE. .......e.eoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee, 115,831 16,335 504
Expenditures:
Current:
Public works
Personal SErvICES.......vvuviiiiiiieiiieeeeneeen 6,438 6,229 209
Materials and supplieS........ccoviiiiiiiiiii 344 284 60
Charges and Services .........cc.ccccvveeiiiiniiniinnnnn 13,481 11,775 1,706
Capital outlay and equipment..............ccovinennnn 331 323 8
Total expenditures.........c..cccvevvereceeiinscinennnnn, 20,594 18,611 1,983
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (4,763) (2,276) 2,487
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 1,939 1,939
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 2,968 2,968 -
Fund balance atendof year..............cceveveninnnen $ 144 $ 2,631 $ 2,487
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue............c.cevverevnerncncrnnennn $ 10 $ 57 3 47
Total revenue. ...........cooveveiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinenin, 10 57 47
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal Services .......ccoevvviiiiiiiiiiiineen 1,368 1,331 37
Materials and supplies ........coveeririienrreiiinnienn. 524 395 129
Charges and Services .........c..cceeveviiiiiiiiniiin 7,746 7,619 127
Capital outlay and equipment ............c..oovevvennns 188 87 101
Total expenditures...........c.cuuveeereieniiiiaeinann. 9,826 9,432 394
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (9,816) (9,375) 441 V
Other financing sources:
Operating transfers in..........ccocoeviiiiiiinnennnn. 8,958 8,958 -
Total other financing SOUICES...........cc.ccvvvevenen.. 8,958 8,958
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures. ...........c.cc.cccceeiaii.. (858) (417) 441
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 788 788 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................. 395 395 -
Fund balance atend of year.........c.o.ocveevenienannnnt. $ 325 $ 766 $ 441
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
TAXES .. eiei i $ 5,565 $ 5,414 $ (151)
Miscellaneous revenue.................cooceeeiiiiiin, - 2 2
Total revenue............cccuueeeriieeiiiiiiiiiiivaiiinn.n, 5,565 5,416 (149)
Expenditures:
~ Current:
Public safety
Personal services ............ccevvviiiiiiiiniiininn e, 908 541 367
Materials and supplies ..............cccoii, 22 15 7
Charges and services ...........ccooeciviviieinniinnnnn, 8,126 3,887 4,239
Capital outlay and equipment ..............co.cvvvnennn. 158 149 9
Total expenditures..............cc.cocceeieiiiiiniinninn... 9,214 4,592 4,622
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (3,649) 824 4,473
Fund balance at beginning of year........................ 4,703 4,703
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................. 649 649 -
Fund balance atendof year.............................. $ 1,703 $ 6,176 $ 4,473
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
Z0O OPERATING - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
LI )G TP U PPN $ 5,648 $ 5,451 $ (197)
Miscellaneous revenue. ... ........oevvvvivvrnenenneeeenee 5 2 (3)
TOtal FEVENUB. .......vvveeeeeeaeeeiiiieiaeeivasneneeenn 5,653 5,453 (200)
Expenditures:
Current:
Conservation and recreation
Charges and Services ...........c.oocvviviiiiineiniieenn, 5,500 5,465 35
Total expenditures. ...........ccccoovvvinviiviiiiiinnininnn, 5,500 5,465 35
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....... 153 (12) (165)
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 41 41 -
Fund balance atend of year......ccccoccovevviniiininnn. $ 194 $ 29 $ (165)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT AGENCY - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services...........cco.cooviiiniiiin i, $ 853 $ 1,312 $ 459
Intergovernmental revenue.......................... 10,745 10,128 (617)
Miscellaneous revenue..................ccooocvenininnn. 59 58 )]
Totalrevenue.................c..ccoiiiieiiieiiiiniinnnn, 11,657 11,498 (159)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Judicial
Personal services...........ccoeeveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinen, 9,968 9,309 659
Materials and supplies.............oooeeiiivniiiiinn. 262 200 62
Charges and Services ...........ccoeeeevivncvneiininn.... 3,229 2,782 447
Capital outlay and equipment.............................. 135 51 84
Total expenditures. ............cccovveveevieieniiiniinii, 13,594 12,342 1,252
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (1,937) (844) 1,093
Fund balance at beginning of year........................ 2,612 2,612
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................. 448 448 -
Fund balance atend of year.............................. $ 1,123 $ 2,216 3 1,093
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

DOG AND KENNEL - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

Charges for services.......ccoevvieiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiee, $ 923 $ 1,012 $ 89

Fines andforfeits...........ccoovviiiiiiiii i 56 73 17

Miscellaneous revenue.............ccocvviiieiiinenenennn. 129 126 (3)
Total revenue.............c..ceeeieviiiiiiiiiiiiinsiennnanns 1,108 1,211 103

Expenditures:

Current:

General government
Health

Personal ServiCes........ccovvviiiiiiiiii i, 1,234 1,218 16

Materials and supplieS.........cccoviviiiiiiiiiiinn 148 107 41

Charges and SErviCes .........cvvvvvevriiinieeenninnnnnn 198 185 13

Capital outlay and equipment...............c.cocoeeveenin. 9 7 2
Total expenditures...........c..covvvvivrviininiinenennn.. 1,589 1,517 72
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... (481) (306) 175

Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in.........c..co.cociiivnvnnnnnnnnn. 302 252 (50)
Total other financing sources........................... 302 252 (50)
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures. ...............ccccouvvvuenn.. (179) (54) 125

Fund balance at beginning of year........................ 324 324 -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................. 51 51 -

Fund balance atend of year.................cc..coone. $ 196 $ 321 $ 125
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

HOTEL LODGING TAX - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Expenditures:
Current:
Miscellaneous
Charges and ServiCes.........c..cvveveviiiiivininann

Total expenditures...........ccccovveireeieininiiiiinennan,
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures......

Fund balance at beginning of year........................
Fund balance atend of year.......c......ooiiiiininn

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
4,500 3,608 (892)
4,500 3,608 (892)
3,800 3,608 192
3,800 3,608 192
700 (700)
3 700 $ (700)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue.................cooeevieenninnn, $ 14,000 $ 3,863 (10,137)
Total revenue............c.coeveeeeeiiiisiiiiiiiiiiinnannnn. 14,000 3,863 (10,137)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Personal ServiCes...........coiiveiiniiiiiinineeecee . 224 157 67
Materials and supplies..............cooocvviiieniieiinin 1 - 1
Charges and ServiCes...........cooeveviiieiieiieiieen.... 1,671 800 871
Capital outlay and equipment............................ 496 47 449
Total legislative & executive....................ccevenn.. 2,392 1,004 1,388
Judicial
Personal Services.........c.ccovvvviviiiiieiin e, 928 602 326
Materials and supplies.............coccoeiviiieiinnnne, 37 34 3
Charges and Services.........c.....cooevevviiieiiinennnn.. 2,088 1,788 300
Capital outlay and equipment............................. 388 305 83
Total judicial............ccvveiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicin . 3,441 2,729 712
Public safety
Personal services..........c.coovviiiiiiieieiinin 276 216 60
Materials and supplies...........cccoovveiiviiniiniiinin, 1 1 -
Charges and ServiCes................cceeevveeineeneennnnn. 408 308 100
Capital outlay and equipment............................. 454 364 90
Total public safety.............cccoeueevveveeeiaeaeeannn, 1,139 889 250
Health
Charges and ServiCes............oco.uveevveeiniieneeinnnn. 8 - 8
Total health. ...........cccocvvvvemiiiiiaieiiiiieiaan 8 - 8
Conservation & recreation
Charges and services...............c.ceeevveuveivnnnnnnn... 2,476 2,020 456
Total conservation & recreation........................... 2,476 2,020 456
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Public Works
Capital outlay and equipment............c..cooveienn. 1 - (1)
Total public WOrks..............c.coeiiiiiiinn 1 (1)
Miscellaneous
Charges and ServiCes........ooovviiiiiiiiinciinii
Total miscellaneous.............c.ccocoecveiiiniiiiiiinini -
Total expenditures............ccovvveiiiviiiiniiiiininiiie 9,457 6,642 2,815
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures............ 4,543 (2,779) (7,322)
Other financing (uses):
Operating transfers in........c..ccocoviiii e - 513 513
Operating transfers out.................ooo (4,724) (312) 4,412
Total other financing sources (uses) (4,724) 201 4,925
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other
fiNANCING USES....vvieiriiii e (181) (2,578) (2,397)
Fund balance at beginning of year......................o 492 492
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....................... 794 794 -
Fund balance atend of year...............co.ccooeneiiin, $ 1,105 $ (1,292) $ (2,397)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue................ooeeeinniennnnnn. $ 224 $ 270 $ 46
Miscellaneous revenue...........ooveveciieniviniiiinn, 16 27 11
Total rOVENUE. ... vt 240 297 57
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal serviCes.........ocoovveiiiiiiiiiininnnn, 313 289 24
Materials and supphies.........cc..coooiiiiiiin 6 5 1
Charges and ServiCes........c.c.covvvivieeiiiiiiniinn 137 108 29
Capital outlay and equipment................o.ooee 13 8 5
Total expenditures. ............coeeeeevevnenniinninnon. 469 410 59
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (229) (113) 116
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in..........cocoeiiiin 167 130 37
Total other financing SOUICes............ccceeevenn. 167 130 37
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures..........cccoeoeinieninnnnn. (62) 17 79

Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 58 58 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 30 30 -
Fund balance atend of year..................coovennee. $ 26 $ 105 $ 79
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CORONER'S LAB FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for ServiCes...........c.coceevevieiiiieeiiinnennn., $ 350 $ 406 $ 56
Total revenue.............ccoccvveveveiiiieiiciiinannn, 350 406 56
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Materials and supplies............c.ccoeeeeivininennnn, 97 57 40
Charges and services...............coeeeeeivvnnenennnn.n, 445 298 147
Capital outlay and equipment........................... 69 46 23
Total expenditures. ..................cccvveviunvennn.., 611 401 210
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.. ... (261) 5 266
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 751 751
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 53 53 -
Fund balance atend of year....................cco...... 3 543 $ 809 $ 266
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MARRIAGE LICENSE - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for ServiCes.........c.ccoveveieiiiiineineinneinn $ 200 3 167 $ (33)
Total revenue. ...........c.eevvuvuneeeiiiiiieiinianian, 200 167 (33)
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Charges and services...........ocooveveiinnneniinn 200 180 20
Total expenditures. ...........cccccovevcviiniiinnnnienen, 200 180 20
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures...... - (13) (13)
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 74 74 -
Fund balance atend of year...............c..ccoeenne $ 74 $ 61 $ (13)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
LAW ENFORCEMENT DRUG FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Fines and forfeits..........ccco.ovviiiniiin e, $ 25 $ - $ (25)
Totalrevenue..............coveueeviiiiiiiiiiinsinannn., 25 - (25)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Charges and Services.............ccoeecvveiiinnencnnn... 25 - 25
Total expenditures............c..ccccovvvvevieciininn, 25 - 25

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.. ..

Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 18 18

Fund balance atend of year............................. $ 18 $ 18 $
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DELINQUENT REAL ESTATE TAX AND ASSESSMENT

COLLECTION - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services................cceeeeeen. [T $ 1,300 $ 1,404 $ 104
Miscellaneous revenue............cooevvieniiiniiiinnnn.. 400 325 (75)
Total reVeNUE. ........oeeeeveieiii e, 1,700 1,729 29
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
‘Legislative and executive
Personal ServiCes.......ocvvvvviiiiiiiiiieieeenene 1,192 1,174 18
Materials and supplieS.........cccovviviiiiiiiiinnnnnn 57 45 12
Charges and services.........c.cc.cooveeviiinneinenn. 619 . 523 96
Capital outlay and equipment...............cccoeeees 24 17 7
Total expenditures. ............ooveveveiivviniiinenannn. 1,892 1,759 133
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (192) (30) 162
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... T 826 826
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 48 48 -
Fund balance atendof year............................. $ 682 $ 844 $ 162
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
TAX INSTALLMENT PAYMENT PLAN - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services...........cooveiiiiiiiiiiiiininnn $ 30 $ 26 $ (4)
Total revenue..........c.c.coeveeeeeiiiiviiiiniiiiiinnnn, 30 26 (4)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Materials and supplies..........ccccooveviniiinnn, 6 3 3
Charges and ServiCes...........covuvveiveiienennnnnnn 19 14 5
Capital outlay and equipment......................... 5 - 5
Total expenditures............ccc.vveveerienceniennnnn.. 30 17 13
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... - 9 9
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 214 214 -
Fund balance atendof year............................. $ 214 $ 223 $ 9
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY PLANNING FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services........cccccovveiniiniccniinneinnenan.. $ 60 $ 63 $ 3
Miscellaneous revenue.............cccovevveiiivinnnnn. 10 5 (5)
Total revenue..........c.c.covvveeeiieniiiieiiieeiiianin, 70 68 (2)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Materials and supplieS...........cocvvviviinnnnn.. 5 1 4
Charges and ServiCes...........coovvivevnevnnennnnen 126 76 50
Capital outlay and equipment......................... 5 3 2
Total expenditures............cccvvveveiviiinininaanan, 136 80 56
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (66) (12) 54
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 55 55
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 4 4 -
Fund balance atend of year............................. $ (7) $ 47 $ 54
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
INDIGENT GUARDIANSHIP FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Miscellaneous revVeNUEe. ........c.ovievieveiiireeneennnnn,

TOtal rEVEONUEB. .......ceeeeeeiieiiiiiieiiaieneaennan

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Judicial

Charges and ServiCes.............coocoivvviiiiinniennnnnn,
Total expenditures............ocouviviiiiiiiiiniinininn
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.....
Fund balance at beginning of year......................

Prior year encumbrances appropriated................
Fund balance atend of year...................ocoeeen

Variance:

Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

$ 85 $ 38 $ @7
85 38 (47)

85 68 17

85 68 17
(30) (30)

63 63

$ 6(; $ 3(; $ (3(;)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES BOARD - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue..............ccoveeevinniinnnn, $ 9,795 $ 9,653 $ (142)
Total revenue. ........cccoevevevuiiciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiane, 9,795 9,653 (142)
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal services.......ccoovveiiiiiiiciiiiinn, 533 532 1
Materials and supplieS.......cccooeeiiiiiiiniiinnnn 7 7 -
Charges and services............coooviviiiiiininnn, 10,217 10,147 70
Capital outlay and equipment....................e 9 9 -
Total expenditures............c.ccooceviviiiiiiiininn.n. 10,766 10,695 71
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (971) (1,042) (71)
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... (25) (25)
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 986 986 -
Fund balance at end of year............coovevenenninnns $ (10) $ (81) $ (71)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY MR/RES SERVICES - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue

Total reVeNUE. ........c.cceueeeeiieiiieiineasiaanaiin,

Expenditures:
Current;
Health
Charges and services

Total expenditures..........coceeeeveeeecieiiiinnnn...

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.. ..

Fund balance at beginning of year...................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund balance at end of year

Variance:

. Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

$ 3,433 $ 2,268 $ (1,165)
3,433 2,268 (1,165)

2,414 1,852 562

2,414 1,852 562
1,019 416 (603)

1,681 1,681
790 790 -

$ 3,490 $ 2,887 $ (603)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SENIOR SERVICES - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
T AXES et eeee e ettt $ 3,210 $ 2,973 $ (237)
Intergovernmental revenue...................oceeeii 1 1 -
Total reVenUe. ........cvveviiieieiiiiieiiieie 3,211 2,974 (237)
Expenditures:
Current:
Human services
Charges and ServiCes...........cooeveireiiiiiinnnnnn. 3,200 3,174 26
Total expenditures. ..........c.covviviiiininiiininnnnn. 3,200 3,174 26
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 11 (200) (211)
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 367 367 -
Fund balance atend of year............ccocoevveininn $ 378 $ 167 $ (211)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenue.................................

Total revenue...........ccc.cceevveeeeeiisiiiiiis i,

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Personal services............c.coocoeiiiniiiiniin
Materials and supplies..................ooooveevinnen.
Charges and services..........ccccceiveeiiiiinnnnn..n,

Capital outlays and equipment........................

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.....

Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in..................coooooveeinnn.

Total other financing sources...........................

Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and other uses.........

Fund balance at beginning of year......................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................

Fund balance atend of year...................cooen..

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
$ 199 $ 115 $ (84)
199 115 (84)
348 340 8
5 5 -
1,678 1,491 187
1 - 1
2,032 1,836 196
(1,833) (1,721) 112
989 989
989 989
(844) (732) 112
1,446 1,446
44 44 -
$ 646 $ 758 $ 112
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
INDIGENT DRIVERS FUND - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
- Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Fines and forfeits............oovveinivcniie e $ 10 $ 31 $ 21
Totalrevenue...........c.oovveiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiien, 10 31 21
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial
Charges and ServiCes.........c.covevvveenieneneeninnn 10 - 10
Total expenditures. ............cccoovvviiieciiiiniiiiiian. 10 - 10
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... - 31 31
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 170 170 -
Fund balance atend of year.............c..ccoeeveennen $ 170 $ 201 $ 31
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PROBATION SERVICE - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for SEIVICES  ....ccveviveiineiinieiincciniieies $ 130 $ 148 $ 18
TOtal reVENUE  ..oooooeveeiiiiei e 130 148 18
Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative and executive
Charges and Services ..............occeviviiiiininiinnn 126 85 41
Capital outlay and equipment ... 350 - 350
Total expenditures..........cccooveeieiiiiiiiiiniiniiinnn, 476 85 391
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (346) 63 409
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 346 346
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 42 42 -
Fund balance atend of year..........c.ccocoevvvvicnnennen $ 42 $ 451 $ 409
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MV ENFORCEMENT AND EDUCATION - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for ServiCes...........coocovvvniiiiniiiniinennnn. $ 20 $ 8 $ {12)
Total revenue.............cccovvvviiiiiiiiiiieiiiieinn, 20 8 (12)
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial
Charges and services.........c.cooceeveeeeiinennnnn..n. 20 7 13
Total expenditures............ccc.ccveeueiieiiinniinnann, 20 7 13
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... - 1 1
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 29 29 -
Fund balance atend of year............................. $ 29 $ 30 $ 1
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
BUILDING REGULATIONS - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services..........covviieiiiiiniiiiiniinen, $ 1,222 $ 1,385 $ 163
Total reVenuUe. ......coeeneeiiiiiiieieiiieie e 1,222 1,385 163
Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative and executive
Personal ServiCes.......ccovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiennens 1,172 1,162 10
Materials and supplies...........cccoviieiiiiinninn. 35 32 3
Charges and Services...........cooceveveeicninnennn 292 272 20
Capital outlay and equipment..................coeve 24 22 2
Total expenaditures. ..........c.ccveveiiiiieiiiiiinanan.. 1,523 1,488 35
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (301) (103) 198
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... | 1,170 1,170
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 24 24 -
Fund balance at end of year....... PPN $ 893 $ 1,091 $ 198
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CERTIFICATE OF TITLE ADMINISTRATION - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for Senvices........cooiveveirininciiiii, $ 1,630 $ 1,614 $ (16)
Total revenue.............cccoceeiveiiiiiiiiiiiii, 1,630 1,614 (16)
Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative and executive
Personal ServiCes...........cocovviiiiiiiiiiininn. 1,552 1,547 5
Materiais and supplies..........c.cooooiiin, 58 54 4
Charges and Services.............c..coeviviiiiinin, 144 120 24
Capital outlay and equipment......................... 25 8 17
Total expenditures.............cccooveeiiieiniiiiniiana. 1,779 1,729 50
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (149) (115) 34
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 1,326 1,326
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 19 19 -
Fund balance atend of year..................cooevneine $ 1,196 $ 1,230 $ 34
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
RECORDER EQUIPMENT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for Services.........coccoeveiiiiiiininieninn, $ 400 $ 564 $ 164
Total revenue...........ccccevuiveiiieeiiiiiiineiieiiiiiiin, 400 564 164
Expenditures:
General government;
Legislative and executive
Materials and supplies..............ocooeiviiiiil. 64 12 52
Charges and ServiCes.............covvvviveinennnnnn. 818 377 441
Capital outlay and equipment........................ 775 665 110
Total expenditures..............cocovveeiiiiiiienininnin, 1,657 1,054 603
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (1,257) (490) 767
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 890 890
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................. 577 577 -
Fund balance atend of year............................. $ 210 $ 977 $ 767
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
JUVENILE TREATMENT CENTER - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue................oeeevveniennne. $ 2,070 $ 2,195 $ 125
Total reVeNUe. ..., 2,070 2,195 125
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal ServiCes.........oveeeeeeriiiiiiiiiiinninin 1,997 1,988 9
Materials and supplies..........cocoovviiiniiiein 70 62 8
Charges and ServiCes.....c..oooveiiiiiieiininnnnn 121 117 4
Capital outlay and equipment......................... 1 1 -
Total expenditures. ............c.coeuvevviiionnvinininnn 2,189 2,168 21
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (119) 27 146
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 157 157
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 3 3 -
Fund balance atend of year............c.cooeveiiinennn, $ 41 $ 187 $ 146
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
JUVENILE FELONY CARE - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue...............c.ccceeeeineen. 3 1,491 $ 1,981 $ 490
Total revenue............couevveeeiiciiiiiniiiiiininiinn, 1,491 1,981 490
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal Services............coccoiviiiiiiiniiiiiinnn, 428 427 1
Materials and supplies..........ccccoveiviiniiinnnen. 1 1 -
Charges and Services...........cc.ovivvnviirinncnn.n, 1,721 1,550 171
Total expenditures............c.cccuvveeeeieinieanninn.., 2,150 1,978 172
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... (659) 3 662
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 1,295 1,295
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 275 275 -
Fund balance atend of year............................. $ 911 $ 1,573 $ 662
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ADULT PROBATION GRANT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue..........cc..cooevineiiennenn. $ 1,071 $ 849 $ (222)
Total revenue. .........cc.coeuveeiuiieieniiieieieaaans 1,071 849 (222)
Expenditures:
Current
General government
Judicial
Personal services........coc.oociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinenn. 697 669 28
Materials and supplies...........oocvvviiiinninennne. 6 4 2
Charges and ServiCes............coevveveveirinensnnn 263 229 34
Total expenditures............cocvvvvvvininnrinininnvnnann. 966 902 64
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... 105 (53) (158)
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 10 10
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 94 94 -
Fund balance atendof year.................cccoenenne. $ 209 $ 51 $ (158
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CORRECTIONAL TREATMENT FACILITY - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue..............ccovevveeneannns $ 3,523 $ 3,235 $ (288)
Total revenue.............ccoviveiiiiiisiieiiiiniiennann, 3,523 3,235 (288)
Expenditures:
Current
Public safety
Personal services.......ccoovevviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieinn 2,768 2,762 6
Materials and supplies...........ocoeiiviniviniaennnn, 258 228 30
Charges and ServiCes........occovvevvenverinrinennnn 398 381 17
Capital outlay and equipment............c..c........ 71 62
Total expenditures. ...........ccccvevveiiiiiiiiiniinniian, 3,495 3,433 62
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... 28 (198) (226)
Fund balance at beginning of year....................... 491 491
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 103 103 -
Fund balance atendof year.....................c.ooee $ 622 $ 396 $ (226)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMON PLEAS CIVIL MEDIATION - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
intergovernmental revenue..................cccovven.. $ 104 $ 9 $ (5)
Total reVeNUE. ...........c..ccvveeeeeeiiiiriiiiiiiinnn, 104 99 (5)
Expenditures:
Current
Public safety
Personal ServiCes......c...ocovveeiiiiiiiinannan. 83 80 3
Materials and supplies...........ccoccveeeiinenen. 1 - 1
Charges and services...........c.ccceevenviennnnn. 2 1 1
Capital outlay and equipment...................... 2 - 2
Total expenditures. ............c.cooevevecvennnninnnn, 88 81 7
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 16 18 2
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 131 131 -
Fund balance atend of year.......................... 3 147 $ 149  § 2
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

SHERIFF'S POLICING - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue..................co.oeei

TOta FOVENUEG. .....c.veeeeeiiiiiiiieiiieiiiieiranen,

Expenditures:
Current
Public safety
Personal services..........oocoviiiiiiciiiniinn,
Charges and Services..............ceeveiiiiininnn,
Capital outlay and equipment.....................

Total expenditures. ..............cc.covcvvviiiiniininnn.

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.....

Fund balance at beginning of year.......c..ccco.coo.o.
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.................

Fund balance atend of year..........................
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Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
$ 1,351 $ 802 $ (549)
1,351 802 (549)
1,085 687 398
7 7 -
1 - 1
1,093 694 399
258 108 (150)
(249) (249)
$ 9 $ (141) $ (150)



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL.--
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive

Budget Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue..................coceeennee. $ 4,522 $ 370 $ (4,152)
Miscellaneous Revenue............ccoceeiiiinne - 151 151
Total revenue. ............cocevveiiieiveiiniineininn, 4,522 521 (4,001)
Expenditures:
Current
Public safety
Personal services........coovvveviiiiinciiiiininnn, 514 211 303
Materials and supplies............ccovverviiiienennns 35 12 23
Charges and services..........c..cooevviiininnnne 3,703 348 3,355
Capital outlay and equipment...................... 58 44 14
Total expenditures...............c.ccoeveiiiiiiiiiin, 4,310 615 3,695
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..... 212 (94) (306)
Fund balance at beginning of year..........c............ (368) (368)
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................. 156 156 -
Fund balance atend of year.......................... 3 - $ (306) $ (306)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ADMINISTRATION OF JUSTICE - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Miscellaneous Revenue........................... 10 4 (6)
Total revenue..........cc.cccoeeveeeeeiiiinnennan., 10 4 (6)
Expenditures:
Current
Judical

Personal services.............c.coocvvviiinnen.,
Materials and supplies......................... - - -
Charges and services............c.c..ceeuenn, 5 1 4
Capital outlay and equipment.................

Total expenditures...............c.ccccevvevnnen.. 5 1 4

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditt 5 3 (2)

Fund balance at beginning of year.............
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......

Fund balance atend of year..................... 5 3 (2)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
_ (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT - OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Revised Actual
Budget Amounts
Revenues:
Miscellaneous Revenue..............ccoceeeenee 752 761
TOtal FEVENUE. ....c.eeeeiieeeaeeaiiieniaenes, 1752 761

Expenditures:
Current
Legislative and executive
Personal services..........cocoevviiiiniiinnnnn,
Materials and supplieS.............coovieennn. -
Charges and services................cooeeenes 752
Capital outlay and equipment.................

Total expenditures..............cccoovveeiinnnn. 752
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditL - 761
Fund balance at beginning of year.............

Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... -
Fund balance atendof year..................... - 761
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Variance:
Positive

(Negative)

752

752

761

761



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Special assessments..........cocvceevvieveiiiineeinens $ - $ 302 $ 302
Intergovernmental revenue............coocoeevevivennene .. - 1,589 1,589
Miscellaneous revenue...........c.ccovevueereivereinnn.. 55,000 9,398 (45,602)
Total revenues..........ccecceveveeeeeceeceecivanen.. 55,000 11,289 (43,711)
Expenditures:
Current:
Capital outlay- 45,133 28,060 17,073
Debt service
Principal retirement.............cccoooviiiiicnien 15,701 15,700 1
Interest and fiscal charges.........c..cccceevevvnne... 301 299 : 2
Total expenditures............cc.ccevveeevvvivnennnnnn, 61,135 44,059 17,076
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.. (6,135) (32,770) (26,635)
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of notes.........cccoeevveveeeeiiiiiin - 10,415 10,415
Proceeds of bonds.......c..ccooovivevineiiienicnien. - 7,250 7,250
Operating transfers in........cc.cocevevrvevcencneenen. - 2,084 2,084
Operating transfers (Out).........c.ccoccevveevcviiennnen.s (1,220) - 1,220
Total other financing sources (uses)................ (1,220) 19,749 20,969
Excess of revenue and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses........ (7,355) (13,021) (5,666)
Fund balance at beginning of year...................... 16,199 16,199 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................ 10,589 10,589 -
Fund balance at end of year.............ccccuevnn.... $ 19,433 $ 13,767 3 (5,666)
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Revenues:

Expenditures:
Current;
Capital outlay-

Construction contracts...................

Total expenditures.........................

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

PERMANENT ZOO IMPROVEMENT - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

(Amounts in 000's)

Excess revenues over (under) expenditures.................

Fund balance at beginning of year...
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year

Variance:
Favorable
Final Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 6,253 $ 5,890 $ (363)
2 1 (1)
6,255 5,891 (364)
6,100 5,899 201
6,100 5,899 201
155 (8) (163)
48 48 0
$ 203 $ 40 $ (163)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
BOND RETIREMENT-DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TAXES.coveeerreeneeenree e nre et cnireaereenee e e $ 5,465 $ 5,303 $ (162)
Special assessments..............cooeeeiiin, 299 1,425 1,126
Miscellaneous revenue...............ccoovnneienin 920 4,072 3,152
Total revVenues...........oveeeevvvmiiiiiiiiiinininns 6,684 10,800 4,116
Expenditures:
Current:
Debt Service-
Principal retirement............ccccccccoinnnn, 10,516 10,516 -
Miscellaneous.......cocovveviceriiiii 427 1 426
Interest and fiscal charges...................... 5,062 5,055 7
Total expenditures. ...............cccccccevcceiiiinnn. 16,005 15,572 433
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures.. (9,321) (4,772) 4,549

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in.........cocivinnnnn, 7,773 6,773 (1,000)
Operating transfers (Out).........cccocvevecriiinninnn, - - -

Total other financing sources (uses)............ 7,773 6,773 (1,000)

Excess of revenue and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and other uses.... (1,548) 2,001 3,549
Fund balance at beginning of year................... 12,729 12,729
Prior year encumbrances appropriated............ - - -
Fund balance at end of year..........c.c.cccccoveen. $ 11,181 $ 14,730 $ 3,549
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
December 31, 2003

Enterprise Funds- Enterprise funds account for
operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises. The intent of Lucas
County is that the costs of providing services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges. The following are the Enter-
prise funds which Lucas County operates:

Sanitary Engineer- To account for the administrative
costs of operating the water supply system, wastewater
treatment system, and sewer system.

Water Supply System- To account for the distribution of
treated water to individuals and commercial users of Lucas
County.

Wastewater Treatment- To account for wastewater
treatment services provided to the Sanitary Engineer, Cities
of Maumee and Sylvania, Village of Waterville, Sylvania
Township and other portions of Lucas County and portions
of Wood County.

Sewer System- To account for sanitary sewer services
provided to individuals and commercial users in Lucas
County and portions of Wood County.

Solid Waste- To account for the administration of solid
waste disposal county-wide.

Parking Facilities- To account for operation of parking
facilities.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for Services..........cooevvvvreeiinnnn. $ 780 $ 880 $ 100
Miscellaneous........c.ccovveiiiiiiiiiniiiieenn, 650 703 53
Total operating revenues...................... 1,430 1,583 153
Operating expenses:
Materials and supplieS.........c...ocoevveneneee 30 18 12
Contract ServiCes.........coovvvveviiiinienennnn 834 740 94
Total operating eXpenss.............c....c..... 864 758 106
Operating income (I0SS).......c.ccoeienninnenn. 566 825 259
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement.............c....c..ccooe... (264) (264) -
Interest and fiscal charges.................... (312) (306) 6
Total nonoperating revenues (expense).... (576) {570) 6
Income (loss) before operating transfers... (10) 255 265
Transferin.....ccoovvveeniiiiiii - - 265
Net income (108S).....c.coviviiiiiiiiiin (10) 255 265
Net assets at beginning of year.................. 737 737
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......... 98 98 -
Net assets atendof year.................oeenue $ 825 $ 1,090 $ 265
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
WASTEWATER TREATMENT-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services..........c.cooeevivieininnn,
Miscellaneous. ........occvveiviviiiniiiiennne

Total operating revenues......................
Operating expenses:
Personal services..........c.cococevinninnn.
Materials and supplies..................coou
Contract services............ccovevvveinenniann,
Capital outlay and equipment................
Total operating expense......................
Operating income (108S)..........c.coocienin
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement............................

Interest and fiscal charges..................

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)..

Net income (10SS)....covvvriviviiiiiiiieninen

Net assets at beginning of year.................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........
Net assets atend of year.........................

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts {Negative)
$ 4,506 $ 4,725 $ 219
1,000 - (1,000)
5,506 4,725 (781)
1,258 1,218 40
3,377 3,223 154
500 404 96
36 28 8
5,171 4,873 298
335 (148) (483)
(791) (790) 1
(615) (613) 2
(1,406) (1,403) 3
(1,071) (1,551) (480)
2,722 2,722
493 493 -
$ 2,144 $ 1,664 $ (480)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

SEWER SYSTEM-ENTERPRISE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services.................co.........
Miscellaneous.............ccccoeeiiiiininnnnn,

Total operating revenues.....................

Operating expenses:
Personal services...........c..coovevivnnennen..
Materials and supplies........................
Contract services............ccoevivvviinnennn.nn
Capital outlay and equipment...............
Miscellaneous..............oooviiiiiininen.n.

Total operating expense......................
Operating income (108S)............ccevvve.
Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Principal retirement................c...........
Interest and fiscal charges..................

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)..

Income (loss) before operating transfers.

Transfer Out.........oovviiiieiiiiiieeeevenann,

Netincome (10SS)........cccovevvivininenn..

Net assets at beginning of year................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......
Net assets atend of year........................

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts {Negative)

$ 500 $ 557 $ 57
1,198 1,204 6
1,698 1,761 63
17 12 5
892 627 265
3 1 2
912 640 272
786 1,121 335
(463) (222) 241
(178) (173) 5
(641) (395) 246
145 726 581
(1,134) (1,134) -
(989) (408) 581
2,984 2,984 .
113 113 -
$ 2,108 $ 2,689 $ 581
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Sanitary Solid Parking Total Other
_Engineer Waste Facilities Enterprise Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents................. $ 208 $ 125 $ 147 $ 480
Pooled investments.............coooiiiiiiine e 1,906 1,142 1,347 4,395
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectables)
ACCOUNES . .. it 1,463 180 42 1,685
Total current @assets........coovviiiiiiineniiinens 3,577 1,447 1,536 6,560
Noncurrent assets-capital assets:
LN e 153 - - 153
Buildings, structures, and improvements............ 3,006 - - 3,006
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment.................... 1,733 586 - 2,319
Less accumulated depreciation........................ (2,315) (412) - (2,727)
Total non-current..........ooovevieriviiieenenn 2,577 174 - 2,751
Total @ssets. . .cvvviir e $ 6,154 $ 1,621 $ 1,536 3 9,311
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable..............oooo, 28 65 - 93
Accrued wages and benefits....................L 330 36 - 366
Duetootherfunds............c.oooiiiiiiiinnnnn, 1 1 - 2
Current portion of long-term debt...................... 32 - - 32
Total current liabilities................cooevevviinnn. 391 102 - - 483
Noncurrent liablities:
OWDA loans payable................cooci 1,269 - - 1,269
Total noncurrent liabilities................ooeeenvnnnn 1,269 - - 1,269
Total liabilities..........ooooviiiirrv e 1,660 102 - 1,762
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt......... 1,276 174 - 1,450
Unrestricted. .......ooooiviiii 3,218 1,345 1,536 6,099
Totalnetassets........cooeeviiiiviiiii 4,494 1,519 1,536 7,549
Total liabilities and net assets...................o.oeeei $ 6,154 $ 1621 $ 1,536 $ 9,311

— 139 —




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Sanitary Solid Parking
Engineer Waste Facilities Total
Operating revenues:
Charges for services............cccoccevvevnnnenecenn $ 3,951 $ 1,908 $ 297 6,156
Miscellaneous......c....ccoovvvieriirieeeiiiciiiee e, 146 - - 146
Total operating revenues...............c.c........ 4,097 1,908 297 6,302
Operating expenses:
Personal services.........c..ouvevevevmeeveeveevnvnninins 3,064 485 - 3,549
Contract SEIVICES...c.cooeevieeeeiveveeeeeeeieieii e 333 1,091 110 1,634
Materials and supplies........cocccceeeeiieiicnininnne 292 6 - 298
Miscellaneous. .....cccocveveeeecciniiiineee e, - 49 - 49
Heat, light and power.........cccccevvivniinincinnne 40 - - 40
Depreciation.........c..cveeieereneciiiennicicn e 191 99 - 290
Total operating expenses...........cccceevevnen. 3,920 1,730 110 5,760
Operating income ...........c.cooeveevvcvvninnnn, 177 178 187 542
Nonoperating revenues (expenses): -
Interest and fiscal charges..........ccccoeeennnnnl. (80) - - (80)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets.................... (5) - - (5)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)........ (85) - - (85)
Increase innetassets..............cooeeenenn, 92 178 187 457
Net assets at beginning of year..................... 4,402 1,341 1,349 7,092
Net assets atend of year.................coeeevnneen $ 4,494 $ 1,519 $ 1,536 7,549
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Sanitary Solid Parking
_Engineer Waste Facilities Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers...........cccccevveveeennnns $ 4,189 $ 1,856 $ 280 $ 6,325
Cash paid to suppliers..........ccceeceerverenceeniirnncennees (681) (1,169) (110) (1,960)
Cash paid to employees..........cccecevirvrerrceirnnnennnnn. (3,171) (506) - (3,677)
Net cash provided by
operating activities.............ccovcevciinnicininnninnen, 337 181 170 688
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Principal payments - OWDA loans........c..cceceennnen (64) - - (64)
Purchase of fixed assets..........ccccccovvimerccccnninnnnnn. (186) (22) - (208)
Interest paid.........ccccceenmveiiiiiinir e (80) - - (80)
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities...............ccccieiie (330) (22) - (352)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of investments..................... 2,033 930 1,127 4,090
Payments for investments..............ccooeviinn, (2,000) (1,062) (1,256) (4,308)
Net cash used in investing
ACHVItIES. ..ottt e 33 (122) (129) (218)
Net increase in cash........cccoooeieiiiiiiiiei i 40 37 41 118
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1.................... 168 88 106 362
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31............... $ 208 $ 125 $ 147 $ 480

— 141 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities

Sanitary Solid Parking
Engineer Waste Facilities Total
Operating INCOME .......c.cccvenieiiiiiii e $ 177 $ 178 $ 187 $ 542
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation expense.........ooccecevinviiniiiiiin s 191 99 - 290
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable.........ccccvviiniinicc, 92 (52) (17) 23
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable.........cccocoeeeiin i (16) (15) 0 (31)
Accrued wages and benefits..........cccccceiniinn (107) (21) - (128)
Due to other funds.........ccceeiieieiiininicc e, - (8) - (8)
Total adjustments......coceeeiiiiiciiiicerc 160 3 (17) 146
Net cash provided by
operating actiVities.........c.vevvererinnienieccee e $ 337 $ 181 $ 170 $ 688
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SANITARY ENGINEER-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for services............coocveeeeiin, $ 3,900 $ 4,032 $ 132
Miscellaneous.............cccoeeiiiiiiniieennnn.. 75 147 72
Total operating revenues........................ 3,975 4,179 204
Operating expenses:
Personal services..........coovevevvviiniennnnnn.. 3,285 3,171 114
Materials and supplies............ccco.ceeneen. 487 375 112
Contract services.............c.covvveenninnnne. 460 358 102
Capital outlay and equipment................. 212 210 2
Miscellaneous..........c..covvvviiniiciniinnnnn.. - - -
Total operating expense........................ 4,444 4,114 330
Operating income (10SS)........covccvvervnnnnnn. (469) 65 534
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement...............ccccoccveeuun... (62) (62)
Interest and fiscal charges..................... (80) (80)
Total nonoperating revenues (expense).... (142) (142) -
Net income (I0SS).....cevvivieiiiiiieiiiiane (611) 77) 534
Net assets at beginning of year................... 1,898 1,898 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......... 209 209 -
Net assets atend of year........................... $ 1,496 $ 2,030 $ 534
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SOLID WASTE-ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:
Charges for Services..........ccooeviireeennennn. $ 1900 $ 1,855 $ (45)
Miscellaneous........cccoeeeviiiiiiiiiiiieean, - - -

Total operating revenues...................... 1,900 1,855 (45)
Operating expenses:

Personal services..........c.coceviviiiennennn 544 507 37
Materials and supplies.........cccoeevvvnnnnnn, 29 6 23
Contract Services...........coeeeevivineennnnnn 1,244 1,149 95
Capital outlay and equipment................ 232 193 39
Miscellaneous. ...........ccoviiiiiiicninnnn, 70 49 21
Total operating expense....................... 2,119 1,904 215
Operating income (108S).......c.coccoevenenne. (219) (49) 170

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement....................cc.oen... - - -
Interest and fiscal charges................... - - -

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)..

Net income (l0SS).....c.vevvvveiiiiinnininin (219) (49) 170
Net assets at beginning of year................. 781 781
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........ 327 327 -
Net assets atend of year..................ceeeen. $ 889 $ 1,059 $ 170
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

PARKING FACILITIES-ENTERPRISE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services............coecvveeeeenene.
Miscellaneous...........coovviiiiiiiiinnn.

Total operating revenues.....................

Operating expenses:
Personal services.............ocooeevivnnnnn,
Materials and supplies.......................
Contract ServiCeS.......vvvvvivivevirinnenenans
Capital outlay and equipment...............
Miscellaneous............cocovvvvviviiiineannen.

Total operating expense.....................

Operating income (10SS)......c.coveeveennnnn
Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Principal retirement..................c.c......

Interest and fiscal charges..................

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)..

Net income (10SS).......cocoevvvviiininiiinnnnns

Net assets at beginning of year.................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........
Net assets atend of year...........co.coeeeee.

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
$ 290 $ 280 (10
290 280 (10)
10 - 10
261 116 145
10 - 10
281 116 165
9 164 155
9 164 155
1,314 1,314 -
10 10 -
$ 1,333 $ 1,488 155
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
December 31, 2003

Internal Service Funds- Internal Service funds account
- for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of
the governmental unit, or to other governmental units on
a cost-reimbursement basis. The following are the
Internal Service funds which Lucas County operates:

Central Supplies- To account for supplies, mailing and
copying services provided to various County departments
and other governmental units. Users are billed for costs
incurred.

Vehicle Maintenance- To account for vehicle
maintenance services provided to various County
departments and other governmental units. Users are
billed for costs incurred.

County-City Telephone- To account for inter-
departmental charges for the use of the telephone system.
Users are billed for costs incurred.

Self-Funded Health Insurance - To account for claims
and administration of the health insurance program for
covered County employees and eligible dependents.
County departments are billed according to the
employee’s family or marital status.

Centralized Drug Testing- To account for drug testing
charges incurred by the jail and other criminal justice
system departments.

Risk Retention Insurance- To account for claims and
administration of liability insurance for county
departments. The departments are billed based on the
cost of insurance policies.

Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation- To account for
claims and administration of workers’ compensation for
county departments. The departments are billed based on
their portion of total covered payrolt and usage of the
program.

Self-Funded Prescription Drug - To Account for
claims and administration of the prescription drug program
for covered County employees and eligible dependents.
County departments are billed according to the
employee’s family or marital status.

Self-Funded Dental Insurance- To account for claims
and administration of the dental insurance program for
covered County employees and eligible dependents.
County departments are billed according to the
employee’s family or marital status.
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Combining Chart of Operating Revenues and
Expenses

Internal Service Funds

Self-Funded Health

Risk Retention Ins.

Self-Funded Workers Comp.

Self-Funded Prescription
Drug

Self-Funded Dental P

All Other Funds

Millions

4 Ll LJ 1 L]

0 5 10 15 20
Year Ended December 31,2003

B Total Operating Expenses M Total Operating Revenues

25
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Self-
Vehicle County- Funded
Central Mainten- City Health
Supplies ance Telephone Insurance
Assets:
Current assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents..................... $ 10 $ 7 $ 61 $ ,980
Pooled investments.........c.coccoeeevirieriveiniienn, 94 63 558 8,990
Accounts receivable..........c.c.oooeeeiniiniecirecnn. 2 3 3 0
Due from other funds... e 12 32 8 -
Inventory: materials and supplies........................ 288 20 - -
Total current assets............ccevevverevvaennnn... 406 125 630 9,970
Noncurrent assets-capital assets
Land. ..o - 83 - -
Buildings, structures and
HNPFOVEMENES.....ooiiiniiieiieieriieetceeeee e - 30 - -
Furniture, fixtures and equipment....................... 159 165 846 26
Less: accumulated depreciation (106) (181) (839) (15)
Total noncurent assets................cc.ccovnn..... 53 97 7 11
Toltal assets........c.cccevevveveeeanennn. 459 222 637 9,981
Liabilities:
Current liabilities-
Accounts Payable................ccoovvveeeccveveneecnnnan. 16 13 110 100
Accrued wages and benefits...............cccoueenee 2 26 2 7
Due to other funds.....c.co.ooveeiiviiciieeeeeenn. 1 - - 0
Claims payable-current............cccooceevcvrvmneenen., - - - 1,289
Total current liabilities.................coocovnn...... 19 39 112 1,396
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Claims payable-noncurrent...............c..coo....... - - - -
Obligations under capital leases......................... 5 - - -
Total noncurrent liabilities 5 - - -
Total liabilities...............cocooeeeivevecioreriannnn. 24 39 112 1,396
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt..... 48 97 7 10
Unrestricted. ........ovveeeeeeceieieeiee e, 387 86 518 8,575
Total net assets.........uvueeeevcevveunnn... $ 435 $ 183 $ 525 $ 8,585
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Self- Self- Self-

Centralized Risk Funded Funded - Funded
Drug Retention Workers' Prescription Dental
Testing Insurance Comp. Drug Insurance Total

$ 14 $ 914 $ 1,392 $ 249 $ 111 $ 3,738
127 8,388 12,770 2,283 1,021 34,294

- - - 5 - 13

19 - - - - 71

- - - - - 308

160 9,302 14,162 2,537 1,132 38,424

- - - - - 83

- - - - - 30

- - 10 0 - 1,208
- - (10) 0 - (1,151)

- - - - - 168

160 9,302 ’ 14,162 2,537 1,132 38,592

4 6 4 273 44 570

13 28 18 - - 96

- - - - 1

- - 2,290 498 167 4,244

17 34 2,312 77 211 4,911

- - 3,904 - - 3,904

- - - - - 5

- - 3,904 - - 3,909

17 34 6,216 771 211 8,820

- - - - - 162

143 9,268 7,946 1,766 921 29,610

$ 143 $ 9,268 3 7,946 $ 1,766 3 921 $ 29,772
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Self-
Vehicle County- Funded
Central Mainten- City Health
Supplies ance Telephone Insurance
Operating revenues:
Charges for ServiCe. ... $ 873 $ 530 $ 1,558 $ 19,961
MISCEIIANEOUS.......cceveeiiriiiiii i - 5 - 28
Total operating revenues............c.ccvviiiiniiniincinnnn, 873 535 1,558 19,989
Operating expenses:
Personal SEIVICES..........cocivreiecererecii i 73 - 324 104 150
CONract SEIVICES.....ccorvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiciite e 51 54 1,357 538
Materials and supplies.... 537 252 - 10
Depreciation........c.cocoiniiiiiiiii 25 12 15 5
Miscellaneous...........cooeviiniiiiii i - - - -
Employee medical benefits - - - 19,404
Total operating exXpenses.........c.ccccvvviviiniiviinineenen, 686 642 1,476 20,107
Operating income (l0SS)..........cccovvvvmriiiiiiciieeis 187 (107) 82 (118)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
INterest iNCOME......ccccoeiiiiiiiiii - - - 108
Interest and fiscal charges...........cocovcicviviiiiiniiinnns (1) - - -
Total nonoperating revenues
AN (EXPENSES)..evivierireeiieiieeiee et et seieeier e e, M - - 108
Change in net assets ... 186 (107) 82 (10)
Operating transfers in - 150 - -
Net assets at
beginning of year.........c.c.cociviiiii 249 140 443 8,595
Net assets at
ENA Of YBAN ..o iceeieeieeirecc et $435 $183 $525 $8,585
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Self- Self- Self-
Centralized Risk Funded Funded Funded
Drug Retention Workers' Prescription Dental
Testing Insurance Comp. Drug Insurance Total

$ 477 $ 2272 $ 480 $ 6,903 $ 2,367 $ 35,421
- - - 169 - 202

477 2,272 480 7,072 2,367 35,623

274 204 161 - 1,290

28 990 67 14 88 3,187

130 3 2 - 934

- - - - 57

23 22 - 2 - 47

- 289 1,818 5,290 1,772 28,573

455 1,508 2,048 5,306 1,860 34,088

22 764 (1,568) 1,766 507 1,535

- - - - 108

- - : : - (1)

- - - - - 107

22 764 (1,568) 1,766 507 1,642

- - - - - 150

121 8,504 9,514 - 414 27,980

$143 $9,268 $7,946 $1,766 $921 $29,772
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers..................

Cash paid to suppliers........cceevivviiinnnnnn.
Cash paid to employees...........ccccerninnnn,
Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities...........ccccccovviiinnnnn

Cash flows from non capital
financing activities:

Operating transfers in..........cc.occeeininnne
Net cash provided by non-capital

financing activities........o.cccomviviiininnn.

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:

Purchase of capital assets...........cccooeenneee.
Interest and fiscal charges................c......
Proceeds of capital lease transaction........

Net cash used in capital and

related financing activities.............ccccccen.

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments...........
Payments for investments.............cccconn

Interest received.......coevveeveiiviinveivrinenennnn.

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities.......

Net increase (decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents.........c.ccooceercorennnen.
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1......

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31

Self-
Vehicle County- Funded
Central Mainten- City Health

Supplies ance Telephone Insurance

$ 881 $ 54 $ 1,660 $ 19,994
(780) (324) (1,492) (19,997)

(77) (346) (122) (160)

24 (129) 46 (163)

- 150 - -

- 150 - -
(7) ©) (7) (11)

(1) - - -
(8) © 7) (11)

74 47 549 10,151
(87) (57) (573) (9,906)

- - - 108

(18) (10) (24) 353

3 2 15 179
7 5 46 801

$ 10  § 7 $ 61 $ 980
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Self- Self-
Centralized Risk Funded Self- Funded
Drug Retention Workers' Funded Dental
Testing Insurance Comp. Prescription Insurance Total

$ 478 $ 2272 $ 480 $ 7,067 $ 2,367 $ 35,740
(183) (1,340) (1,247) (4,535) (1,989) (31,887)

(291) (210) (168) 0 (1,374)

4 722 (935) 2,532 378 2,479

- - - - - 150

- - - - - 150
- - - - - (34)
: : : : : (1

- - - - - 0
- - - - - (35)

134 7,976 15,451 - 417 34,799

(135) (8,469) (14,329) (2,283) (744) (36,583)

- - - - - 108
(1) (493) 1,122 (2,283) (327) (1,676)

3 229 187 249 51 918
11 685 1,205 - 60 2,820

$ 14 3 914 $ 1,392 $ 249 $ 111 $ 3738
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-(continued)
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
by (Used in) Operating Activities

Vehicle County-
Central Mainten- City
Supplies ance Telephone
Operating INCOME (I0SS)......cevvuieiiieriirrrieiricineseesraeseieeerescevreevee e $ 187 $ (107) $ 82
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation eXPenSe...........cccivviiriiiiieniiie e e 25 12 15
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
ACCOUNLS reCIVADIE .....ceiiiiiiciii i (1) - -
Due from other funds .........ccccciiiiiniii e 9 6 102
INVENTOTY. ...ttt e e e (192) 1 -
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE.......coiiiiiiiiiicicie e - (20) (135)
Due to other fUNAS ....covieieie it e e e - - -
Accrued wages and benefits .......cccccooiveivcii i 4) (21) (18)
Total adjiuStmENnts .......cccveiiiiiiieeiii e (163) (22) (36)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities .......coocveeieriicii e $ 24 $ (129 $ 46

Noncash capital and related financing activities:

Central Supplies fund had a capital lease obligation remaining of $5 thousand.
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Self- Seif- Self- Self-

Funded Centralized Risk Funded Funded Funded

Health Drug Retention Workers' Prescription Dental

Insurance Testing Insurance Comp. Drug Insurance Total

$ (118) $ 22 $ 764 $ (1,568) $ 1,766 $ 507 $ 1,535
5 - - - - - 57
5 - - : ®) : (1)
- 1 - - - - 118
- - - - - - (191)
(44) (@) (36) 640 771 (129) 1045
(1) - - - - - (1)
(10) (17) (6) (7) - - (83)
(45) (18) (42) 633 766 (129) 944

$ (163) $ 4 $ 722 $ (935 $ 2,532 $ 378 $ 2,479
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CENTRAL SUPPLIES-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services...............ccovvvinennnn.. $ 900 $ 881 $ (19)
Miscellaneous...........c.cccceeviiiiiiiiiiniennanss - - -

Total operating revenues....................... 900 881 (19)
Operating expenses:

Personal Services.........coovvvvvviiviiinninnnns, 77 77 -

Materials and supplies...........ccoeeiiininne 752 747 5

Contract serviCes........ooviviviiiirienninnnnns 104 76 28

Capital outlay and equipment................. 4 4
Miscellaneous ............ccceevivininniniinnnnn. - -
Claim payments.......ccocovveviinieniininnennnn
Employee medical benefits.....................

Total operating expense......................... 937 904 33

Operating income (10SS)..........c.ccvveveninnenn. (37) (23) 14

Non-operating revenues:
Interest inCome..........cc.cccovevvvviiininnnnnn.

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)....

Change in net assets .............ccoeevvenvnnens (37) (23) 14
Net assets at beginning of year .................. 51 51
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......... 37 37 -
Net assets atendof year........................... $ 51 $ 65 $ 14
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for services..............coccevenne... $ 658 $ 536 $ (122)
Miscellaneous..........ccooevviviiiiiiininnnnn.. 33 5 (28)
Total operating revenues..................... 691 541 (150)
Operating expenses:
Personal services..................coeeuee... 345 345 -
Materials and supplies........................ 347 278 69
Contract services.............occovvveeiiinnnn, 72 60 12
Capital outlay and equipment............... 15 14 1
Miscellaneous..............ccccveeeiiiiini, - - -
Claim payments...........cooeevviiinniniinnn,
Employee medical benefits..................
Total operating expense...................... 779 697 82
Operating income (10SS).........cccovvvvvvnn. (88) (156) (68)
" Non-operating revenues:
Interestincome...............cc.cocveuenenn,
Total nonoperating revenues...............
Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (88) (156) (68)
Operating transferin..................coecne 30 150
Change in netassets......................... (58) (6) 52
Net assets at beginning of year................ (34) (34)
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... 92 92 -
Net assets atend of year........................ 3 - $ 52 $ 52
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COUNTY-CITY TELEPHONE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services............ooecveieerinne $ 1,907 $ 1,660 $ (247)
Miscellaneous. .......ccovevviiiiiiiiininennes - - -

Total operating revenues..................... 1,907 1,660 (247)
Operating expenses:

Personal services............cceviveiiinnns 135 123 12

Materials and supplieS...............oeenenns 1 1 -

Contract ServiCes......cc.oveverreeeniniinennn 1,803 1,529 274

Capital outlay and equipment............... 1 1 -
Miscellaneous ..........coceeeeiiiinininn.

Claim payments...........coovveiiniiniennn. 1 - 1

Employee medical benefits..................

Total operating expense...................... 1,941 1,654 287

Operating income (108S)..........cccuvnveenn (34) 6 40

Non-operating revenues:
Interest income..........ccccocvvvevuveninncn.n

Total nonoperating revenues...............

Change in netassets.............ccccvveeneee (34) 6 40
Net assets at beginning of year................ 529 529
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... 50 50 -
Net assets atend of year ....................... $ 545 $ 585 $ 40
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SELF-FUNDED HEALTH INSURANCE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Operations revenues:
Charges for services..............co.coeeveenni. $ 22,500 $ 19,966 $ (2,534)
Miscellaneous. ...........ccoeviviiieeiiininnnn, 200 28 (172)
Total operating revenues...................... 22,700 19,994 (2,706)
Operating expenses:
Personal services.............c.coivviininill 180 160 20
Materials and supplies......................... 28 17 11
Contract services...........covevveieieninn. 1,227 752 475
Capital outlay and equipment................ 42 24 18
Miscellaneous............cc.ccvvvviniiinenn... - - -
Claim payments............cc.cooviiiiinennnn. - - -
Employee medical benefit.................... 28,340 23,276 5,064
Total operating expense....................... 29,817 24,229 5,588
Operating income (10SS)........................ (7,117} (4,235) 2,882
Non-operating revenues:
Interestincome..............c.ccoevveuneinnnn.. 150 108 (42)
Total nonoperating revenues................ 150 108 (42)
Income (loss) before operating transfers.. (6,967) (4,127) 2,840
Operating transferin.............c..covvinn, - - -
Change in netassets........................... (6,967) (4,127) 2,840
Net assets at beginning of year................. 1,602 1,602 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........ 8,434 8,434 -
Net assets atendofyear......................... $ 3,069 $ 5,909 $ 2,840
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CENTRALIZED DRUG TESTING-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:
Charges for Services............ccoovveiiiniinnn, $ 500 $ 479 $ (21)
Miscellaneous.........c.c.coovveviniiiniiiinnn - - -

Total operating revenues...................... 500 479 (21)
Operating expenses:

Personal services.........c.ocvveiiiiinnnnn, 294 291 3

Materials and supplies...........ccooeeeienn 243 212 31

Contract ServiCes......coevvevvinecviiiiiveennene 32 27

Capital outlay and equipment................. 8 5 3

Miscellaneous.........ccvvvnveriiniiceei i, 23 23
Claim payments........c..ccooeeiiiieiiniinin - -
Employee medical benefit.....................

Total operating expense........................ 600 558 42

Operating income (108S)..............oocvvunn (100) (79) 21

Non-operating revenues:
Interest inCome...............cccccevciiiiiiinn

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)...

Changeinnetassets ................cceeniis (100) (79) 21
Net assets at beginning of year.................. 108 108
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......... 29 29 -
Net assets atend of year............coceeeeninne $ 37 $ 58 $ 21
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
RISK RETENTION INSURANCE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services..........ccccovvivenennen. $ 2,000 $ 2272 $ 272
Miscellaneous. .........coveiiiiiiiiiiiiiene - - -

Total operating revenues...................... 2,000 2,272 272
Op'erating expenses:
Personal services..........ccvvveeeieiinanannn 210 210 -
Materials and supplies.................c....... 7 4 3
Contract services......c.ocoovvvniiiiinanen., 1,202 993 209
Capital outlay and equipment................. 5 3 2
Miscellaneous ...........coeeiiiviviiiininins 26 24 2
Claim payments.........cocoovviviiiiieinnne - - -
Employee medical benefit..................... 1,038 415 623
Total operating expense....................... 2,488 1,649 839
Operating income (108S).........ccoevvvinnenen. (488) 623 1,111

Non-operating revenues:
Interest inCome.........c.c.oocvveeiinvennnan. - -

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)... - -

Change innet assets.........c.covvevvvennnnns (488) 623 1,111
Net assets at beginning of year.................. 8,501 8,501 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........ 79 79 -
Net assets atendof year.......................... $ 8,092 $ 9,203 $ 1,111
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SELF FUNDED WORKERS COMP.-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:

Charges for services..........co..ccoevvvuniennn... $ 2,340 $ 480 $ (1,860)
Miscellaneous ..............coeeevviiiviiiniinn, - - -

Total operating revenues ...................... 2,340 480 (1,860)
Operating expenses:

Personal services............cccccovivviniinnnn. 176 168 8

Materials and supplies......................... 3 2 1

Contract services. .........ooevviiivivnieienean.. 92 68 24

Capital outlay and equipment................. 7 4 3
Miscellaneous ..............coocceviiiniininnenn. -

Claim payment ............coocoviiiieeee, - - -
Employee medical benefit .................... 2,200 1,176 1,024

Total operating expense........................ 2,478 1,418 1,060
Operating income (10SS)........cocvvveeeeennnnn. (138) (938) (800)

Non-operating revenues:
Interest income..........c..cc.covuvveivinennnn.

Change innetassets.................cccoeeen.n. (138) (938) (800)
Net assets at beginning of year .................. 15,091 15,091
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......... 5 5 -
Net assets atend of year........................... $ 14,958 $ 14,158 $ (800)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SELF-FUNDED PRESCRIPTION DRUG-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

(Amounts in 000's)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services.............coovviininennn,
Miscellaneous........covvviviiiiiiiiieia

Total operating revenues......................

Operating expenses:
Personal ServiCes..........covvvveenveienennnnn,
Materials and supplies.................oeeneen.
Contract Services........cccovevivivvieenenenennn.
Capital outlay and equipment................
Miscellaneous .........ccoeeveviiiieieinnenenen
Claim payment ........cooeeiiiiiinin
Employee medical benefit ....................

Total operating expense.......................
Operating income (10SS)..........coccviviiennnn

Non-operating revenues:
Interest inCome...........occoevveeveviiinnan.en

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)...

Change innetassets........c....ccovveenn

Net assets at beginning of year..................
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........
Net assets atendofyear.........................

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
$ 8,000 $ 6,898 $ (1,102)
- 169 169
8,000 7,067 (933)
85 85
5 2 3
7,823 7,500 323
7,913 7,587 326
87 (520) (607)
87 (520) (607)
$ 87 $ (520) $ (607)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SELF-FUNDED DENTAL INSURANCE-INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Actual Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)

Operations revenues:
Charges for services..................ccccoo.... $ 2,446 $ 2,367 $ (79)
Miscellaneous...............coveeeiiiviniiiiinn.., - - -

Total operating revenues...................... 2,446 2,367 (79)

Operating expenses:
Personal services...............c.oocceveennn..
Materials and supplies......................... - - -
Contract services............o.occvevevveeeenn... 123 96 27
Capital outlay and equipment................ - - -
Miscellaneous ............occeviivneenneennennn,
Claim payment ............cccooevvvviiiinniinn, - - -
Employee medical benefit .................... 3,004 2,659 345

Total operating expense....................... 3,127 2,755 372
Operating income (10SS)........................ (681) (388) 293

Non-operating revenues:
Interestincome. ...............ccceveeiinii..,

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)...

Change in netassets.............cc..cco....... (681) (388) 293
Net assets at beginning of year.................. 86 86
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........ 668 668 -
Net assets atend of year......................... $ 73 $ 366 $ 293
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
AGENCY FUNDS
December 31, 2003

Agency Funds- Agency funds maintain assets held by
Lucas County as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.
The following are the Agency funds which Lucas County
maintains:

Payroll Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumulation of payroll withholdings until payment is
remitted to third parties.

Real Estate Fund, General Personal Fund, Estate
Tax Fund and Hotel Lodging Tax Fund- These various
and separate funds maintain and account for the accu-
mulation and disbursement of taxes for: real property,
intangible property, estate tax and hotel lodging tax.

Local Government Fund- To maintain and account for
the accumulation and disbursement of state revenue
sharing monies.

Auto License Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumulation and disbursement of automobile license and
registration fee collections.

Gasoline Tax Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumulation and disbursement of gasoline tax collections.

Trailer Tax Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumuiation and disbursement of mobile home tax
collections.

Clerk of Courts, Common Pleas Court, Common
Pleas Court-Probate, Child Support Enforcement
Agency, Juvenile Court, Sheriff, Children Services,
and Prosecutor: These various and separate funds
maintain and account for: court fees, alimonies, child
support, restitution, boarding home fees, donations, funds
held in escrow and other similar resources and uses.
These funds are held outside of the County treasury.

Subdivision Advance Fund- To maintain and account
for tax advance distributions to subdivisions within Lucas
County.

Undivided Interest Fund- To maintain and account for
the accumulation and disbursement of the County
investment earnings.

Tax Installment Payment Plan (T.LP.P.) Fund- To
account for real estate taxes paid on an installment basis
until they can be applied to a current tax bill.

Family and Children Council - To process the
accounting transactions as the administrative agent of the
council.

Other Agency Funds- To maintain and account for
resources and uses for: taxes, research, deposits, licenses
and estate. Other Agency funds include:

Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Computer Legal Research
Grain Tax

Cigarette Licenses
Escheated Estates

Law Library

Coroner Escrow

Advance Fund

e o ¢ o ¢ o o o

When compared to combined Agency funds, Other
Agency funds comprise less than 10% in assets and
liabilities.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2003 Additions Deductions 2003

Payroll Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ 4 189,606 $ 186,549 $ 3,061
Liabilities:

Payroll withholdings........c...cccocevennennnn. $ 4 189,606 $ 186,549 $ 3,061
Real Estate Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ 15942 407,782 $ 409,951 $ 13,773
Liabilities:

Unapportioned monies...........c.ccoceee. $ 15942 407,782 $ 409,951 $ 13,773
General Personal Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ 1,872 82,216 $ 81,078 $ 3,010
Liabilities:

Unapportioned monies.........c.cccccceeeeee $ 1,872 82,216 $ 81,078 $ 3,010
Prosecutor
Assets:

Segregated cash......c.c.cccveerrcreeenee $ 146 236 $ 195 $ 187
Liabilities:

Deposits. ..ot $ 146 236 $ 195 $ 187
Estate Tax Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ 4,860 8,452 $ 10,014 $ 3,298
Liabilities:

Unapportioned monies...........c.cceceeene $ 4,860 8,452 $ 10,014 $ 3,298
Hotel Lodging Tax Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ 234 3,659 $ 3,608 $ 285
Liabilities:

Unapportioned monies...........ccc.cu.ne.. $ 234 $ 3,659 $ 3,608 $ 285
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS-(continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2003 Additions Deductions 2003

Local Government Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ - $ 38,682 $ 38,682 $ -

Due from other governments............ 15,582 14,420 15,582 14,420

Total assets........cccevvvvinennnnnnn $ 15582 $ 53,102 $ 54,264 $ 14,420

Liabilities:

Due to other governments................ $ 11,498 $ 10,336 $ 11,498 $ 10,336

Unapportioned monies.........c.ccce.eveeee. 4,084 42,766 42,766 4,084

Total Liabilities........................ $ 15,582 $ 53,102 $ 54,264 $ 14,420

Auto License Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ (3) $ 3,529 $ 3,563 $ (37)
Liabilities:

Unapportioned monies...........cc.cccc.... $ (3) $ 3,529 $ 3,563 $ (37)
Gasoline Tax Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ 11 $ 637 $ 603 3 45
Liabilities:

Unapportioned monies..............c...... $ 11 $ 637 $ 603 $ 45
Trailer Tax Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ 200 $ 764 $ 891 $ 73
Liabilities:

Unapportioned monies........c.cc.covveue.e. $ 200 $ 764 $ 891 $ 73
Subdivision Advance Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ (317) $ 376,955 $ 376,737 $ (99)
Liabilities:

Unapportioned monies.........cccceeveeeee $ (317) $ 376,955 $ 376,737 $ (99)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS-(continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2003 Additions Deductions 2003
Undivided interest Fund
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ 5 $ 6,581 $ 6,590 $ (4)
Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies.........c....c.ocee... $ 5 3 6,581 $ 6,590 $ (4)
Clerk of Courts
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ - $ 1,750 $ - $ 1,750
Segregated cash............ccooviiiiins 4,580 53,907 55,487 3,000
Total ASSEIS.....oevveereeeirveriisirevrens $ 4,580 $ 55657 $ 55,487 $ 4,750
Liabilities:
DEPOSHS....ererrreveriireeiriereereee e 3 4,580 $ 55,657 $ 55487 $ 4,750
Common Pleas Court
Assets:
Segregated cash...........cooconeinn. $ 42 $ 1,217 $ 1,210 $ 49
Liabilities:
DEPOSHS. ... cerrreerrrirrirereesieiriereirie e $ 42 3 1,217 $ 1,210 $ 49
Common Pleas Court-Probate Court
Assets:
Segregated cash...........cooeovviicninnnn 3 175 $ 1,093 $ 988 $ 280
Liabilities:
DEPOSILS......ocoreeeeciirevercecicianiee e $ 175 $ 1,093 $ 988 $ 280
Child Support Enforcement Agency
Assets:
Segregated cash.........cc.coceviveieenns $ 45 $ 2,782 $ 2,792 $ 35
Liabilities:
DepOoSitS......cvviveeeeeeeeeiireceeeeeeeee $ 45 $ 2,782 $ 2,792 $ 35
Juvenile Court
Assets:
Segregated Cash.........c.occcevrnevrrennnn. 3 209 $ 647 $ 648 $ 208
Liabilities:
DePOSItS. ..ccvvrireereeeeeieniereeeieee e $ 209 $ 647 $ 648 $ 208

— 168 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS-(continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2003 Additions Deductions 2003
Sheriff
Assets:
Segregated cash............cccccevniiiinns $ 513 $ 14,389 $ 14,088 $ 814
Liabilities:
DEPOSItS. ....ccovirereerireeirerernrree et $ 513 $ 14,389 $ 14,088 3 814
Children Services
Assets:
Segregated cash............c.ccooveivininnns $ 1,019 $ 367 $ 364 $ 1,022
Liabilities:
DEPOSIES. ....verieeeeeierieircerir e $ 1,019 $ 367 $ 364 $ 1,022
T.I.P.P. Program
Assets:
Segregated cash.........cooooevrciincnne. 3 - $ 13,451 $ 10,231 $ 3,220
Liabilities:
DEPOSIS......oovvvereieeeeieie e 3 - $ 13,451 $ 10,231 $ 3,220
Family & Children Council
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... 3 1,104 $ 4,512 $ 4,501 $ 1,115
Due from other governments............ 320 314 320 314
Total ASSELS......coccveeeeeicieeienaen $ 1,424 $ 4,826 $ 4,821 $ 1,429
Liabilities:
Accounts payable...........cocoeeie $ 419 $ 436 $ 419 436
Accured wages & benefits............... 23 7 23 7
DepOSItS....o..veeeeeiieiie i 982 4,383 4,379 986
Total Liabilities. ..........cccccoeeeeen... $ 1,424 $ 4,826 3 4,821 $ 1,429
Other Agency Funds
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ 99 $ 1,113 $ 1,109 $ 103
Liabilities:
Deposits held due to others................. $ 13 $ 769 $ 769 $ 13
Unapportioned monies...............ceu.... $ 86 $ 344 $ 340 $ 90
Total Liabilities. ............cccveevcvennunennne. $ 99 $ 1,113 $ 1,109 $ 103
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS-(continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2003 Additions Deductions 2003
Total
Assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents..... $ 24,011 $ 1,126,238 $1,123,876 $ 26,373
Segregated cash.........c.ccccoevnniins 6,729 88,089 86,003 8,815
Due from other governments............ 15,902 14,734 15,902 14,734
Total ASSELS.......oveeveeieeeieeeiieeinieinn, $ 46,642 $ 1,229,061 $1,225,781 $ 49,922
Liabilities:
Unapportioned monies $ 26,974 $ 933,685 $ 936,141 $ 24,518
Deposits........ccccveicrnerienenne 7,724 94,991 91,151 11,564
Payroll withholding...........ccoooveennnn 4 189,606 186,549 3,061
Accounts payable......................... 419 436 419 436
Accured wages & benefits............... 23 7 23 7
Due to other governments............... N 11,498 10,336 11,498 10,336
Total Liabilities..............c..ccccocuuvunn.n. $ 46,642 $ 1,229,061 $ 1,225,781 $ 49,922

- 170 —



This page left blank intentionally.

- 171 —



Statistical Section

The Metroparks renovated the Stranahan’s barn to
provide a public rental facility for corporate or private
events. The barn was named the “Ward Pavilion” in
honor of retiring Metroparks director Jean Ward in 2000.

East Entrance Wildwood Preserve Park contains the
Oak Grove School which was builtin the early 1890's. The
school was moved to the Preserve Park in 1998 and was
extensively restored back to its original state. The building
offers educational programming for local groups.

- 172 —



General Governmental Expenditures by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION!
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

TABLE 1

(Amounts in 000's)

Fiscal General Public Public Human
Year Government Safety Works Health Services
1994 57,490 29,531 10,126 69,735 64,307
1995 60,219 36,927 11,803 72,089 67,414
1996 65,5672 39,990 13,233 81,577 72,418
1997 70,359 45,701 14,898 82,081 75,706
1998 73,476 44,937 15,151 84,043 72,653
1999 79,293 46,504 17,153 81,167 82,275
2000 82,611 51,138 15,772 87,651 97,555
2001 86,109 57,947 14,679 88,096 117,364
2002 90,190 58,201 13,337 92,448 112,106
2003 90,700 57,037 16,828 88,949 120,302
1 Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds. Refer to: "Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds" in the Financial Section.
Source: Lucas County Auditor
GOVERNMENT - WIDE EXPENSES BY FUNCTION
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
(Amounts in 000's)

Fiscal General Public Public Human
Year Government Safety Works Health Services
2001 $ 102,167 $ 61,840 $ 29,134 $ 91,586 $ 123,391
2002 94,491 57,112 27,746 92,265 111,321
2003 96,785 59,439 35,167 89,542 119,365

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Conservation

and Capital Debt Fiscal
Recreation Miscellaneous Outlay Service Total Year
4,706 2,451 21,656 9,098 269,100 1994
4,856 3,024 9,530 10,705 276,567 1995
4,828 3,573 13,634 23,115 317,940 1996
4,950 3,694 29,351 14,674 341,414 1997
5,730 4,275 11,050 16,309 327,624 1998
6,131 4,462 12,562 16,090 345,637 1999
6,276 4,599 41,516 15,593 402,711 2000
7,631 13,833 48,311 17,821 451,791 2001
6,002 15,947 32,022 18,789 439,042 2002
8,876 18,804 24,778 18,158 444,432 2003
Conservation Interest
and and Fiscal Fiscal
Recreation Miscellaneous Charges Total Year
7,794 $ 13,858 $ 6,975 $ 436,745 2001
6,052 15,831 6,810 411,628 2002
8,950 18,732 5,840 433,820 2003
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TABLE 2
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE!'
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

State

Charges Licenses Fines and Local
Fiscal All for and and Government

Year Taxes Services Permits Forfeits Receipts
1994 126,686 23,307 57 649 6,783
1995 123,809 23,068 50 583 7,258
1996 135,206 23,580 51 619 7,487
1997 141,051 25,182 53 693 7,852
1998 147,989 26,750 47 712 8,328
1999 157,224 22,641 44 808 8,815
2000 160,829 20,673 44 687 9,071
2001 164,396 24,608 34 666 9,064
2002 175,855 24,727 37 601 8,613
2003 176,430 25,809 54 677 8,525

1 Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds. Refer to: "Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds" in the Financial Section.

GOVERNMENT - WIDE REVENUES
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
(Amounts in 000's)

Program Revenues

Charges for
Services not

Charges Operating Capital Restricted to
Fiscal for Grants and Grants and Specific
Year Services Contributions Contributions Taxes Programs
2001 $25,022 $187,560 $5,467 $283,308 $286
2002 25,137 176,357 734 199,688 228
2003 26,507 175,913 1,839 180,161 33

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Depository

Other Inter- and
Governmental Investment Special Fiscal
Receipts Earnings Assessments Miscellaneous Total Year
99,871 5,605 1,739 13,781 278,478 1994
106,201 8,196 1,356 15,749 286,270 1995
117,796 8,320 2,216 17,470 312,745 1996
124,563 9,871 1,801 23,741 334,807 1997
133,125 11,651 2,313 16,482 347,397 1998
144,563 7,527 2,122 18,912 362,656 1999
163,594 17,928 2,344 20,273 395,443 2000
185,689 13,525 2,581 43,382 443,945 2001
169,732 8,321 2,303 38,431 428,620 2002
176,076 4,016 1,763 47,504 440,854 2003
General Revenue
Intergovernmental
Revenue not
Restricted to
Specific Investment Fiscal
Programs Earnings Miscellaneous Total Year
$1,726 $13,814 $43,382 $560,565 2001
1,254 8,468 38,586 450,452 2002
7,508 5,906 47,504 445,371 2003
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Real General Governmental Expenditures and
Revenues

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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TABLE 3
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES
ADJUSTED FOR INFLATION'
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)
Total Total Total Total
Fiscal Nominal Nominal Average? Real Real Fiscal
Year Expenditures Revenues CPI-U Expenditures Revenues Year
1994 $269,100 $278,478 4440 $110,004 $113,837 1994
1995 276,567 286,270 456.5 109,960 113,818 1995
1996 317,940 312,745 469.9 122,805 120,799 1996
1997 341,414 334,807 480.8 128,882 126,388 1997
1998 327,624 347,397 488.3 121,777 129,127 1998
1999 345,637 362,656 499.0 125,718 131,908 1999
2000 402,711 395,443 515.8 141,706 139,148 2000
2001 451,791 443,945 530.4 154,600 151,916 2001
2002 439,042 428,620 538.4 148,005 144,492 2002
2003 444 432 442,636 550.5 146,529 145,937 2003

* Between 1994 and 2003 real expenditures increased by 33.2% or $37 million, while real revenues increased by 28.4% or $32.1 million
over the same period.

* Average Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers. 1977 is the base year when the Average CPI-U was 181.5.

Source: Lucas County Auditor — 178 —




Tax Revenue by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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TABLE 4
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)
General Tangible* Property County?
Fiscal Property Personal Transfer Sales Fiscal
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Total Year
1994 $53,491 $10,308 $2,341 $60,546 $126,686 1994
1995 54,563 10,523 2,562 56,161 123,809 1995
1996 62,206 12,034 2,785 58,181 135,206 1996
1997 63,821 12,289 3,006 61,935 141,051 1997
1998 66,516 12,799 3,629 65,045 147,989 1998
1999 69,124 14,021 3,638 70,441 157,224 1999
2000 69,697 15,960 3,598 71,574 160,829 2000
2001 76,203 13,953 3,760 70,480 164,396 2001
2002 86,817 16,948 3,879 68,211 175,855 2002
2003 88,799 16,226 4,398 67,007 176,430 2003

* Tangible Personal Tax includes: personal property tax, mobile home tax and grain tax.

2 Includes county sales tax and hotel lodging tax. 1994 sales tax increase includes sales tax accrual attributed to implementation
of GASB #22.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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TABLE 5
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS-REAL AND PUBLIC UTILITY"
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Current Taxes

Tax/Levy Current Current Collected as a Delinquent
Collection Taxes Taxes Percent of Taxes Taxes
Year Levied Collected Levied-Current Collected

1993/1994 $60,952 $57,852 94.91% $2,182
1994/1995 61,930 59,020 95.30% 2,422
1995/1996 68,897 66,619 96.69% 2,107
1996/1997 69,220 68,126 98.42% 2,268
1997/1998 73,217 72,021 98.37% 2,551
1998/1999 75,699 74,647 98.61% 2,467
1999/2000 78,647 77,499 98.54% 2,436
2000/2001 80,974 79,938 98.72% 1,846
2001/2002 90,273 88,991 98.58% 3,223
2002/2003 92,225 89,118 96.63% 4,749

' Includes all tax rates levied county-wide for: General Fund, Senior Services, Community Mental Health, Board of Mental Retardation,
Children Services, Toledo-Lucas County Port Authority, Toledo Zoo, Toledo Lucas County Library and 9-1-1 Emergency Telephone System.
Refer to: "Table 8 - Property Tax Rates of All Overlapping Governments” in this section.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Delinquent Taxes Total Collections
Collected as a Total as a Percent of Tax/Levy
Percent of Total Taxes Taxes Levied- Accumulated Collection
Taxes Collected Collected Current Delinquencies Year
3.63% $60,034 98.49% $7,100 1993/1994
3.94% 61,442 99.21% 6,227 1994/1995
3.07% 68,726 99.75% 5,972 1995/1996
3.22% 70,394 101.70% 5,977 1996/1997
3.42% 74,572 101.85% 5,796 1997/1998
3.20% 77,114 101.87% 5,760 1998/1999
3.05% 79,935 101.64% 5,012 1999/2000
2.28% 81,784 101.00% 5,872 2000/2001
3.57% 92,214 102.20% 6,321 2001/2002
5.15% 93,867 101.78% 5,893 2002/2003
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TABLE 6
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY"
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Tax/Levy Real Property? Personal Property®
Collection Estimated Estimated
Year Assessed Actual Assessed Actual

1993/1994 $4,180,059 $11,943,026 $750,332 $3,001,328
1994/1995 4,441,482 12,689,949 764,626 3,058,504
1995/1996 4,481,813 12,805,180 801,851 3,207,404
1996/1997 4,550,925 13,002,643 841,559 3,366,236
1997/1998 5,014,699 14,327,711 862,362 3,449 448
1998/1999 5,100,496 14,572,846 869,274 3,477,096
1999/2000 5,198,999 14,854,283 934,788 3,739,152
2000/2001 6,388,628 18,253,223 935,000 3,740,000
2001/2002 6,466,039 18,474,397 931,139 3,879,746
2002/2003 6,574,039 18,782,969 868,142 3,472,568

' Exempt properties are not included in the estimated actual values or in assessed valuations.

2 The estimated actual values for real estate property were derived by 35% of the assessed values of real estate property. Refer to "Note J-
Property Tax Revenues" in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

3 The estimated actual values for personal property and public utility were derived from an average rate of the assessed values (the average
rate consists of varying rates for manufacturing equipment, inventory and other equipment) for the ten fiscal years presented.

Source: Lucas County Auditor — 182 —



Assessed Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

8
6

n

c

S

5.

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
1994 to 2003
M Real Property B Personal Property B Public Utilities
Assessed Value
Public Utility® as a Percent Tax/Levy
Estimated Estimated of Estimated Collection
Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Actual Value Year

$552,586 $1,973,518 $5,482,977 $16,917,872 32.41% 1993/1994
518,515 1,831,238 5,724,623 17,579,691 32.56% 1994/1995
494,129 1,764,746 5,777,793 17,777,330 32.50% 1995/1996
490,200 1,750,714 5,882,684 18,119,593 32.47% 1996/1997
483,823 1,727,940 6,364,073 19,516,528 32.61% 1997/1998
487,012 1,739,329 6,453,593 19,777,882 32.63% 1998/1999
453,059 1,812,236 6,586,846 20,405,671 32.28% 1999/2000
453,115 1,812,460 7,776,743 23,805,683 32.67% 2000/2001
320,729 1,282,916 7,717,907 23,637,059 32.65% 2001/2002
336,019 1,400,079 7,778,200 23,655,616 32.88% 2002/2003
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Tax/Levy
Collection
Year

1993/1994
1994/1995
1995/1996
1996/1997
1997/1998
1998/1999
1999/2000
2000/2001
2001/2002
2002/2003

TABLE 7
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS!
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Current
Assessments
Collected as
Current Current a Percent of
Assessment Assessments Assessment
Levies Collected Levies
$2,809 $2,584 91.99%
2,810 2,630 93.59%
2,755 2,528 91.76%
2,864 2,729 95.29%
2,914 2,785 95.57%
3,125 2,891 92.51%
3,168 2,974 93.88%
3,762 3,550 94.36%
3,944 3,711 94.09%
3,546 3,320 93.63%

* Assessment levies and collections include assessment districts outside the County entity.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Delinquent
Assessments

Collected

$268
259
172
282
172
153
232
182
249
253



Special Assessment Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

5
2
7
% 7
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13 / 1R
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11 . 11
11 . 11
% / _ % %
1 % 15
11 . 1
. / _ / /
1994 1995 1996 1997 198 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
1994 to 2003
M Current Levied @ Current Collected M Total Collected
Delinquent Total
Assessments Collections
Collected as as a Percent
a Percent of Total of Current Tax/Levy
Assessment Assessments Assessment Accumulated Collection
Levies Collected Levies Delinquencies Year
9.54% $2,852 101.53% $433 1993/1994
9.22% 2,889 102.81% 362 1994/1995
6.24% 2,700 98.00% 362 1995/1996
9.85% 3,011 105.13% 246 1996/1997
5.90% 2,957 101.48% 209 1997/1998
4.90% 3,045 97.44% 291 1998/1999
7.32% 3,206 101.20% 268 1999/2000
4.84% 3,732 99.20% 316 2000/2001
6.31% 3,960 100.41% 327 2001/2002
7.13% 3,573 100.76% 332 2002/2003
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TABLE 8
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX RATES-DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS!
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

Taxable Year: 1993 1994 1995 1996
Collection Year: 1994 1995 1996 1997
Lucas County Entities:
General Fund..........ccccoooveveviiininnnnn, $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00
Board of Mental Retardation................ 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
Children Services Board...................... 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
Community Mental Health.................... 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50
Emergency Medical Service................. - - - -
Senior Services.........ccoeoeeeevveivnennnn, 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25
9-1-1 Emergency Telephone System... 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.70
Zoo (improvements)..............c.............. 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.95
Z00 (operating).......ccccovvevviveeeeeerrennnne. 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70
Total Lucas County Entities............. 13.45 13.45 13.95 14.10
Other Entities:
Metroparks.........ccccoevnvriveriieciiene e, 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Toledo-Lucas County Port
AUhOTitY.......coveiiiiiiecceiee 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40
Toledo-Lucas County Library............... 1.00 1.00 1.85 1.85
Toledo Area Regional
Transportation Authority?.................... 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
Total Rates.........ccccoceveveeeeeaenr.. $18.35 $18.35 $19.70 $19.85

' Property tax rates are determined by a combination of the county-wide tax rates and the applicable tax rates for the school district, township
and municipality in which the property is located.

2 Tarta is not levied in every county taxing district.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
$2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00
4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 5.00 5.00
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 2.65 2.65
1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50
0.256 0.25 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45
0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70
0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95
0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70
14.10 14.10 14.30 14.30 13.95 13.95
1.00 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.70 ‘
0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40
1.85 1.85 1.85 1.70 1.70 1.70
2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
$19.85 $20.256 $20.45 $20.30 $19.95 $20.25
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TABLE 8
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

PROPERTY TAX RATES-DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS'-(continued)

Taxable Year:
Collection Year:

School Districts:

Anthony Wayne...........c.ocooeevvvenriennnn,
Evergreen..........cccoceeioiiieceecern,
Maumee...........ccovervriiineeeceeeee.

Springfield.........ccccocoviiiiiiiiiee
SWanton............coovmveiiiiieeeee e

Joint Vocational School Districts:
Four County.........cocooiiiiiiiiiiiin,
Penta County............cccoeviiivavnicnrnn.

Townships:

Harding.........ccooovviinieiere,
Jerusalem...........cccoooeveiiiienin
Monclova...........ccccevieiiiiiieci e

Richfield..........c.cooviviiee e
SPENCEN.....c.viiiiiiiieiecce e,
Springfield........cc.ccooeiiviiiie,
SWanton........ccooviviv e
SylVania..........ccoceeiieiiiiee e
Washington...........cccocooiiiiinnn,
Waterville..........ccoovveiiiiieere,

Municipalities:

Village of Berkey........c.ccccovvveciienennnns
Village of Harbor View.........................
Village of Holland...............cccceeveenennn,
City of Maumee..........ccc.ccvvveevvirinennn..
City of Oregon.........ccocovevvvieverenrennnn.
Village of Ottawa Hills.........................
Village of Swanton..............cccccoeene.
City of Sylvania..........cccccoceivvrrnnnn.
City of Toledo.......cccoecvvivrneiniene.
Village of Waterville..............cc...o.........
Village of Whitehouse..........................

' Property tax rates are determined by a combination of the county-wide tax rates and the applicable tax rates for the schoot district, township
or municipality in which the property is located.

Source: Lucas County Auditor

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

1993 1994 1995 1996

1994 1995 1996 1997
$62.90 $62.90 $66.80 $66.80
39.70 39.70 42.90 42.90
57.40 57.40 59.60 64.50
42.30 45.80 45.80 49.20
51.80 51.80 52.60 51.80
97.90 97.90 104.30 104.30
60.80 65.20 67.40 67.40
56.20 56.00 65.16 64.60
62.30 62.30 63.90 68.20
57.80 57.70 57.80 57.80
56.80 56.80 56.80 61.70
3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20
2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20
3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30
9.75 9.75 9.75 9.75
4.90 5.20 5.20 5.20
6.45 6.45 6.45 6.45
5.30 5.30 5.30 7.20
6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
6.30 6.30 6.30 8.10
4.70 4.90 5.20 5.20
16.40 16.40 16.40 16.40
19.20 19.20 19.20 19.50
9.30 9.30 9.30 9.30
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
2.00 2.00 0.80 0.80
4.20 4.10 4.00 4.00
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
5.75 6.25 6.25 6.25
4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
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1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
$64.50 $64.50 $64.50 $63.70 $63.70 $63.70
39.70 39.70 47.23 47.23 47.23 47.88
62.30 62.30 62.30 62.30 62.30 62.30
49.20 49.20 49.20 49.20 49.20 49.20
57.20 49.11 57.70 56.90 56.90 47.40
107.05 107.05 113.20 113.10 113.10 114.356
64.20 64.20 65.10 64.10 64.10 68.10
62.10 62.05 62.05 68.74 68.74 68.11
66.30 66.30 65.70 65.20 65.20 70.10
57.80 57.80 57.50 63.00 63.00 67.99
61.70 61.70 60.70 65.90 65.90 65.90
3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20
2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20
3.30 3.30 3.30 4.30 4.30 4.30
9.75 9.75 9.75 9.75 9.75 9.75
5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20
4.45 6.95 6.95 6.95 6.95 6.95
7.20 7.20 7.20 7.20 7.20 5.80
6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
8.10 8.10 8.10 8.10 8.10 8.10
5.20 6.10 6.10 6.10 6.10 6.10
16.40 16.40 16.40 16.72 16.72 18.42
19.50 19.50 19.50 19.50 19.50 19.50
9.30 9.30 9.30 10.80 10.80 9.60
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80
4.00 3.85 3.70 3.70 3.70 3.70
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10
3.00 3.00 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
6.25 6.40 6.40 6.40 6.40 6.30
4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
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TABLE 9
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO
ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar Amounts in 000's)

Less Debt (i)

Service
Fiscal Total(ii)(iii) Assessed' Gross General(i) Fund
Year Population Values Bonded Debt Balance
1994 467,500 $5,482,977 $47,542 $914
1995 457,100 5,724,623 49,250 810
1996 452,691 5,777,793 68,325 1,029
1997 452,400 5,882,684 75,500 7,372
1998 448,300 6,364,073 67,900 6,652
1999 447,300 6,453,593 60,060 5,986
2000 455,054 6,586,846 52,590 6,139
2001 454,500 7,776,743 61,770 10,542
2002 453,506 7,717,907 53,200 12,907
2003 452,600 7,778,200 50,500 16,542

' Referto: "Table 6 - Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property” in this section.

Source (i): Lucas County Auditor
Source (ii): Toledo Regional Growth Partnership
Source (iii): Sales Marketing Management 2001

TABLE 10
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL
BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Total? Total’
General General General General
Fiscal® Obligation Obligation Obligation Governmental
Year Principal Interest Debt Service Expenditures
1994 $1,905 $2,599 $4,504 $269,100
1995 2,942 3,288 6,230 276,567
1996 14,845 3,588 18,433 317,940
1997 6,425 3,971 10,396 341,414
1998 7,600 4,203 11,803 327,624
1999 7,840 3,815 11,655 345,637
2000 7,470 3,436 10,906 402,711
2001 7,820 3,538 11,358 451,791
2002 8,345 4,907 13,252 439,042
2003 8,960 4,384 13,344 440,854

' Referto: "Table 1 - General Governmental Expenditures by Function” in this section.

* General obligation bonds reported in the Enterprise funds and special assessment debt with governmental commitment have been
excluded.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Ratio of

Net General Per Capita
Net General Bonded Debt to Net General Fiscal
Bonded Debt Assessed Value Bonded Debt Year
$46,628 0.850% 99.74 1994
48,440 0.846% 105.97 1995
67,296 1.165% 148.66 1996
68,128 1.158% 150.59 1997
61,248 0.962% 136.62 1998
54,070 0.838% 120.88 1999
46,451 0.705% 102.08 2000
51,228 0.659% 112.71 2001
40,293 0.522% 88.85 2002
33,958 0.437% 75.03 2003
Ratio of
Total Debt Service
to General
Governmental Fiscal
Expenditures Year
1.67% 1994
2.25% 1995
5.80% 1996
3.04% 1997
3.60% 1998
3.37% 1999
2.71% 2000
2.51% 2001
3.02% 2002
3.03% 2003
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TABLE 11
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED December 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Direct legal debt limitation':

3.0% of the first $100,000 assessed valuation...............c........ $3,000
1.5% on excess of $100,000-not in excess of
$300,000.......c.0iirieieeinie et s 3,000
2.5% on the amount in excess of $300,000%...........cccceeeuee.. 207,534
Total direct legal debt limitation...................cccccoeveereeceennn, 213,534
Total of all county debt outstanding®...................cccoooeecinn, $74,355
Less:
Special assessment bonds and notes
(Self-suppOrting)3........coveriiniie it e 17,649
Correctional facilities bonds (4).........cccoovvevieciiivireiieceeeen 14,813
Total exempt debi................ccovvviviviriiivicinioiiieiiieec e (32,462)
Total net indebtedness (voted and unvoted) subject
to direct debt limitation..............ccocvcvvvvneiiieccinniiiieineee, 41,893
Direct legal debt margin...............ccccoeevevvecivieviiiieeceeen $171,641
Unvoted debt limitation (subject to 1% of County
assessed valuation)..........cccocevvveiiiiiiicc e, 86,013
Total net indebtedness (unvoted - subject to the 1%
legal debt limitation)...........c..coeeviiimiiiiiiniiecc e, (34,822)
Total unvoted legal debt margin...............cccccccccovvveeeevcnennnn, $51,191

* Direct legal debt limitation is outlined by the Ohio Revised Code, codifications 133.02 and 133.05, not including avaitable equity in debt service fund.
2 Refer to: "Table 6 - Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property” in this section.

* Excludes Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA) and Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) loans, and non-tax revenue bonds. Refer tc
and to "Note H - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations" in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

4 Excluded by state statute.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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TABLE 12
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Amounts in 000's)

Percent Amount
Debt Applicable Applicable
Qutstanding to County to County
Direct debt:
Lucas County™........ccoverrviriennnenn $59,470 100.0% $59,470
Overlapping debt:
Municipalities:?
All cities and villages within
Lucas County......coccevmnernerercecennne 184,593 100.0% 184,593
Swanton Village........c...cooonivnninnns 1,575 6.50% 102
School districts:?®
All school districts
within Lucas County......ccccceecverenees 348,522 100.0% 348,522
Evergreen local...........cooveenne 13,781 28.2% 3,886
Anthony Wayne local..................... 25,969 98.2% 25,502
Swanton local........c.ccooveeerrernnecnann. 2,000 39.1% 782
Overlapping debt...........cccccceininnn 576,440 97.7% 563,387
Total direct and overlapping debt.... $635,910 97.9% $622,857

* Excluding special assessment debt with governmental commitment, revenue bonds, general obligation bonds reported
in Enterprise funds and Regional Jail bonds.

2 The cities which are wholly located within the legal boundaries of Lucas County are: Maumee, Oregon, Sylvania and Toledo.
The villages which are wholly located within the legal boundaries of Lucas County are: Berkey, Harbor View,
Holland, Ottawa Hills, Waterville and Whitehouse.

3 The school districts which are wholly located within the legal boundaries of Lucas County are: Maumee (CSD),
Ottawa Hills (LSD), Oregon(CSD), Springfield (LSD), Sylvania (CSD), Toledo (CSD) and Washington (LSD).

Chart of Direct and Overlapping Debt
as of December 31, 2003

5% M Cities and Villages
Lucas County

B Local School Districts

OOverlapping School
District

Source: Lucas County Auditor — 193 —




TABLE 13
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
PROPERTY VALUES, BANK DEPOSITS AND CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar Amounts in 000's)

Assessed Values of’

Real, Personal Total?

Fiscal and Utility Certified Valuation of? Permits
Year Property(i) Bank Deposits (ii) Construction (iii) Issued (iii)
1994 $5,482,977 $2,768,305 251,899 10,073
1995 5,724,623 3,053,287 265,933 8,790
1996 5,777,793 3,810,869 347,064 11,524
1997 5,882,684 3,037,031 287,618 9,848
1998 6,360,884 5,302,858 163,312 7,484
1999 6,453,593 6,340,350 194,109 7,884
2000 6,586,846 2,413,149 201,872 7,527
2001 7,776,743 785,707 213,273 8,198
2002 7,717,907 167,588 239,518 8,529
2003 7,778,200 139,299 245,701 8,654

' Refer to: "Table 6-Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" in this section.

2 Represents all privately owned new construction including residential and nonresidential structures, and residential and nonresidential
garage and carport additions, alterations and conversions.

Source (i): Lucas County Auditor

Source (ii): Data Services Department-Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland.

Source (jii): Lucas County Building Regulation Department, City of Toledo Building Department, City of Oregon
Inspection Department, City of Maumee Division of Building and the Village of Whitehouse Building Department.
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TABLE 14
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
TOP TEN PRIVATE SECTOR PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

. ]
(Amounts in 000's) 2003
2003 Assessed Total 2003
Assessed Personal Assessed
Real Estate Property Property
Firm .___Values Values _Values
Sun RefiNING....c.c.cvvveeeeereerereeeeeeeeeee e, $5,350 $45,744 $51,094
General Motors Hydra-Matic...............ccccccueunin. 8,535 41,695 50,230
Chrysler/Daimler.............ccccceecevvvcnninienieieennennen, 6,837 30,310 37,147
BP Ol 6,798 30,276 37,074
Block Communications.........c....oocovveeeiiieeeeeeennn, 1,377 22,629 24,006
Johns Manville............c.cocvoveveiiviiiiieciiee, 3,694 19,403 23,097
Owens liNOIS...........cccuveeeeeiiieeeee e 19,335 3,731 23,066
Meifer INC....c...occoiriiieceee e 13,435 7,544 20,979
The ANdersons...........cccoeevvveeeeeiiivevveee e 13,356 7,580 20,936
Libbey, INC..cccereeerieciiveeeic et 2,001 16,888 18,889
TOtAIS.....ovoeveeeeicieeeeeee e $75,368 $180,056 $255,424

* Refer to: "Table 6-Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" in this section.

Source: Lucas County Auditor

TABLE 15
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
TOP FIVE PUBLIC UTILITY TAXPAYERS
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002
(Amounts in 000's)

2003 2002 2003 Percent of
Assessed Assessed Utilities Assessed
Public Public Value to Total

Utility Utility 2003 Assessed
Utility Values Values Value
Toledo EdiSON...........ccccoovvveeiiviiiiiieee e $112,924 $123,120 1.45%
Ohio Bell........oooveieeeeieeeiccieec e, 63,022 63,345 0.81%
Columbia Gas.........ccoeeeeeeerieceereeeeereceree e 23,325 22,926 v 0.30%
CSX Transportation...............cceeveveervcrericreenennn. 7,891 23,184 0.10%
American Transmission System........................ 27,809 30,004 0.36%
TOLAIS.......oi e $234,971 $262,579 3.02%

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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2003 Percent’

Firms Assessed Rank of Top Ten
Value to Total Firms by Assessed

2003 Assessed Property Values

Property Values 2003 2002
0.66% 2 1
0.65% 1 2
0.48% 4 3
0.48% 3 4
0.31% 5 5
0.30% 7 6
0.30% 6 7
0.27% 8 8
0.27% 9 9
0.24% 10 10
3.06%

2002 Percent of
Utilities Assessed

Value to Total
2002 Assessed
Value

1.59%

0.82%
0.30%
0.05%
0.39%

3.156%
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POPULATION DENSITY

TABLE 16
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003

Census Square Population in Population
Year Miles Lucas County Density
1970 343.3 483,551 1,408.5
1980 343.3 471,741 1,383.4
1990 341.0 462,361 1,355.9
2000 341.0 455,054 1,334.5

Source: Bureau of Census-United States Department of Commerce

EMPLOYMENT TRENDS

Ten Year Average Employment

County County Unemployment Rate
Year Employed Unemployed County Ohio U.S.
1994 215,800 13,300 5.8% 5.5% 6.1%
1995 214,400 11,500 5.0% 4.8% 5.6%
1996 215,700 11,500 5.1% 4.9% 5.4%
1997 218,300 11,900 5.2% 4.6% 4.9%
1998 218,000 12,700 5.5% 4.2% 4.5%
1999 222,000 12,100 5.2% 4.2% 4.2%
2000 219,000 11,200 4.9% 4.1% 4.0%
2001 220,500 11,500 5.0% 4.3% 4.8%
2002 215,400 15,900 6.9% 5.7% 5.8%
2003 214,700 18,200 7.8% 6.1% 6.0%
2003 Monthly Employment
County County Unemployment Rate
Month Employed Unemployed County Ohio U.S.
January 211,900 18,400 8.0% 6.8% 6.5%
February 213,000 18,500 8.0% 6.9% 6.4%
March 214,000 18,300 7.9% 6.8% 6.2%
April 215,900 17,200 7.4% 6.2% 5.8%
May 217,000 17,500 7.5% 5.9% 5.8%
June 215,200 19,600 8.3% 6.5% 6.5%
July 214,000 23,100 9.7% 6.4% 6.3%
August 216,300 17,200 7.4% 5.6% 6.3%
September 214,300 17,100 7.4% 5.7% 5.8%
October 215,700 16,900 7.3% 5.4% 5.6%
November 214,800 17,500 7.5% 5.6% 5.6%
December 213,500 16,900 7.3% 5.7% 5.4%

Source: Ohio Bureau of Employment Services
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TABLE 17
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003

HOSPITALS
Number
Name of Beds
Toledo Hospital..........cccoiceiiiniiniii e e 794
St. Vincent Mercy Medical Center.............cccoocvvvviivviciinnnnnnen, 573
St. Charles Mercy Hospital............ccoocoviiviivir e, 390
Medical College of ORIO.........cccceeeiiiiiiirciienrecrece e sinens 319
St. Lukes Hospital.........ccceeeiiiieeiiiierccic e 316
Flower Hospital............ccoceiiiiiiriiinic e 274
Riverside Mercy Hospital.............ccoooiieiiiiiiieeel 256
St. Anne Mercy Hospital.........cccoovvvvrvvnvernereneceeree e 136
Bay Park Community Hospital...........ccccecervveinceniinveccenninenns 82
Source: Lucas County Auditor
HIGHER EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS
2003/2004
Fall/Winter
Name of Institution Enroliment
University of Toledo..............oooviiiiiec e 20,037
Lourdes College........c.ooviiriniiniiiiiie e, 1,249
Medical College of Ohio............ccccoeviiicieiiiiiiii e 1,053
Stautzenberger College of Business and Technology............ 789
University of Toledo-College of Law..............cccovveivieniiinninenn, 521
Davis College........c...oooiririiiiiiie e 417
Total enrollment...................oovvvioeeicieieeieireeeeieeeireeeaeeeenn, 24,066

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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TABLE 17
LUCAS COUNTY
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS-(continued)
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003
(Dollar Amounts in 000's)

NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL FIRM RANKINGS

Overall Overall Ohio 2003
Rank Rank Rank Gross Net Asset
Firm 2003 2002 2003 Sales Assets Rank
Dana Corporation.............. 193 182 10 $10,071,000 $9,617,000 272
Owens-lllinois........c..cccuue. 302 298 16 6,158,000 9,531,000 274
Owens-Corning ................ 350 338 20 4,996,000 7,358,000 310

INDUSTRIAL RANKINGS

2003
Number of 2003 2003
Firm Employees Industry Rank Rank
Dana Corporation.............. 59,000 Motor Vehicle & Parts 8 8
Owens-lllinois.................... n/a Building Materials, Glass n/a n/a
Owens-Corning ................ 18,000 Building Materials, Glass 1

'Source: Fortune magazine, "The Largest 500 U.S. Industriat Companies,” April 5, 2004 Volume 149, No. 7
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TABLE 17
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS-(continued)
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003

EMPLOYERS

Top Ten Private Employers

Number of

Employer Employees Primary Type of Product/Service
ProMedica Health Systems™**............ 10,739 Medicine and health care
Merch Health Partners*..................... 6,566 Medicine and health care
Daimler-Chrysler/Toledo Jeep.......... 5,583 Automatic manufacturing
General Motors/Power Train............. 3,860 Automatic manufacturing
Kroger......ooooiieiiiciccc e 3,721 Retail grocery
HCR Manor Care.......ccccceveecveernnnns 3,412 Health Care Services
Medical College of Ohio.................... 3,300 Medicine and health care
ANAEISONS.....ccovvevriireeiiieerieeenienane 2,900 Grain Storage/Process/Retail
United Parcel Service..........c.ccceee... 2,108 Mail Service
Meijers.....coocvveeerieierieiee i 1,774 Retail grocery

Top ten total employed 43,963

Percent of total work force’ 20.48%

'Refer to: "Employment Trends-Ten Year Employment" within Table 16 of this Section.

*1997 Merger of Mercy, Riverside, St. Charles and St. Vincent Mercy Medical Centers.

**1998 Merger of Childrens Medical Center, Flower Hospital, Toledo Hosptial, Crestview Club Apt.

Goerlich Center, Caring Home Helath Serv. Lake Park, Golden Haven, Promedica Paramount & Promedica Phy. Support.
Source: Toledo Regional Growth Partnership

Top Five Public Employers

Number of

Employer Employees Primary Type of Product/Service
Toledo Public Schools....................... 5,600 Education (primary-secondary)
University of Toledo........................... 5,000 Education (advanced)
Lucas County........cccoceveirreinienannccns 4,037 Government services (various)
City of Toledo........c.coceevvireviins 2,943 Government services (various)
State of Ohio.......cc.ccceveviiniieiine, 2,326 Government services (various)

Total employed 19,906

Percent of total work force’ 9.27%

Refer to: "Employment Trends-Ten Year Employment" within Table 16 of this Section.

Source: Toledo Regional Growth Partnership
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88 Fast Broad Street
P.O. Box 1140

Auditor of State Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140
Telephone  614-466-4514
Betty Montgomery P 400.282.0370

Facsimile  614-466-4490

FINANCIAL CONDITION

LUCAS COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Toubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
OCTOBER 18, 2004
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